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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment objective of TR Property Investment Trust
plc is to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property related businesses internationally and alsoc in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Investment Trust ple (the Company or the
Trust) was formed in 1905 and has been a dedicatea
property investor since 1982 The Company 1s an
Investment Trust and its shares are premium listed or
the London Stock Exchange

Benchmark
The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NARE!T Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index 1n Sterling

Investment policy

The Company seeks to achieve its objective by
Investing in shares and securities of property
companies and property related businesses on an
international basis, although, with & pan-European
berchmark, the majority of the investments will be
located inthat geographical area. The Company also
nvests ininvestment property located in the UK only.

Further detalls of the Investment Policies, the As<et
Allocation Guidelines and policies regardirg the use of
gearing are set gutin the Strategic Report on page 5
and the entire portfolio 1s showr on page 15

investment manager

BMO Investment Busiress Limited acts as the
compary’'s alternative investment fund mandger
CAIFMY) with portfolio managemert delegated to
Thames River Capital LLP (the Partfolio Mandager™ or
the Manager) Marcus Phayre-"Mudge nas managad
tne portfolo since 1 Apnl 2071 and peen part of the
Fund Maragement team since 1997
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Independent board

The Directors ate all independent of the Manager

and meet regularly ta conside investment strategy,

to moritor adherence to the statec objective ang
nvestment pohicies and to review Investment
performarce Detals of how the Board opérates and
fulfils its responsibilities are set cut in the Report of the
Directors on page 43

Performance

The Financial Highhights for the currert year are set out
opposite and Histonical Performance can be found on
page 2 Key Performance Indicators are set outin the
Strategic Report on pages 24 and 25

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Company currently conducts its affarrs so that
Its shares can be recommended by Independant
Financial Advisers {:7AsT) 10 the UK to retall investors
N accordanze with the Financial Conduct Autnornty
{(SCAY rulas in relation to non mManstream tvestment
products and interds to cortimue to da sc The
shares are excl.dec from the SCA's resinictiors,
wrieh apoly to nor-rnamst-eam investmeant
products, because tney are shares in ar authonsed
nsestment trust comoany

)
Further information
Gereryl shareralder in‘o mation and details ¢ now (o

rvestin the Company ncladmg ar 1mvestment throu g,

an 154 07 saving seheme, car be founa or oages 114
and 115 Tris informatior can also be found
07 the CoMoany's seensite v IrproDety com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2022 2021 Change
Balance Sheet - T T S
Net asset value per share 492.43p 41797p +17 8%
Shareholders’ funds (£000) 1,562,739 1,326,433 +17 8%
Shares in issue at the end of the year {m) 317.4 317.4 U U%

Net debts 10.2% 16.5%
Gy o e e e — - e
Share price 456.500 392.50p +16.3%
Market capitalisation £1,449m £1,246m +16 3%

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March
2022 2021 Change
Revenue S
Revenue earnings per share 13.69p 12 25p +11 8%

Dividends* 7 s

Interim dividend per share 5.30n 520p +1.9%
Final dividend per share 9.20p 9.00p +2.2%
Total dividend per share 14.50p 14.20p +2.1%

Performance: Assets and Benchmark

Net Asset Value total return3® +21.4% +207%
Benchmark total return® +12.2% +159%
Share price total return® +19.9% +28.3%

Ongoing Chargess®

incfuding performance fee +2.19% 1 40%
Excluding performance fee +0.60% 0.65%
Excluding performance fee and direct property costs +0.58% 063%

1 Netdebtis the tolai value of oan notes, Ioans (including notional exposure to Cr0s) less cash as a propartion of net asset value

2. Dwidends per share are the dividends in respect of the finarcial year ended 31 March 2022, An inter'm dwigend of 5 30p was paid on 14 Lanuary 2022 A final
dividend of 9 20p (2021 9.00p) will be paid on 2 August 2022 1o shareholders on the register on 24 June 2G22. The shares will be quoted ex-dividend cn
23.June 2022

3 The NAV Total Return for the year 15 calculated by remvest ng the dvidends in <he assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date, Dividends are deemed
to bereinvested on the ex-dividend date as this 1s the protacal used by the Campany's henchmark and other naices

4, The Share Price Total Return 15 caculated by reinvesting the gividends in the shares of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date.

5. Ongoing Charges are calculated ' accordence with the AIC methoaology. The Ongo.ng Chaiges ravos provided in the Company's Key nformation Docurment are
calculated nline with tha PRIIPs regulation which 's different to the AIC methodoiogy.

5. Considered to be an Alternative Performance Measura as defined on page 102




Historical performance

orteevearerosd A e e Bt

2012 2013 2014 2015

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

R _ I 7]
Performance for &
the year: é.
Total Return (%) %
NAYE 8.5 28.3 82 8O 155 g1 115 207 214 =
Benchmark® © 8y 178 9 233 54 65 102 56 140 159 122
SharePrice® 95 258 377 s 16 91 25 62 168 283 19.9.
Shareholders’ funds
(£'m) @
Total 588 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563 %
Ordinary shares 470 684 809 1,010 1,065 1,118 1,256 1,328 1,136 1,326 1,563 g
Sigmashares® 118 - R S
Ordinary shares
Net revenue (pence
per share)
Earnings 707 674 8.09 8.89 836 7138 13.22 14 58 1462 12.25 13.69
Dwidends® 660 ~ 700 745 770 = 835 1050 1220 1350 1400 1420 1450 n
NAY per share 18360 21525 25484 31812 33596 35242 39564 41854 35871 41797 49243 2
{pence) §
Share price (pence) 15450 18630 24750 31050 29750 31450 38250 39400 317.50 392.50 456.50 §
. T T e ST T It 5
[+
2
]

Indices of growth
{rebased at 31 March 2012)

Share price® 100 127 160 201 193 204 248 255 206 254 295
Net Asset Value® 100 117 139 173 183 192 215 228 195 228 268
Drvidend Net™® 100 106 113 117 127 159 185 205 212 215 218
RPI 100 103 106 107 108 112 116 118 122 123 134
Benchmark® 100 113 121 145 149 154 165 1S 141 180 176

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted International Reporting Standards.

(A)The NAV Total Return for each year 1s calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the assets of the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are
deemed to be reinvested at the ex-dividend date as this is the protocol used by the Company's benchrmark and other indices. This 1s considered to be an Alternative
Performance Measure as defined on page 102

{B)Benchmark Index. composite index comprising the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR Index up to March 2013, and thereafter the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT
Developed Europe Capped Index. Source Thames River Capital.

{C) The Share Price Totaf Returr is calculated by reinvesting the dividends in the shares of the Cormpany from the relevant ex-dividend date.

2INSOOSIP QWY put Klessopn

(D) The Sigma share class was launched in 2007 and Sigma shares were redesignated as Ordinary shares on 17 December 2012 z

(E)Dividends per share In the year 1o which their declaration relates ananet the year they were paid. §

{F}Share prices only. These da not reflact dvidends paid %

(G)Capital only valyes These do not reflect dividends paid 2
(H)Price only vatue of the indices set out in (B} above.
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Chairman’s statement

In a year dominated by
volatility and powerful
global macroeconomic
and political themes, I'm
pleased to report a year

of healthy performance.
Our NAV total return for
the year was 21.4% against
a benchmark of 12.2%

David Watson

The year was again dominated oy powerful global macrao-
economic and political themas, propelling the markst

in the first half and depressing it in the second. Spring
2021 saw broadly-based market optimism through the
conbinaaiar of broad post vacome recovery across all
economies, aided by the sustained dovisn response from
sentral barks. As inflationary pressures built towards the
second half, particularly due to supply chain disruption
and increasingly tight labour markets, investors began

to build in expectation of increases in base rates and
consequently, credit spreads as expectations of global
growth moderated or evaperated. The central investment
theme hecame inflationary concerns, with the key
queshions being 1ts degree of permanence and the
various key central banks' responses Towards the end of
the financial year risk was elevated further by the tragic
events and unfolding hurnanitarian disaster in Ukraine
For giobal equity markets the cold-hearted financiaf
repercussions are manifold, evidenced through the rising
prices of energy anad the supply and price of a range of
other hard and soft commodities which were mined,
refined or grown in abundance in Ukraine The longer-
term impact of Russian aggression on commaodity prices
and global trade and erergy flows are only now starting
to be understoad

It may therefore seem somewhat surpnsing that agaimst
that back drop | am able 1o report a year of healthy
perfarmance for the Company Our net asset value

tolal return was <21 4%, well ahead of the benchmark
retun of +12 2% The share prica total ~eturn at +19 9%
was shghtly beninc tne underlying asset growth, as the
discount between the share price and the NAY vadered
just be‘ore the year end

At the halt vear 1 ugrhighteq tnat our Manager contirued
to focus or the most sustamable income and had further
tilted tre porifolic towards incex-lirked income Tris
contined to e the case in the second nalf arc relec
drive relat e performance. Real esiate has good inflation
protecting attnbates not least that the vast majoaity

of o.m1rceme s [0 4amyIng aegrees, exahotly Inked 1o
naticnal =Iationindices Inevitably wis not st public
market \yestors v oo nave realised tne attrastion of
gteacy “galroome grawtn Brivgte aculy ir sestmie it
real estate zomtnues to 02 elevated a~C thers has oeen

later i~ tre -epory The Lonsesgerte
aretwofolz i the short tarm
gains rom cur stakes i g
beer tuxe- o rate ar rnen oy T esto
respon slogrising 17at 1 lIsten g onerty compani=s
shars prr,et aredef o At wall elo sy Goaet salugtoen

the prreats magreet ol suouair Thas 2mans 5 2nzal

and saluasle ~daroim
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Earnirgs for the year were 12 69p per snare, 12%
hugher than the previous year (12.25p) but still almaost
6% behind pre COVID-19 levels

As anticipated in the Half Year Report, earnings

for tne second half were lower than in the previous
year. This was partly because of one-off items in the
second half of the year to March 2621 which did not
recur and partly because of the significant changes in
dividend Umetables seen through the year but waich
largely impacted the second nalf. Many companies
moved o more frequent and smaller distnibutions,
which reduced ncaorme in companson to the prior year
due simply to timing More detalls are set out In the
Manager's Report.

Tnese factors mask a positive underly:ing trand and,
as described above, our Manager has focused the
portfolio on sources of sustainable Income Tne
Board 1s therefore pleased to announce an increase
in the final dividend to ©.20p (2021: 9.80p) bringing
the fult year dividend to 14.50p, an increase of just
over 2%, This will require a small contribution from
the Company s revenue reserve We highlighted in the
last Annual Report that we expected that this woula
be the case and that the Board was happy 1o employ
some of the revenue reserve, providing a return 1o
pre COVID-19 1income levels could be expected ir the
medium term

Our Manager 1s feeling ~omfortable about the
Compary s reverue outlock DJividerds anacuneced
for the first guarter are showing increases o1 the prior
yea” Many of our irvestee companies have medium
term debt arrangements secured when interest rates
wrere at mistoric lows and so will not immeaiately ‘eel
tre impact of igrer interest rates ~urt-er aneac,
this witl become more of amissuef higher rates
Jersist OuT ownincome tax ate will aiso mncrease
forthe 2022/23 financial year As always, the Board
witl keep an eye to the longer term, but having buidt
up the revenue ~eserve over many years we fealit is
approoriate to mamtamn dividerd levels where we can
easily do o provided a longer term fallin 1income 13
not expectad. After the final dividend set out abaove,
tre revenue reserve will be 11 37p per share

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

. Benchmark Total Retum  ** * TR Property Share Price Total Return ‘ TR Property Net Asset Value Total Return
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Chairman’s statement
continued

The apening geanng position was 16 5% and closed
at 10 2%. It fluctuated over the vear betweer these
levels ag the gearing was actively managed Jur debt
nortfolio gives s considerable flexibility 10 increase
and decrease gearing levels auickly and this has
proved beneficial yet again

Sterling has traded ir @ narrow range against
the Eurc throughout the vear and 1t closed arly
fractionally stronger at the end of the year, so
currencies have not been a significant factor
N this year's results

From the starting point of & 1% the distount, for
the most part, gradually narrowed in the period up
to the beginning of 2022 and then traded ata small
premium through January. With the invasion of
Ukraine and a gereral worsening of sentiment. the
shares moved back to a discount, its wideast at 9 9%
and closing the year at 7 4% The discount average
for the year was 3 1% This meant that tne share
price return was shghtly behind the NAVY retarr

No share buy-backs or 1Issues were made dunng
the year

The Campany was the winnar of in tre Specralist
Equities cataegory of the Citywire ‘mnvestrment Tr st
Aysards far the second year runring 1t has also
ceen awarded -atings with a number of platforms
a1d puclications and these are ircluded in tne
sdareholder information section iater i tneg ~enort

cITyWiRe

- WINNER

| INVESTMENT TRUST 2024

~

SPECIALIST ECULTIES

TR PROPERTY
INVESTMENT TRUST

The era of cneap meney 1s coming to an end. Inflat’'en

15 5urging and cent-al Banks are reversing tnel” balarce
sheet exoarsion that Fas defined the penod following
tae Global Fira~mal Crisis Consequertly, boma markets
are volatile and real (as ooposes to normiral) yields

on duration debt are gefting =ven mare negative

fiation protected incorre 18 becaming harder to fing

so Irdex hrked property Imrome should remain attractive
However nsing interest costs ard oledrly 3 headwand

tor any leveraged asset class

Our strategy -emains the same, 1dertifyirg asset classes
and sub-markets whee demand outstrips supply ard
where rents are capable of rising Buila cost inflation and
tre regulatory/soral pressure to build more sustainably
thigher untront =ost, Sut lower long-term maintenance
and running costs) nas sgueeezed development marging
Our Manager expects a subouec developmeanrt nyclan
many mareets and a reduction in risk of oversupply must
be a posite 1t the medium term We continaé to seek
more exposLre 1o asset classes where rebule costs are
well above the carrent prescided asset valles Enaity
marketl velatiity 1s providing Js witln come o° (nese
sopart.mities (o the hsted space ana we hope to enlarge
our physical propesty portfchio Dused on the same
mvastmert thesis

David Watson



Manager’s report

Although the economic
outlook remains unsettled,
property assets, particularly
where the income is index-
linked, should remain
relatively attractive despite
rising interest costs.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

The Net Asset Value total return for the year to the end of
March 2027 was +21 4% aheac of the berchmark total
return of +12 2%

The Sprng ara Summer of 2027 saw a benign backdrop
of cortimuirg manetaty pelicy la-gesse from central banks
coupled with anmorovirg outlcok for all ecomormies ann
this pode well for many parts of the real estate landscaps
Share onces acrss cur wiverse responded accordingly
and our NAY grew by 149 frorm April 1o August Post

the summer holidays investars increasingly fretted over
tha themes of a global slowdown (breakdown in supply
chains, COVID-19 impactec manufacturing capabilities

In Asia) coupled with nising wage and energy costs Alf

of which heightened the risk of stagflation. Share price
volatility increased hugely and we expernenced 20% swings
in the value of the benchmark between the beginning of
September and the end of November Such large swings in
sentiment reflected the changes in expectation of central
banks’ behavioLr In simple terms — would they tun
hawkish {ana at what pace) to help control these renawed
inflationary pressures The last phase of the financial year
(December to March) was marked by a steady declinein
real estate equity prices as the expectation of multiple rate
rises by the US Feceral Reserve and the Bank of Znglard
alongsige more hawkish rhetonc from the European
Central Bank was priced in The last month of the financial
year was of course, overshadowed by the termble events
in Ukraine immediately adding to energy and other raw
material inflation expectations.

What | nave summansed mere s tra performance of
pan-Eurapean real estate ecualies over the 12 montra to
the end o March rather than underlying pronerty values
Share prices are volatile and reanct quickly to macre

driven sentiment Urderlying real estate values tend to
adjust whe- the price of maoital thanges. as coposecto
the expectation of future oneecharges ey are also
anchorad rmuch more locally seing dependent o tre
expectation of local -ental grewth or contraction Soreacs
have widened ard cebt costs areincreasing Lut they remam
historically low ana crucially at the moment, debtis stll
readily svailanie As  warred e last years Ancual Repot

if equity markets allow hsted romoanies 1o frade on lage
discounts to ther rmphat asset value tren pnivate vehisles
(who car operate vath higaer leverage a~a nerce a lower
costof saptalpwill tace rramprivate This ~asbeer a

key therne thus vea© and the Company's perfurmance has
benefited ‘rom @ numaer of transactions =xpectation of
capitai growts amorgol presate Guwne’s {neat o stituticnal
arretail 1in,2stors] 13 e meosts unportant i uncerhyog
pricing than toe gyrations of paohcly isted snare pnzes 1z
encouragirg i« frarsaction wolumes and private marcat
optimism rormaliss in nany of our sab-rmarkats aned ths s
exami~=c i mors doranl later e tre report

113
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Manager's report
continued

The portfelio positioning had been neavily adjLstad
inthe immediate post vaccire period (Q4 2020, 07
2027} essentially closing the underweaight to ELropean
shopping centres and renewing exposure o office
markets with shorter commute times {1.e a focus on

the smaller cities, not London and Pans) The year uncer
review saw that pracess exignded, witn the portfalio
further concentrating on capturing the impadat of trree
key trands Firstly, those sectors ikely Lo expere e

the greatest rental growth In a recovering ecoromis
environment such ag logistics, industrial, self-storage
and prime cffice development continue to be heavily

* represented in the portfolio Secondly, secunty of income
is crucial Private rented residenhal property continLes
to enjoy virtually full ococupancy, particularly in Germary
and Swedan where rents remain heavily regulated (and
at sub-market levels). The final theme was inflation
protection and seeking to own explicitly index-linkag,
high qualty iIncome across a broad range of sectors This
latter theme overlaps with the residential focus giver the
tighly defensive nature of the earnings

All of these thermes were drivers of relative
outperformance alangside the positive impact of
numercus merger and acquisition ['ME&A]) siteations
2ver the year (that activity will be detaled later in te
fepnort) However. itis important to clarfy tat the histec
German residential names have - with one exceptior -
performed relatively poorly this year The sector saw tre
largest plece of M&A activity with tne casr ta<eover of
Deutsche Wohnen by Vonovia and this was extersivaly
reviewed in the Half Year Report We pave remarred loyal
to our certral view tnat Berlin residential prozerty waloes
will continue to outperform the rest of Germany with &
cortirued sugplys demand imbalance. Phoenix Soree
Deatschland (total return +18%) was tre pe-forman~e
auther over the vear and ensured that ou- German
residential portfolio contributed positively to our relatie
sutperformance of tne bencnmark

The yast majority of office wokers »ave now retu--ed
oy tne off ce, at least pe-t of the tire, The longe” <erm
07 seCUErcas o tre dramatic Ircregss 1 samats

~orkieg stoce 2020 are stll evalaing Aoverar s
ncreasingly corfident of anumbe-of key e &
ether pre-existzd o rave emerged, Trhe fretis all aru L,z
aptionality. Most off co workars 10 3 gragter o Jerss
axtant can wor< remctaly Tus cptisrabty ms
offize envircnrert must becorme maore grtrastize

e efficiert tngm the alerrative forworkers Th's ns

SELgTIng i rEasio gl fur pssd onther =0 e

FLOTLANt AT U2 BAME NS govar YierT mag lance

aceess the developez world is drising energy aff niar oy
.

it

ERs

Sl e grnr ey

the right locations offenng state of the a-t amenities
There s aireacy a clear volansation in fayour of CBD
(central busingss districts) aver decentralised or
supburnan markets Central Pans saw take up ot 14237
yea© onyear a crop i immediate sLoply of 17 5 over
2020 witn yanancy at 3% doving rerts up, whilst tine
Westerr Crescent and L a Defense saw rents fall ard
ncertives ncrease Lordon expenenced a very similar
DIt e wath the West Erd Midiowr grd tra City seeing
Q42020 take upof 38msa it, a 7 year quarterly righ
The total ta<e up for 2021 was 10m sq ft, 65% ahead of
2020 Docklands and atner suburban markets did not
expenerce this level of improving statistics nvestors
~ernain bullish, Kright Frank (KF ) reported a fourfold
increase N Q1, 2022 ar the corresponding quarter of
2027 wite £5 8on of transactions (versus £1 2b)

Savills procuced a detaled ressarch nole in March 2022,
predicting reauctions in office space dernand across all
zaropean cities to varying degrees We have sympatry
with the overall expactation but tne crucial point s the
other side of the equation If this cemand 1s very fooused
on quahty where s that supply ceming from? 1 we [ook
at the Us six regional rarkels (10 avord only arscussing
London] ve see all six ciies as having less tran two years'
supply Costinflation ard the inability to tie down risk
orning with cortractors -esults 1~ reduced speculative
sonstruction wreh will 2xacerbate the problemn

«F 5 MZ5 report for Q4 2027 ighlights technology, meaia
ard telecorm { TVIT) and Life Saience terant derna=d out
generally subaued laks up levels varsas pre-pance i
lepzls Oxtard and Samondae cortinas to expeene
strong e tal growth oat Reading Uxoroge and St Albars
sav htlle gren greatzr supily of ~ew boldirgs The
trracitional oouuners of tnese strong satalite towns
the throes of assessing ther offee noeds, Ore would nave
axgected the investrment market (5 alsc reflect this ‘pause
ForthoLght cul tnis a3 ~of oren tra nase AcLordirg to <5

Coutr Eastoffics wolurgs rezcheg £4be v 2027 grecond
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across both shopping centres and nigh streets for both
prime and secandary assets This may well appear
optimistic as it1s nvased on low volurmes out the nunber
of deals is increasing and we are confident of much
migher transactior volumes in 2022 than 20621

The one area of real valuation recovery nas been -etall
warehousing. Tne last year has seen an extraordinarily
competitive landscape in tris sub-sector with yields
compressing over 1% at the prime end and cven more
amongst secondary assets What is understardable s
that where tenant demand/affordability has bees proven
then investars are happy to own Ag retaling evolves irte a
seamless chcks and bricks’ ommnichannel experience, retail
parks are a key part of the value chain for the retallers |If
the retailer can offer a fast and efficient ‘click and collect’
service which the customer 1s nappy to use, then the sales
margins from sellirg online improve materially. 1t1s the
last mile’ delivery which is so cost inefficient.

Tne cutiook for large, regional shopping centres remains
uncertain The vast majonty are teo big for their market in
anomnichannel world Owners are seeking to demolisr
part or repurpose to non-traditlanal uses, In many cases
trying to redefine themselves as a community hub as
opposed to just a covered retaling arena The strategy
feels correct but the costs of conversion and tre inabiity
of new users ta pay anything like the previous -ents

will lead to subdued returns. However, tnere has been
some price discovery with high profile exarmples such

as Hammerson's sale of Silverburn in Glasgow and a
wide range of smaller transactions across Europe rom
Eurocommercial, Kleplerre and Unibarl providing evidancs
trat buyers beleve that rents are stabilising

2021 was yet ancther record year interrmns of take un. capital
value growth and, all importantly, furtner shrinkage in the
amount of vacancy The UK market suw take up excesd HU
milhon sq ft and vacancy 1s now pefows 2% across the wmale
rarge of big box unitsizes Like for ke rental growt- for
Segros portfolie was in excess of 3% and this bas driven
yields nationwide down 75 100 bos leading to h.ge caoital
growth Yet urbanlogistics Ras been even Fotler, wits
investors focused or the supply inelastcity of infill markets.
Greater London onme irdustrial transachoral evidence

now ragularly sees eaavalert vields (1 e based of* “narkes
rerts which are higher than passing rents) of less tran 37
This price inflation has been fuelled by eviderce of anatrer
year of rental growtn exceedirg 1070 Segro eportad rental
growth averagirg 13 1% n s UK port®alo dunmg 20
Savills estimate that inner Lomdon rarts haze mayed 257
e last year alome

U< incustral transacticn volumes reached £15 7o e
2021 513% growth on 2020 anc ©52% growth on the Sye
vear average Giver auch ar anceleration wa most ~losch

Sl Ptf‘pt7r| A sLnie T

watrh the funcamertals, Ihere may well be capital seeking
deployment without dus consideration. However, for now.
the demand, s.pply imbalance at tre occuper lavel 1s drring
rental growtn The ertire UK irdustnal market recordes 4
arop in avanlable space 1o 18 Tmilien sq i, a contraction of
one 1nIr over the year Nowonde” ents are 1sing

0 the Contirert, we have also seen market rental grawtn
outstno annual indexation Thisis set to cortinue 2ver with
the pintryg of record Wgh annuaised intlation ¢f 5.1%.
Segro are the only fully pan-Europear listed dlayer and they
reported 4 1% like for ke -ental growth across Continental
Eurppe for 2027, We rernain confident that in many key
markets this level of graowth wvall be exceedad in 2022, ALross
Continental Europe, online sales penetratior now averages
15-18%, still along way behind the UK at © 28%. Shortemrg
supply chains and reshoring nas driven demand i cheaper
markets such as Poland Savlls Furonsar cogistics Survey
2021 showed tnat 46% of all cecupiers carvassed expected
toincrease their warehouse requirerments over the next year

Avalability contindes to shhank, with vacancy down from
5 1% to 3.5%, with recard low lavels in Dublin (1 13%), the
Netherlands (3 3%), Czeck Repubiic (1 7%) and take up
levels well ahead of decaas averages witn Madnid (+9%),
Poland (+13%) and the Netrerlands (+10%) For the best
space, rents are respording very rapidly and wea expect
average rental growth to exceed 5% across the Continent.
However, 1n early May this vear {post the year end)
Amazen antounced a dramatic gause i its exparsior
programme Whilst we believe that these comments
were focused on therr domesti US market, it has caased
reveroeralions across all legistics/ecommerce real estate
markets Major cvmers and developers such as Segro ard
Trtax point 1o ‘ull orderbeoks a~d stro-g trarsacticnal
evidence, furware looking equity mar<ets took fright
Share prices of these twe names are down 22% and 17%
cegpectnely calendavear to cate

Thig sectesremairs astrorg store of val.e i ine
sogrt-term capital valees sncutd be imoacted Dy nisirg
IPterest rdte expectations For SRS (oreate rental sectsn
1705 uneattaty (along e the proader geo oottical
backdropt has probably encouraged would e ouyers to
remain “e~fars i tha near terrmn Oooupancy rates remar
at record l2vels aor0ss both nen-market ~=ntal ma<ets
< Fielandy and mzgclated rental markets fGermany ars
Swedery ~ireldttergro op ofoompanes v el
pelow market -=nfs st rmamtaming a*oraabihty
AN ad 87 MGy COGTE TS A0 LOrSamatior 15 S0
Rasctig et a odlwhig - f
it oeloys market We are
fthe structumal ins ses of danan
At ahilb breret put vee are anatol of tre potertial for
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Manager's report
continued

This cost of energy cnsis will accelerate the need to
imorove the energy efficiency of all residential stock This
15 partucdlarly anissue i Germany whee sc much of the
nausing stock owned by tre listed companies requires
urgrading, coupled with the need to find alternatives

to Russian gas (the major domestic energy 500rce;

The cost of these iImprovements will ultimately be solit
between the state, the landlord and the terart Tre
outstanding question s inwhat proporticns There s

certainly na ‘one size fits all’ solution but if the bulk of thig

energy efficiency expenditure is subsidised by the state
and the landiord can, in addition, gain a return on their
share of the investment via higher rents (and reduced
energy bills), this doesn't have to be a bear irvestment
case for this sector

Although these potential headwinds are well flagged
underlying house {and apartment) prices contirue o 1se
driven by affordabihty Mortgage rates, whilst nising, are
still very low by historical standards and wage inflation is
feeding through, which daves affordabiiny Major cities
such as Berlin and Stockholm where there s very hittle
new supply continue to see values nsing at ¢ 1% per
month. According to JLL, there was an 11 6% year on
yedcomerease in Berlin condominiunt prices

The record occupancy increases and rate gravath in selr
storage recorded through the pandemic will undoubtably
slow. However, we are confident that growth will continue,
felled by the structurs! drivers of commercial usage last
rmile, business to consumer, suoply crair resilierse! ana
Imcreasing awareness of the priduct from reaidantial
“ustomers The Self Storage Assotiatior UK -eporten fo-tiar
ONCLDANCY grCwih across allits memibers Thisremans 4
Pighly f-agmentad sector witr over 1900 separate sites 37
only 30% ars aperated by large’ operators (dennad as those
it Tl or mate stores) The marketing acvantage “or tre
largest ooerators the ISted comaaniag) s very s3luatls,
2rsLng trat almost all gota-tal customeans 32372
trzinter-et itre sast magenty el ses an atfer frormo s o

CF1NE 1ATGRSt HDSMEIONS

¥ mas a fougner yeqd
BT CHmary '16:]' b(‘q'@ ~aLe the berefit o remia
‘ wr \”dlm :
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Puroose oult stuaent ascommedation (PBSAY nas fared
petter gs students Slearly want the camous experierce
anc jalue formoray Tre structomal turdamentals reman
30.ng underpi-ed by the compination of the growirg
numbiers oF students (post (e recent dermnographe

apt couplec wiath the cesre to live 1n Detter guality
accammedation tas nreacus stucert generations
According to UCAS, 30% of first year students live in
PBSA and this nas noreased from 72 % fve years ago.
A encouraging growih rate Anotrer A07: start thew
urtsersity e in halis of resigerce out trat perr‘emage
has remained static over the same period, reflecting

tre lack of vapacity or capability for universities to

Aad ta ther own residential real estate partfolios
Cushman Wakefiela have identified 6871 000 studem
arcommaocation beas acrass the UK with a netincrease
af just 27 000 over 2020, 21 Q7 2022 data has also
revealed a narked slowdowr ir planning apphicatio

for mew PRSA Lnits Importantly, gLality s a key orionty
with prices up by 17% since 2019: 20 for those with en
sulte natarooms

We continue 16 hold Unite (1<) and Xior (Belgium, Spaint ang
note tre recent takeaver of Amercar Campus Communites,
an 58or markat ~ap US student accormmiocation REIT by

Slackstone Yet anotner pivatisation

Dent markets continued to ne suppart2 for “eal estate

COTIDAMNES ”'ouq“ ouf the vear urdes reyvieyy Mth eriral
& aupoort through quartitatve
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nas already came back to the market shortly a'ter the
vear end Healthcare falls into this secure mcome camp
with the UK's Target Healthcare (£125m) ard Ass.ra
{£182m} sezing the moment alongside Belgium listed
Aedifica (£285m)

Whilst considerable primary issuance added ta the size
of the listed real estate sector, tnis capital inflow was
warfed by the record breaking amount of MEA activity
whickan the majonty of cases led to privatisatior ad
shrinkage in the sector's market capitalisation

Turnaver (purchases and sales divided oy two) totalied
£549m equating to 36% of the average net assets over
the year This is, comcidentally the same as last year's
equivalent figure (36%) which itself was slightly ahead
of the year to March 2020 (32%) It has therefore now
beer three vears of elevated portfolio rotatior cue to

a combination of market volatility, sectar rotation a4,
importantly, M&A activity.

Last year, this section of the report highlighted several
moves by private equity { PE) into the listed space with PE
firms such as Brookfield buying into British Land and KKR
into Great Portland Estates (now called GPE) Starwood
had taken RD! {market cap £325rm) private in February
Z2027and this turned out to be a precursor (o the zlevated
levels of activity seen thereafter

In June, Blackstone was required to increase its initial bid
for 3t Modwen Properties, paying a 21% premidm o the
net asset value of 463p Once again, private ecuity was
able to look peyond the immediate deveioprnert pipeline
ard value the high quality land bank more aggressively
than public markets In the same montn, A306 falongsice
Blackstone againt announced the acquisition of GC
Student Living (market cap £960m) Blackstone arg

ARG were also co-ipvestors in several UK and European
siudent funds

Brackfield, ancther giant private equity firm struck three
times inthevear Firstly in Novemberin Germany, tey
acquired 91% of Alstna (market cap €2on), the arly Sure
German only office investor. In Belgium in Februasy t1is
year, they anncunced an agread bid for Befimimo, an
unloved owner of prirmarily Brussels cffces. Asif that
was not encugh, just before our year enc they anrounzec
tne agreed take private of Hiberria, Duplin's only isted
office developer. In each of th%e deals Brookf 2l pa?d
substantial premiums {+20%) to the urdisturbed nare
prce pat stll accurred at 2lose to o ever belaw et a m:T
value, Jfices remain cut of favour with stock ma-ker
Imvestors and therefore these busingsses were - mthe
eyes of private equity — cnderyalied 1n tre publin domarr
The Company held both Alstna and Hioerig Intne 2ase
ofthe latter, our folding was 4™ nf treissu=e \.wwt«_:l T%-

naa T AL TG

transaction is bittersweeat whilst we saw a significant
valaation gair we Nave st a well managec company
Witk strong techn’cal expertise In developing prnrme office
space Noteasy to replace

Ciorporate activity between hstec comoanes was also
mucn 10 evidence  n Novemnoer, Landsec acquired U+
iprevicusly called Devalooment Secunties) for £170m. at
anayewatennrg 70 premiam to the undisturbed share
price Tais smallurbar -egene-ation stock's performance
nad peen lacklustre as investors worned aboul its balance
sheet ard madility to fund s long dated cevelooment
pipeling For Landsec, this was a pracursor 1o announcirg
a strategic initiative 1n regional regeneration with the
acquismion of 75% of MediaCity in Mancrester (£426m)

(TP the newly hsted Eastern Europear logistics developer
agreed to buy Deutsche industre, o small isted Germar
property comgaany owning secondary industral assets
and developmert land acress Germany Whikst the
acquisition currency was snares in CTP the price reflected
a 48% premium to the undisturbed price At tne time we
felt this transaction was a positive read deross to our
other German holdings, Simus and VIB Vermoegen A
couple of months later, DIC, 3 isted manager of property
funds, su-prised tne market with a nartial tender for 51%
of VIB Vermoegen at €51 oer share This well run Bavanar
logistics owrer /developens listed or a local exchange
and not the main market D © were therefore able 10
acguire over 10% nefore anncuncirg theirintentions arc
they quickly reacherd 25% F)f the share capital (abead of
the tender] At this point | chose Lo sell cur holding (3% af
the Company ¢ net asgﬁtg, at a ‘nlock premiurn’ of £54 per
=rare - was fearful that B C's control would resalt ir the
loss of the mighly ~enarced management team and this

ras nome to pass with CEQ an CFO departing Howewver
we nave peen hanasomely rewarded through the
~orporate actraty The share price at the begin~ing of tre
frnarcral year was Just under €30 per share This company
Nas Jeer o <2y Component 0 our [BgIshing exposure Gver
more than adesans and wamranted more axaTination,
hercs tha attachea rase study

In Sweaen S3B e mighly acapsitres socialinfrask o ctare
compary. announces wortrel of a small residertial
tosiress Amasten Wearad recently completed oo owr
LSINess ard we had cegan te dulla a

Fe btu Dl was 2 200 arenrlrm to s here
3 b;;,»'\r*r:_] SNd" S g montrearlier

r&Sear.nor tr

holerg

RS

Fmalh in March we saw tne final acti~ tne MoKay
saga _orgsta-cing snareralders wllna
b—en anarz ot ourees tratthig sl rar ooner o
East office and .ndustrial propert; was heing rater: d”y
uncer, 2l aed by tha equity market F’-‘ﬂwmh—l\l S

- oo small and e skares oo ligaed o ted
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Manager's report
continued

regard, there are many comparies which are just 1wo
small and need 1o join forces with felioy minnow s
The key with this business was the figh guality of tne
portfolio. We were pleased to read that Rotnsanild
had urdertaken a competitive sales orocess wrich
culmmnated in an agreed bid from Workspace, a lister
owner of flexiple office space in London. Owning 9%
of the issued capital we were mvited 10 Grovias an
irevocable undertaking (subject to no bigher offer)
which we provided The bid was two thirds casn
(209p} and one third shares and reflected a premium
of 30% to the undisturbed price We will open

a holding In Workspace in May on completion

of the transaction

Tne pnysical property portfolio proguced a total
return for the 12 months of 18 1% made up cof a
capital return of 15 4% and an income return of 2,77,
This can ne compared to the return fraom the MSCH
All Property index wnich produced a tatal return of
23 9% made up of a capital ceturn of 18 0% and an
income refurn of 5.0%

The care driver of returns was rental growtn at

the two industnal properties in Wandswortr and
Cloucester At Gloucester, we et the largest unit at
a ~ew headline rent on the estate following a short
marketing period (o an onhne nealth food business
This will allews us to move rents forward witn otner
lease everts on the estate scheduled for 2022 ana
20273 InWandswortk we completed a nombar of
rew lettings including a letting fo the arline igisure
fashign brand Sweaty Betty Trey plan1c wietne
premises as a ohotographiz stucho for tneir snlire
offenirg We are dehghted to add them to the terant
I're-up and tnis not anly refiects tre diversity of
tanants an the astate but also exemplifes the
srsatiity of uses in a sta~dard stael ool

~aostnal soleirg

Atine Colorraces oot restadrart coeralor manoy
Lart Aot Pot, completed thewr it out a-d cpe
~g a2 soor a5 TOVID 19 restrohons oo
1~ May 20217 Trey na.e benom
Aoract aacittior (o tnelatal area Ve ame surert,

—<glzng coportomtias 1o gelt s agset

Revenue eartings for the cur-ent vear rave increases by
almost 129 ove the pror yea”

The increass in earnirgs was attr’butable to the first half.
At the »alf year stage we ar-cuneeq samrings some 347%
ahead of the pricr year. It was fagged at the time that
this imarease woula ret oe repaated in tre secona halt

The comparisen of the first half {April to September
20211 was being made agamst April to Seotemner

2020, wnick had suffered an extreme fall nincome As
areactior to tre COVID-19 pandemic many companies
suspended ¢ividenas and, In some cases even nanzelling
oneswhich rad alreaay been announced Distributions
were very caulious against such an uncertain backdrop
I~ the cur-ept year tne vacomation programme was well
underway and confidance began fo return in the first half

Comparng secord ralf earmings yea- 10 year v isolation
they fell by aourd 277 although tisis not a farr
comparisor, Jast before March 2027 we finally received
a tax refura as a -esult of a long ranning reclam 1hig
enhanced tme earrings for tne year to March 2021 so

a more realistic companson of the secord nalf of tne
year srows d falt of asound 129 ratner thar the 275
hignhchied above The explanation for tris 12% fall

19 explainea largely oy the fact that many comoameas
~hanged therr divdend ached . les. not o~y in iming ot
also tne imecuency atnual payers moved 1o paying alt
veurly malfyearly to quarta-ly g2 30 the amounts Being
salg N easr astnbutior weare orcoornorately lower Tae

~eyy DavMRnt s oo e dies will ra e heer established for

the 0TIt mIng yean 30 we Juntexpect s (o have ar

Lngenygimeatt

Tz gyarall rrand for sarmmgs s posimye, e majonty of
TOMIBATIEL DAy E res TRl GISIbuho s althcugn thare

20007 Al e atar seetor e

47 30

are s'grif cantly arderve ght,

; Tt =
o leelzand lhenogt 2

U L M




As previously documented, providing the Board 15
comfortable with longer term income prospects, it 1s
prepared to supplement distnbutions from the reven.ue
reserve to cover shorter term fluctuations.

Gearing and Debt

The Chairman has already commenteq or gearnrg
levels and highlighted the benefits of our flexible
borrowing structure,

This flexibility has been crugial in such a volatile

vear Our gearing oscillated ing 10 - 16% rangs as

we responded to the dramatic changes in market
sentiment through the year Over the year we utihsed
both our revolving loan faciimes and our CFD capability
i addition to our longer-term debt. Although the
shorter-term debtis linked to market rates and therefore
the cost will ingrease, the flexibility this affords in
adjusting geanng levels 1s more of an advantage than
the lower cost of fixed term debt. We aim to achieve a
balance between pricing and flexibility which is why our
debt s sourced from a number of providers

Cutlook

As recently as this January, central bankers across

the world were indicating that they beheved that
inflaticnary pressures were transitory. The risein
energy costs seenin Q4, 2021 were then super:harged
by events in Ukraine in February and March Sapoly
chain disruption, particularly around Cninese
shutdowns and post COVID-19 workforge shartages,
Fave compounded these pressures Theresult has
been a period of sustained inflation, Eurolana CPI
regched 7 5% n Apnloits sixth consecutive nevi
manshly hign The UK's March figure was 7%. We now
expect these elevated figures to continue into 2022 and
for the central panks to be forcad to react quickly vath
interest rate rises The unanswerad queshon 13 whetaer
raisirg mertgage costs, whicn will cool zonsumer
demand and nouse price growih, will co muck 1o
assistin reducing the supply driven pressures uiid
cost inflation s equally strong and we expect much
notential developmenrt to be mathballed as the ~equirad
“et.rm Or canital emplicyed evaporates Howesar

trus droo e potential supply witl form an underpi~ “or
rental growth where dermand 1s stable o7 growing

Qur strategy "emains twin-tracked We will Corbinge

to own long a~d strong income which uffers ganume
mdex-linkad income whilst simuitanecusly mairtaiming
exposare to markets where we see terant dernand
remaling rooust even in the face of an eco~omie
slowdown Rerawed focus on balante sheet stremgrn,
debt structures and flexioihity will nelp us ensu-e that
wie steer the Comoanry carefully through the terraim -f

G rates

AT A RO B ARG 2T

Wnting this outlook in the muddie of May, pan-Europgan
real estare equities have already collectively currected
4% from the start o* the new financial year {1 st April},
This fallis greater than the FTSE 100, 250 or the
EuroStoxx 600 The most leveraged businesses have,
praedictably, bear hit harcest but previcusly highly rated
busiresses witn strong growth prospects Pave also
been hit hard and we expect 1o find valus amongst those
wiatr the most secure balance sheets Moo~ of our world
offers solid earnings from real assets; bulaings which
are often crunial to g conpany’s operatior or & Dasle
necessity for domestic users

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Funa Marage-
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Manager’s report
continued

VIB Vermoégen AG

We began investing in this Bavarian based property
company in 2011 when the share price was €8 50 per
share (market cap of €235my}. The founder and CED
{until 2018} initially focused on a tight geographical
area around the company's hometown of Ingolstadt
We were attracted to the deep local knowledge and
exceilent links to local banks enabling the company
to secure high quality secured lending. Over the next
decade, the business expanded to a portfolio of €1 4bn
focused on logistics/light industrial {70%) alongside
some roadside retail (mostly garden centres). The
value delivery came primarily from the very astute
purchases of land and industrial assets requiring
refurbishment in the heartland of the booming
automotive industries of Southern Germany. The
company always maintained a conservative balance
sheet and whilst dvidends grew consgistently the
pay-out ratic never exceeded b50% enabling organic
reinvestment into the development pipeline

Share Price 2011 to 2022

-

0 - —— —— —— —— —

a - -

1 S —

Our hotding grew consistently over the next decade (we
only sold shares modestly on 8 separate occasions) and
by the end of 2021 1t had reached aver 1.5m shares with
avalue of €74m By this time the market cap exceeded
€1.2bn and the iongstanding management team
continued to deliver year an year.

In February 2022 DIC Asset AG, alisted property asset
manager announced that they had acquired 10% of the
issued capital and intended to make a partial tender

for up 1o 50% at €51.5 per share. We did not want to

find ourselves owning equity in a business which was
controlled by a third party At the same time, DIC were
happy tc buy ahead of the tender date and we extracted
an exit price of €54 per share. This turned out te be the
highest price at which the stock traded in its carporate
histary. Whilst we were disappointed to lose such a well-
managed and successful business, the returns generated
over g long period of time warranted closer examination

Over the 11 years of ownershig, the return from this
imvestment had been an astonishing 984% or a compound
return of 26.6% per annum (assuming dividends reinvested)



Portfolio

2
3
£

0.5%
as at 31 March
2021 2021
e _Fo00 %
UK Securities’
- quoted 518417 33.2 395,644 283
UK Investment Properties . 96,255 - - <117 A B
UK Total 614,672 39.3 478,715 3472
Continental Eurcpe Securities
- quated . 940,744 60.2 921,807 658
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 99.5 1,400,516 1000
- CFD (creditor)/debtor? 7,657 0.5 (147) -
Total Investment Positions 1,563,073 100.0 1,400,375 1000 UK Securities 2
_ . UKPropety 8
| Continental Eurcpe E]
as at 31 March . Securities B
oo ’ ‘ 2021 2021 1" CFD Debtars
UK Securities
- quoted 518,417 30.5 395,644 256
- CFD exposure? 57,324 3.4 45,441 29
UK Investment Properties 96,255 5.7 83071 25 E
UK Total 671,996 30.6 524156 340 2
Continental Europe Securities g:
- quoted 940,744 55.3 921,801 59.5 &
- CFD exposure?® 87,318 5.1 100,560 6.5 3
Total investment exposure* 1,700,058 100.0 1546517 100.0 @
as at 31 March , ' UK Property
e 2020 2020 2019 2018 @
Total investments £1,555m £140Tm £1,155m £1,297m  £1,316m %
Net assets £1,563m £1.326m  £1,136m  £1,328m £1,256m ﬁ
=4
>
UK quoted property shares 33% 28% 31% 33% 3% P
Qverseas guoted property shares 60% 66% 61% 59% 62% 2
Direct property (externallyvalued) =~ 6% 5% 8% 8% . 7% .i%
5
as at 31 March z
2022 2021 2021 &
Benchmark Company Benchmark a
GBP 33.9 336 279 783 =
EUR 41.9 47 3 512 5089
CHF 7.4 71 67 66
SEK 16.3 163 129 129
NOK 0.5 D4 13 13
T UK secunties includes one unlisted holding (0.01%) @
* Netunrealised (loss)/gain on CFD contracts held as balance sheet (creditor)/debtor. §_
3 Gross value of CFD positions. %
4 Total nvestmenits ‘lustrating market exposure including the gross value of CFD and "RS posit ons. §.
g
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Investment portfolio by country

Market
value
%
Austria T o
CA Immobilien 7,008 04
LT Tiem o
Belgium
Warehouses De Pau 28,661 18
VGP 28,569 18
Cofinimmo 18,609 12
Aedifica 11,976 08
Xior Student Housing 9,233 0.6
Care Property Invest 7,106 05
Montea 3,134 02
Intervest Offices & Warehouses 2,604 02
T oggm 7
Finland
Kojamo L 14783 09
. _ 1478 09
France
Argan 79,107 51
Gecina 23,214 15
Klepierre 21,712 14
Covivio 13,193 08
Carmila 7,097 05
Altarea ) 1,606 01
T e sa
Germany
Vonovia 149,893 9.6
LEG Immabilien 55,529 36
Aroundtown 32,740 21
TAG Immabilien 19,557 13
Adier Group 5,394 03
Deutsche Euroshop L 4934 03
. 268047 172
reland
Insh Residential Properties 1,981 01
S S 1,981 01
Netheriands
Eurocommercial Properties 43,3104 28
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 14,349 09
NSI 4,783 03
’’’’ T 62236 10
Norway
Entra _ 68% 0
Spain
Merlin Properties 31
Arima Real Estate 15

Sweden
Fastighets Balder B 42,934
Castellum 25,690
Cibus Nordic Real Estate 23,553
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 23,424
Fabege 20,824
Wwihlborgs 14,533
Sagax 11,870
Catena 9,27%
Platzer Fastigheter 3,723
Dios Fastigheter 2,818
Klarabo Sverige 1,713
Atnum Ljungberg ) 1,094
o 181455

Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property
Swiss Prime Site

United Kingdom

Segro 77,334
Safestore Holdings 54,228
Industnals REIT 49,892
Phoenix Spree Deutschland 43,129
Derwent London 38,242
Picton Property Income 35,864
LandSec 35,662
Londonmeitric Property 31,524
McKay Secunties 22,343
Ediston Property 22097
Secure Income REIT 19,574
Unite Group 18,368
Sirius Real Estate 17,854
Supermarket Income REIT 13,125
CLS Holdings 9,897
Tritax Big Box REIT 9,365
LXIREIT 5,321
Target Health Care 5,310
Primary Health Properties 3,850
Atrato Cap 2,341
Helical 1,928
Cap & Regional 1,169
' ' o - 518417
Direct Property 96,255

CFD Positions (included
in current liabilities) 7,657

1,563,073

Total Investment Positions

Companies shown By couniry of ‘stng

Market

value
%

49
35
32
29
2.4
23
23
20
14
14
13
12
11
08
06
0.6
03
03
G3
01
01
01
3.

€2

05

1000



Twelve largest equity investments

VONOVIA

31 March o 2021

Shareholding

WARGAN

T

31 March 2021

Sharehold\-ng

SEGRO
31 March 2021

Shareholding
£77.3m _ £678m

value  _£1499m £1460m - value £79.5m  £540m  value

% of Investment | % of investment % of investment

portfolior  _ 88%  9.4%  portfolio’ 47%  35%  portfolio’ AS5% a4k
% of equity 1 % of equity % of equity

owned 0.5% 05% cwned 3.6% 35% owned 0.5% 0.6%
Share price €42.31 €55.70 Share price £119.6 £80 4 Share price 1346.0p 938.0p

Vonovia (Germany)

Vorovia s a German hsted residential
company ard ithe largest real estate
company In Continental Eurcpe by market
capralisation Attheendaf 2071, the
company owned a portfolio of €98bn spht
netween Germany (S0%), Sweden (8%)
and Austna (2%); the portfolio ncreased
ty o 28% following the acguisition of peer
Peulsche wohnen, which completed in,
October 2027 Vonoviahas developed a
large in-house srallsman organization
which allows the company o runa
strategy focLsing on modernizing 1te
portfeho The compary s involved in the
wihole vanue chan of [he residential sector
viats rental busimess (/9% of group
ERITDAY its walue-add branch {energy and
mutmedia relatad seneres, /%), ts third
patty development business (6%) and 15
recurring zaes program (8%) vonovia's
management has been darticurarly pro-
actvewth publr authonties, ~omplying
witn regulatons and assurming a sonia
role which shoulc allow them o benefit
from cnbical political goodwillinthe future
g2 the Sinct regulglony environmeni

of tne German residential se~io7 in

2021 Vorosia deliverad strong results in
absclute and relatrvetarms The corrpany
denvered FRRA NTA grovth of +14% Yo
onaper share basis and ke tor kg rental
growth atwas resilient at +3.2%. The five-
veastotal sharehaldor =lur 1o 371702,22

a5 Jeen -5

1 Notes:

Argan (France)

Argaras at ranch compary, creatod in
7000 by Jean-Claude Le Lan, which nas
hzen hsted since 2007 Treobecin

of the company masbeen o ouild a
portfano of premium ogist & assets whinh
Juarantee a siable and high occupanty
rateat arcund 100% The compary 15
verhrallyiriegralad ard has “all sontrol
of theont revalue chain oy identifying
future noeds of prospactve and curran:
tenarts and developing assets on trer
Lehalt Theretore, Argan s ab.e to caoture
the deve-cper margn while bavirg hittle
longnskon the leting side 2021, the
portleho valuc amounted to £40n [100%
expased to France, with 33% exonged o
tra Graater Par s region) | ne company

delveraa strong 2000 resultswit an
ERRS NEY per share up 40% 707 anr aved
etk 3reizl vy sorsaranyo L1 ol 13%

I he s2lgnvely low aradend payout al
hatov: 50% of distrbutalble profit allows
the corrpany (o ea noast ard renvesin
nawy deveDpmen: pro s
debtz Tne managoron: gtine Zompany
ounder Jean-

while repayirg

has been assamed by i3
AN TN 3 argsids ramly
~agtathom ok

T -

aude 2

remibers W% G theo s
13 asteanyguacnoe T ahgrment s

gl srarenolcar eturr gy

1

Segro (UK}

5egronas become the largest LK SET oy
market cap andis the largest operatar of
logist.cs and ndustral property listod in
the < vt atoral portielo of F18br {spht
£a%Inthe LK, 34%n Continental -urape,
Wilm /% urban warerowses 29%hig
nexes and 4% orheruses) 11 the UK, the
groun iz Manly exonsed 1o Greater | ordon
inaustra andicgistics Rentargrowih

n these markets hag been extramely
slrong ag thers remains an acute supply
darnand mbalance fuelled by ~enants’
requireirents to dealvath the growsthir

o aommerse 10 Burope, Germany ancd
France are the group s largest markoets
wiath gy shires these markets have 1
lower, 2t sul pos e, rental growth
outlook fard are geographicaly less
spancoaratraned) but hke the uhave
SEON Y0 HrOMpress Gn as Iryesiors nae
pad keennr v elds for acresz toorang
NCOMe SegrD s eensiy2 developmoal
=xposJeinal Lmanages largely 1o pre-
let and drvrdop at yields significantly ir

OHCASS Gl ncestmen 00

VRURS A%

At e T

T POS 0een 3 L
“ormalE i are e both 23 nas and NA&Y
I8 reoh chareke cor

[eig R e
“oturng, bae fuevear tatal sharckolder

sryrnbasoeen £ 0%

» “he percentage of Investment portfolic positions set ou! above Inciude exposures through CFD fer both the indivicual positions end the por:folio

> Thelnvestment Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 16 are the physical hodings anly ncluded inthe investments held at fair vaiue n the Balance Sheet.
The prafit or loss positions on the CF D contracts {1 . not the investment exposure) are also shown on page 1€ and are ncluded in the Balance Sheet as debtars or

creditors in the Current assets.
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Twelve |argest equity investments
continued

31 March

Shareholding
value .

% of investment
portfolio®

% of equity o
owned

Share price

 E61.5m

_3.6%

1.0%
€24.18

Klepierre (France)

Klepierre 1s a Furopean shopping certre
operator, managing around 140 centres
itk a tolal portfolio valaation of FUR21EN
Ihe main exposuras are n france/Helgum
Q0% of totar), Naiy (19%), Scandiravia
{15% and Ibena (10%] Thecompany,

ke 3!l shapping mentre aviners, has peen
impastedby trie COVID crisis and sngong
shift iowards o-commerce 35 a growing
ratal “hannel, which have hurt underlving
operations However in 2027 the company
was able o past £PS growth of +2 9%
YoV wita EPRA NTA broadly flat YoY. On

g relare basis, the company cenefits
Tamts forus on Continentai b uropa
STEre ShoDDIng centras are gnanored by

“a0ri eta lers cantrary o most UK ar LS
centors anonored oy department stores

#hich ha. e been undargoing significan
chalienges. The financial cosition of the

Cebito B TihL ano ol B T

-d narefite frore tha evpererce of

iLaad S ren Chairman o ine Supoerasory

;

e

SRVl

T Notes:

LEG

31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Shareholding | Shareholding o
value - £60.4m  £440m  valve £55.5m  £63.m
% of iInvestment % of investment

portfolio? 36% | Z8%  portfolioT _33% 4%
% of aquity % of equity

owned 2.1% 2.6% owned 0.9% 0.9%
Share price 1340p 796p Share price €103.25 €1122
Safestore (UK) LEG (Germany)

Saestore = the 1K '3 1argest seil siorase | =51 a Garmar resdential “omoany

operator, wminG o 1 hll sloes, primanily

N the UK (a-d waigmec mwards | ondsn
and - he South Eastwaith o 4% o roial

group 2to

and has rerontly necr expandng =
Buropean ites (Inrougn ooth

P

sSIrLziures

Ir addmon the sorrpary
has 4 arge fantprrn e Fans marka!

r

anaaunght pwnersning taking

iootholds n Holne, span amd Belg um

Safagioramaz 3 oesl ndlas

peranng

platfarm wheoh, g ange ih peerBg
Yellzy allows 1 dorninale the i

siorage markst, part culary noarms

ol snhee

Ihe“oroary has d-reen .

2arnge rewth both orgamirat

Aandrars

ke S L

~-Lpant

TomenTs)atil

taruzad or the cocnomically sirong region
AF Nortt Rrone Yastprana 1 sons s’ the
lar. SOMMPETISE M 3RrTTAry
b morzinan Tor 0 uras wnder
manigement arada ~ompned vale ol
£1ahn 'rozdd tioe o the strong facus or

=)

:real2slare

Ge Thor markes

0 ol az theer 2
stllwithur sthict and conservali

crhera 1 o odany ras s san
acwartage o be ess axposed to rogulaionry
sk than Ansrs witr a 3orhn Sxpasars 2

13 beneft frae a raatively 2ige sharo of
. DS Ang tenantg [0

> The percentage of mvestment portfolia posil ons set oJt above Noude expos.ares through S0 ‘or poth ke ndicua postons and the porfonc

> The Investment Zortfolic by Country pasitions set ou: on page 146 are the physical holdings ony nc uded rithe nvagiments heit gt “a rvalye 'rithe 3a'ance Sheet
The srofit ar l98s positiors on the CFD coniracts (Le. notthe nvestment exposure) are alsa show o~ page 76 and are ircluded in the Balarce Sheet as cebtors ar

zrearars inthe Current assets.



industrials

\‘. PHOENIX
2 SPREE

i

i MERLIN
31 March 2021 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
Shareholding - Sharehclding . Shareholding '
value ©oovale o E51.9m  £328m  value . E47.8m  £199m
% of investment % of investment © % of investment
portfolo™ 3% - | porfoliot - 31%  21% portfolio” _28%  13%
% of equity | % of equity % of equity
ownad 9.2% - owned 14.7% 10 4% owned 1.1% 0.6%
Share price 198p Share price 382p 330p Share price €10.59 €8 72
Industrials Reit (UK) Phoenix Spree (UK) | Merlin Properties (Spain)
'ndustnals REIT (formerly known as Phoenix Sprees a LK ngiad ~ompany ’ Merliniz 3 Spanisa diversified RFIT with

Stenprop) 1s a UK focused mult et
ndugtrial business The porfolio has
peen rransformoed over a number of

years ¢ focus solely on tha UK AL
sector, and the £570m portfelo s now

2 90% MLI (as at September 2071), and
moving towards 100% in the near torm
The UK MLI asset ~lass has seen strong
capiial vaiue growth, driven by hath vicld
rompression and orgong ERV growth
toMarch 2022 Industrials REIT has seen
lke for like ERY growth of +4 3%}, with
rents coming from a low base [average
passing rent in the portfoho was £5 72

at March 2027) Ir additon to1ts strong
underlying proparty fundamentrals the
company's Hive operating platform ges
the company access 1o data on enguiry
leverls and demand, a5 well as allowsng for
inrovative oparational approaches such as
th=use of digitar short [orm smar: 'eases,
specdirg tha cthng proness anc reducing
any negatve drag from oortfoha vacancy
Talal sharcholzer raturn since (PO IR Jure
2018 ras been +95%

1 Notes:

with aaseta in Gerrany, specfeally Berlin
resigential assets - he lotalvalaatinn

of the rompany's pronarty asse
ER2m at FY271, and rhe~ampany
cortinues 1o benel from the ongoing
s.pply derrand imoalance n Berhe
residential wheoh has ed "o abousing
shaortage The Migiandacke {(Gornan
apealen

rentraginehor ragulator wias
In 20T e proying e astlack tor free
rmarkat rental grovth as wen as Inereasing
prices of condomin urms, toth of which
plased bnosni Spree in a good positior

I )7 thecomoany ac ~ieved @ total

retarn (FRRA N LA gravith - ey dends) of
8% whirh vas aded by the ke tor ke
anmua s onupl ol o 3% 1mand ton
o streng oroocrty fundarn2nia-s the
sarmpany in baian 3 share auyzactk n

IR

I3t an g aragedarcusl o Ut

snd NAY of T 8% Larg Inestratagy o

mprese hot=als

AN S QNG b metne g

on & per share bass The five-year toral

sham neldir relure bas oeen +5J%

a3 €13br po-tickn [The maonty of the
company's assels araoffices {(49%),
3 2XPOSUTe

and the company (o LEsEes
onmz ar cies, pnmanly Madnd and
Rarcelora. Inadditon to tha office
portfolio tn2 Company 9wins snepang
centres (17%) 10gistics (7 03%), rel casa

inolhor

assets 7 4%, wits 10% of ass
e

uges 20770 e loqishi s assels wers

tr

1 sirongast contributar ta valuat.on
growith increasirg e value by +14% ke
for ke, cffzsetting a neqatye move nihe
shoppirg zentres of 2%, tatal portiohn

e for e grawethiwas 2% g noined
drrea e comoanye FEPRANTA +4% Yoy,
and the ~arrpany was glsc abla o dree
FEOYaorchare growth atarate of -4% " he
~ormpary &nswras Nat groste doos not
requre aeessive fnanc al risk ard 17/ for
tre year sna martanad at 8% Green s
SUPEALTIS NG Inkenas rate enronmant the

alaninlin ankE i nrotec iy 237 Ings
wMith 10

igndebr marant, o

o of its debs af Nxed rates, ared ar

aro oo

foe-yuar inlal snareholder relur nag

ooen w1

> The percentage of investment portfolio positions set out above iInciude expasures thraugh CFD for both the ndvidual positions and the portfolic

> The Investrnent Portfolio by Country positions set out on page 16 are the physica holdings only neluded in the investments held at farr valug inthe Balance Sheet
The profit or loss positions on the CFD cantraats {1 & notthe investment exposure) are also shown an page ™6 and areircluded in the Balance Sheet as debtors or

creditors in the Current assats.
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Twelve largest equity investments
continued

ﬂ‘ule.:andSecun"cies’_,,

31 March

2021

Sharenolding
value

% of investment
portfalio”

E45.2m  £32 Bm

27% 21%

% orlje?ci]uity
owned
Share price

0.8%
786p

0.7%
6390p

Land Securities (UK)

I andsecs one of the UK's largest RE- i,
with @ partfoho valuedat F11bn The
cormpany's assets are g mix of offices

e a0%) retanassats (c 30% spit behwaen
snoopInd centres outlels, and retal parks)
ard otheruges (¢ 10% such as 'esurn

aszets and hotels); 89% of the assets arein
cent-a London Since aning the business
17 2070 new CFO Mark Allen nas soughit 1o
altor the companvy's stralegy, pledoing to
=2l aul of i3 non core assels (£ g hoteig,
leisure assets and retarl parks), while
mereasirg the £ize of the development
pipe Ine 1o fnnus onarga m xed use
c-hemes that ot-ars do not nave the
sapat i es o delver magdoenio the

e office development pipaline

mpamy NGy, BHIANS 10 spar an
adctaral £ a0

Laederelopments

TIVE yREIS DN i

witha 20% prafit un

fargen Balance sheelmanagerani
Pag oeen malately conser stz sth g ory
{10 dyegrs nat ooty

ana debt marus
ciaTxarall’s al Seprertar

kgl

% The o pary nteedo o
roerls Tapry 3L ndiee de g aprman:

ot et e BN W ts Ro Btc tekale RUlol 16t R Tl R ots] as

Lemd ar Pt arget

L drerr girr g the o4

Caoamarna dh szt Sas pesn G%

t Notes:

PISIE

Swess Prapeity

31 March

Shareho\d-ing

31 March

£53 9m
35%

0.7%

€1174

value £44.6m _ £42.0m value — £440m
% of iInvestment % of investment

portfohc” . 2.8% 27%  portfolior o 26%
% of equity , % of equity

owned 1.0% 10% cwned 0.6%
Share price CHF121.8 CHF1158.2 Share price €114.3

PSP (Switzerland)

PSP Swiss Froperty 1z one of Switzerlard's

alus

proper::c
"rege aremarty office and bugircss
fLonprme
Switzerlard's koy

ahinrs m

*hor macr
ar14% ° ST
has rroveg oo
s 2 e%
repot~d good “su
EFS e

ELTas

riioms e it

[he ~amoaary

T NP0 nh ZPRA
reas ng &% Yo wile RN
Ased v 0% A Thooampang sl

benefit from a de 2
rhepatents toacd
[ S

anesal profio

comart pinaline v

coTpan e

ReE el

DA% andthea senrnaa

EPar

YN A o7 130

rmar il sherem 2l er 7ol b

8]

i,

Gecina (France)
Geninag the largest office landlord

Furcprwatr a porifoiio of more than

£0Jnr “otuserd a'nas

[N Fenl
oM T owns g scanortiche
Fann ol aaidenia isets lof which
studenthousirg, agan

et e tre bans egar

prodorm.nart
T=omsmpany devalons 353
sith the current managaement 1

T Ernaroe

elyrns

SUpanzong on 9 dose oprant proe ne o
S ddpntabe doveradintbe samim g vnan,
Tr =iz acortndarnnof the oinl returs

Siraleqy e oo paAany Fisrancally

Implemen s

Trosarepang oo

g T

C|an Tt gans
2dam agoars

A0 ac T Ay Torentar

PRI L B £ R Ll s s 6 MVl SO
4oyomry Fnerpe (orat sharenores
et e

> The percentage of mvestment port*ol 0 posn ons set oui abave INSiuce exposJres through TR forboth the ndrua poslions encthe paro o

> The!nvesimen: Portfo io by Country posit ons set au’ on page 15 are the physica hoic ngs only noiuced -n theinvesiments heidat farvalae n:he Balance Shee:
The profit or loss positors enthe CFJ contracts { @ notthe Investrent exposure) are alsc show or cage 1% ardare nclucec e the Belance Sheet as dentors or

creditars inthe CJurrent assets.



Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail "industrial Residential and Other
ground rents
WestEndof London  37.3% - 12 6% 05% 50.4%
Inner London* 1 4% 371% 38.5%
South West - 11 1% - 11.1%
Total _387%  48.2% 12.6% 0 5% . 100.0%

“ler Lundon defined as Inside the North and south Circular

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

1o byears
5to 10 years

B 10to75years
W 15t020years
» 20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Ltd,
Graham & Green, Happy Lamb Hot Pot,
1Rebel, Specsavers

The property comprses a large
mixed-use block in Bayswaler, constructed
nthemid-1970s The siteextendsto
approximately Z acres on the narth east
corner of the junction of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Road. close to
Bayswater tube station anct engong
development of The whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished i 2075 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Waitrose

-

APTUAlEERDT R ARSC LA B

Gross rental

income

Ferrier Street Industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, { ockdown Bakers

Sire of just aver anacre, 50 mietres from
Wandsworth fown railvay statron s an
area that 1s predorminantly residental
The estate comprises 16 smail nidustnal
units generally iet 1o 3 mix of smadl

0 medium sized private companies
Planmng permission granted i
December 2019 fora mixed use
employment led redevelopment

Contracted rent

- £28m

£175m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industriat

Tenure: Freenold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

The 10 Centre comprises s industnal
units occupied by two tenants and sits
onad s acre site Gloucesteor Busness
Park iz lor ated to the sast of Junction
PlAof the Mband one mile 1o the

east of Glourester City Centre The
property also has easy access to the
247 providing good inks to the M4 via

uncrior *h

£10.25m
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The Company’s mvestment objective is to maxirmise
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and securities of property companies and property
related businesses internationally and alsc in
Investment property located in the UK

The benchmark is the FTSE EPRA/NARE!T Develcped
Furope Capped Net Total Return Index in Sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, 1s free-float based and as
at 31 March 2022 had 105 constituent companies.
The index limits exposure to any one company 10 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata. The
benchmark website www epra.com contains further
details about the index and perfarmance.

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investment trust company.
The Company has no emptoyees 1ts wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy, corporate governance;

risk management and internal control; the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting imits
on gearing and asset allocation and moenitering
investment performance.

The Board has appointed BMO Investment Business
Limited as the Company's Alternative Investment
Fund Manager (AIFM) with portfolio management
delegated 1o Thames River Capital LLP Mareus
Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund Manager to the Company
on behalf of Thames River Capital LLP and Alban
Lhonneur is Deputy Fund Manager. Gearge Gay is

the Direct Property Manager and Joanne Elliott the
Finance Manager. They are supported by a team of
equity and portfolio analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Invastment Management
Agreeament can be found in the Report of the Directors
cn pages 43 10 45.

in accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary to the Company
BNP Paribas also provides custodial and
administrative services t¢ the Company

Company Secretarial services are provided

by BMO Investment Business Limited.

A summary of the terms of the \nvestment
Management Agreement are set cut on pages
54 and 55.




Strategy and investment pdlicies

The mvestment selection process seeks to identify
well managed companies of all sizes The Manager
generally regards future growth and capital
appreciation potertial more highly than immeciate
vield or discount 1o asset value.

Although the investment chjective allaws for
mvestmerton an nternational basis, the Comaary's
benchmark 1s a pan-European Index ana the majonty
of thenvestmoents wall oe located im tmat geoyi aohinadl
area. Direct property investments are located in the
Uk only

T Company may employ levals of gearing from
urme to time wath the aim ¢f erhancing
subject to an averall maximem of 255
portfolio value

In ertain mar<et comditions the Manager may
constden it gredent not to employ gearing at all,
and ro hold part of the portfohio in cash

The currert asset allocation guiceline s 104
net cash to 25% net geanng {as a percentage

1
2
H

of portfolic value). 2
As a dedicated investor in the property sector g
the Company cannaot offer diversification outside 3
that sector, however, within the portfolio there 'nvestment properties are val.ed every sncmaonths by -
are imitations, as set out below, on the s1ze of an externai mdeperdent valuer. Valuations of all the
individual Investments held to ensure that there Group's properties as at 31 March 2022 have beer
is diversif|cat|on"withm the portfolio. carmed out ona R 05 Rea Book' nasis and thase

valuatiors have been adopted 1~ tre accounts
The maximum holding in the stock of any oressuer -
orof a single asset s hmited to 15% of the portfolic 8
at the point of acquisition In addition, any Poldings In The Group charges 75% of anmual Dase maragement g
excess of 5% of the portfolio must not in aggregate fees and finance costs to capital, in line with the §
exceed 40% of the portfolio Board's expected long-term split of returns in the form §

of caprtal gans and ncome Al performance fees are g

The Manager currently applies the foliowing
guidelnes for asset allocation

charged to capital

It 15 tne Soars's current intertior to hols no mors

UK listed equities 25-50% @
Continental European Coo thar 157 ¢f the portfolic In hsted closec-ended g
listed equities S 45-75% Inyestmeant comparies 2
Direct Property UK~ 0-20% H
Other listed equities 0 - 5% SOMe COmDanes irvesting i comrmearsial or E
Co o T T T T s residential prooerty are stroctured gz hsten axternally £
Listed bonds __ —————— e = - 0-5% maraged clozed-endec Investment companas =
Unguoted investments o B-5% anc therztore form patt of our ineestment Lniverse §'

5

Althougn tnis s rot o model asually *avoured oy our
Fund Managar, someinvestnents ara made in tese

. : =
strictures i grderto aceess 4 partioular sector o the 2
[+]
narkel ar wnere tre maracement 12amis regarmaec b4
= =
as esoeTally strong ¥ those comparies arow and 5
i =
ar nesy COMDanies come to the markeat in s format
the —ung Manager may wisk o INCredse e xpng are
te tnase vehiles f the Manager washes to imerease
|7 - ;
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company’s
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators ('KPIs'):

KPI

Tre Jirectors regard the cut-performance of the
Company's net asset value total return relative to
the penchmark as bewrg an overalt measure of value
delivered to the snareholders’ aver the longer tarm

Board monitoring
Tne 3oard reviews the performance in detall at eacn meeting

and aiscusses the results ana outlock with the Manager

KPi

The principal objective of the Company 1s a total
return objective nowever, the Furd Manager also
aims to deliver a reliable dividend with growtn ove-
tne longer term

Board monitoring
The Board reviews statements on income received (o
cate ana Income forecasts at eack mesting

Altnough dividend growthan tre current vear hag not
matched the cnange 1n RE over S years 1t has been
momforrably exceeded

KP!

Vinilst expentahion ot investnent perfornarne s g key
drrier of the share pnce discaunt 47 aramium fo i het
“oset alue of arnsestment trust company ear o
BITGERTEI e ere 4ie DEOICO S wihen the s e
sulmergoiliny 0F 4 5.
wahztto a crange of 1 ves t T gaptiment !
57 00T DenIons o wilar matket coettartt, an ot

I'mizasttiat far ~ase o” Tracisniurt

adisavarenfire

sren Tred

Board monitoring
Tns 2oard taves poyers

{1 L

ateanh AGR o £,

o 5maTES ViTen ST RnRnrg e Ments

srort and Io’w“'-ru"r T

Coaretner gotL e Lo e

“er@fc al ) ar'aver'oljer’s orecall Part cularatar L

ol tre Torest mar«st sertmisnt 1o

it ot s

fmz 3

Qutcome

NAV TotaL Retum* (Annuahsed)
Benchmark Tntal Rptnrn (Annu

] 21£’°,, 08

*NaY Total Retun 1s caloulated by re-investing the dividends in the assels and
the Company from the relevant ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed to be
re-invested on the ex-dividends date for the benchmark.

Qutcome
Compound Annual Qly]dend Growth* 21%  6.7%
Compound A Arj_nual RPI L 0% o 37% '

* The final dwidend in the time series d\\tlded by the mltla\ d\wdend In the period
raiged to the power of 1 divided ty the numiber of years in the series.

QOutcome
Average d\scoum* . 33% 46%
Total number of shares repurohased B ) NIL ~_NIL

* Average davy ciscount throughout the per od of share prce to NAY wh
ncare. Source B comberg.



KPI
Tne Boara 1S conscious of expenses and aims to
deliver a balance between excallent service a~d costs

The AIC definition of Ongoing Charges includes any
direct property 20sts in addition to the managameant
‘ees and all other expenses incurred in running a
pJblicly iisted company As no other investrnent trust
companies hold part of therr portfolio 10 direct prunerty
(tney either hold 100% of their portfolio as property
securities or as direst property), in addition to 3ngoing
Charges as defined by the AIC, this statistic is showr
without direct property costs in order to allow a clearer
comparison of overall administration costs with those
of other funds investing In secunties.

The Board monitors the Ongoing Charges, 1
companson to a range of olher investment trust
companies of similar size, both property sector
specialists and other sector specialists

Board monitoring

Expenses are budgeted for each financial year and
the Board reviews regular reparts on actual and
forecast expenses througrout the year

KPI

Tre Company Must continue to operate in orcar to mast
tre recuiremeants of Sectior 1158 of the Carparaticn Tax
Act 7010

Board monitoring

Tre Roard reviaws financial informat’on ard forecasts a:

=ach meatirg which set cut the requirements outlired -
Sectior 11582

Outcome

Ci)ﬁga\ng' thérgés excludmg“
performance fees
Ongoing charges excluding
performance fees and Direct
Property Costs

% . 063%

0.58%  060%

The nngoing £harges are orrpetr e when comogod 0

the pear group

Outcome

The Ciractors aslieve that tre ~orditicrs and ungamgy
recarements fage seen met 17 resdect of the yvegr to 3|
Saren 2027 arnc that the Comoany walb o ootirue o mast

[re e ments

The KPls are congiderad to be Altarnative Perfaormance Measurss as defined 1atar 1 t-e Annual Report,
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties

In delivering long-term returns to shareholders, the Board must also identify and monitor
the risks that have been taken in order to achieve that return. The Board has included below
details of the principal and emerging risks and uncertainties facing the Company and the
appropriate measures taken in order to mitigate these risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing impact of COVID-19 on econamies around the world has been recovering
throughout this financial year however the invasion of Ukraine by Russia in February had
a significant effect on global markets and market uncertainty remains. In addition rising
inflation and interest rates bring challenges not seen for many years.

Share price performs poorly in comparison

to the underlying NAV

The shares of the Company are listed on the Londnn 5o
Exchange and \ne share proeis defermined by suos y and
Jermand The shares may trade al g discourt o pram e
L3 ke Company's underlying NAV and this distoant or
premium rmay fluctuate over fime

The Board marttarg the [2eel of asccu=l or prenmg at
it tbe wnares are Uad g Jvar the wbort as 1 orger-tesm
olders

oty

JagemEnt vt the sharen
15 at 2arh mectng on ine
sears, PRageat g d me2ings and

“agh the EROO

g e
L

Peor investment performance of the portfolio
relative to the benchmark

Tk ANl o) IR ACTR AW AgT




Market risk

Both share prices and exchange rtes may move rapndly
and adversely impacl the value of the Company z oartfolis
Although the portfolio is diversified across a nurrber of
geographical regions, tre invastment mandate 1s fu
cn a single sector and therefore the portfalic wll be qeﬁ;m WES
tewards the property sector, as well as ginbal equity miarkets
more generalty

Froperty companies ara subject to many faclars which ar
adversely affect ther investment performdma trese rilude
the general econemic and financial envirorment in which their
tenants oparate, nterest rates, avairability of rvestroent grid
development finance and regulations issued by goernments
and authonties

Althaughw ue Fave now exited the Eurapean Jnron, (he
structure of cur relabonsnip with Contingntal Europs oort nies
0 evolve ard there could be ar impact on occupation 20
2ach sector

ross

The COVID 19 global pandemic continued for murh o the
financial year. It has changed the way we I\ve and work,
uncertainty remains "egarding the irmpacl on ecenomies

and property markets around the world both ir the shor and
lbnger term

The invasion of Ukraine by Russiain Februany 2027 created
further market valatility and uncertainty waich remains
Inflation and interest rates are rising globally to levels not seen
rover 10 years

Any strengthening or weakering of Sterling wall nave a diract
Imroact as a propartion of our Balance Sheet s hele in nun-GBF
denominated currencies The currency exposure 's mar-tained
In line with the benchmark and will change aver time Az at

31 March 2022, 66% of the Company's exposure was to
currencies other zham S ﬂrhng

The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings in the underlying partinlio outlirg pressurs
o the Cormpany's ability to grow the dividend could result rom
amumber of faciors:

= Iower egrnings and distnibutions innvestee campun =5
Companias in some property Sectors coninye w0 b2 negar ey
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic alithough mest have
refurned to paying dridends, some are at a lower el thar
oreviously and a few are cort nuing to withhold dragerds;

- aroiongad vacancies in the direct aropearty portfo '
of rental renegatiations as a resull of lenger ter
anticipated following CUVID-1;

o pers

sangthening of St2rning -educing tna valie B
divicend rerceptsin Sterirg terms The Company mid see o
materialiner
to the COVIC-19 pandemic. A significant fartar in this he
~eakening of Siering folluwirg the Brexit zecizsion Atk gk
15 hay now passed, e value of Sterling oy cornnss s
fuctuate in the rear or mediumierm as the lurger term
implicaticns of Braxitanc COVID-"9 ard ing mipaston the

K and European econamies becumies olegar TF i

Jkraing by Russia ~as aloincregsed markat cnveriyney

\h@ orger termimpications w | 1iffer aomss the Eorop
e onorles e could lead L curreray vo sty
Sl wterling would lead 1o & fall inearirgs

Fuderdz oroaeer

I

s a0 ErES Tharges in the e realmient of
Inrorae seneved oy the Sompany, ard

- “harges = Lreing of cradend ron =ins from
NS 188 CITN AN

<rrpactof higrer rlsrast rates ur datriber anc fror o ie—

¥ saler It

A benor 2

=20 the lever of @armirgs nore vears =27 . UL

LLrangte=ring

Thefioard recsives, and congiters o m2galar r2poeeL from e
ranagaer deta hng asselallocation, myestment deons
SurrRnoy eXposures, dearirg evels and ranonae in rplr.l o
v ibe prevail'ng markst condi

/

The ~=port 2005 ders theimpagctof a -ange of
carert shues and sats gt he Managers responce
1 2asrinmng the poartfalic and the nrgarg

irnpl canang far toe proserty mackat v uEhonsy
coeeral ard by eath sacior

s and coraiders regular

COMe

Irarre foras
G oo moanitared

LENS ety 1 changes o X orates ©

s e f*r,rvma'wu N335 SURSTantg reyer e reseny2s stk gns
Aoy LR 2 ras e

- The Boord cortimaga o man arthe mpac f Brex tgnd
N1 Aand the org et ntieal urs furincora
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Principal and emerging risks and uncertainties
continued

Accounting and operational risks

Disruption or tatlure of systems and processas
underpirning the services provided oy third partiss
and thanisk that these supplers provide a sub-
clangard service

Theurnpact of the SINVIG-TS pandamic and the langsr ke
changes i working pracices at the aaministrator gnd
Jiher service providers

Financial risks

The Company's investment aclivifles expose it io o var2y
of financial nsks which include counterparty credit sk,
lquidity risk and ihe valuation of

financial ingtrurnents

Loss of Investment Trust Status

The Company hias bean accepled by M Revar
Luslormrs az ar investnent frust womeoany, sub
: rset e refesant 2 gibilny cor ity
: Jchins Compary s exemet from capita garms i on
the profirs realised from the sale of msestmants

RGN 3 regadn

Tt and termes

The [t ;
safeguarding ¢ 208 Intreevent of g loss
Ine Depositary mus' returm of anident
raspondng valad Lnless ity ab 2 to demonstrale
that the oss was the asuli of ar event bavand tharr
reasonable oo

or

a4

pontonng the quabty a~d dmelirass

g Aupl A danprass Ao
A panderin :
Lthe arraryemerts Many

S gthet W Th e policiss For
maraging therr gre faund o the Motes to (e Finarosl
Stalzments intrs fullapnua Report and ArCours




Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Falure to comply with the Landon Stock Exchangs
Listing Reles and Disciosure Guidance und Transpaneroy
Rules: failure to meet the requirements of the & temat ™,
nvestment Furd Managers Regulaticns, the pros isiony
af the Companies Act 2006 and other UK European andg
cverseas legislator afectrg UK companies

Fallure to meael the reguired acrounting standands Oor make
Appropriate disc'usures in the intenm anag
Annual Reports

Inappropriate use of gearing

Gearing, either through the usz of bark debt o derivatives
may be utilised from time 1o time Whilst the use of
gearing is intended o enhance the NAV total returr it vl
have the opposite effect when the return of the Company's
investment portfolio s negative or where the cost of deb:
= higher than the return from the portfaho

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

Loss of portfolio manager ar otner key stafl

ArN G E et AT oounts D2

T [noard recaas regular segquliatory Spd:
e Marager, O any Serretaty, 20a _
i & nter The Buard conasrders trase repsrls and
e M TendET ors 8o ta<es 27 o aoeardingy

The Board moe vein, an annug. o and apiate fromn

reo Depusitary

e cned kst cirad revie Do ed ares are 1opince A
ferice provider:,

The Board receves regular reporls Tom the danager on
the levels of gearing = the portfoiln, These are considerad
againzl e gearng irits setin the Invesiment Guidelines
and alseir the rontext of current rrarket 2ond Uons 216
sentrent The cost of deblis monitorad 2and & ba ance
sought between term, cost and faxibility

The Crg rean eondug s regu ar rmaeetings vwith the Fund
Llgnag=meant r2am

The fee hasis procecls the core infrastructare ard depth
ard quality of resources The fee slruciure mcentivises
sutperformance and s flundamanta in e abitity W retain
key 5iaff

g
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Long-term viability

n accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporare
Governance Code, which requires the Compary to
assess the prospects of the Campany over the lorgar
term, the Directors have assessed the prospects of
the Company over the coming five years. This period
15 used by the Boara during the strategic olanring
process as it considers this penod of tirne (¢ oe
appropriate for a pusiness of the Company’'s nature
ard size.

Tris assessment taxes account of the Company's
current position and the policies and processes far
managing the principal and emerging risks set out on
pages 26 1o 27 and the Company's ability 1o continze
in operation and meet its habilites as they fall due
owver the period of assessment

In making this statement the Board car-ied out a
ronust assessment of the principal and emerging
risks facing the Compary, nclugimg those that might
threaten 1ts business model, future performance,
salvency and hquidity

In reaching their conclusions the Directors
Have reviewed five-year forecasts for Lhe

Dompany with senaitivity analysis (0 a numos-
cf assumptions Investee cormnpany dividerad
growin, interest rates, foreigr exchange rates,
tax rates ann asset value growtn

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

The Compary has alorg-terminvestmeant staataig,
rdersmhicr ithinvests mainly inreacily reahsable
pushcly hsted saconties ang whisn restri1s ine
level of porrovangs

+ OFtre marrent sortfolic, 54 “mt(‘ De
liquigateg wthir flve trading davs a

ot 10 T aming Ay

0y (oL 5ass, Turent ansets Sxpesd LTl

haoiliti=s 4t the galarc=s Sheet Date

traam
LoMIGaTIeS dm o tola e [:\ estale 4
maestsn commersial real estate jJJ’r‘fT'

A57 TELRIPLE 1 Tre e

Sany o

Iy 2 ety

st ramenas

COTE SRS AT

(GIat IFTIIaiS

Triz Comaary 15 able to take advantage of 1ts
cloged- ergec mvestrmant trust compary struciure
ard able wold a orooortic of s portichio in less
Wy dieeet oropesty and the less | uwlrj serAries
of emaller zomanies witm aview to long-term
actperformance

At tne Balanee Skheat date tne Comoary had 85
Tulhior andrawn on its revolansg lear facilies

The structure has al=o endtided the Company to
secure leng-term financing EUR 50 million loan
nates 1ssued in 2016 are due to mature at pDar in
2026 and 52P 15 mulhon loan notesssued or the
same dale are due to mature at parm 2031

The moactof COVID 19 on the UK ad curopean
commerzial property markets nas steadily
dirmmisred through e year This resulted in
dranend receiots from investee ompanies in
the current year significantly stranger than the
prior yea© as toe majorty of companies have now
retarned tc payieg deanends, altrough some at
als tha- pefore tne pandemiz Trere
nmorovernent in ncomea in the year under
resey although changas in aradend trmetables
aelayer receiot of somaincome and we expact
flrtber =soovery i tae fortrcoming year

The mvasior of U<airne in SeorLary creatad further
nar<et swolatility ang uroertamty -{Cwaver 2e
portfolio eman= agrly hyag

2l ansitinred o

Tredirzit proopety gortioho
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The Company has no employees and consequently
aces not have redundancy or other employment
related labifities or responsibilities

The Compary "etains ttle 10 its assels held by the
Custodian which are subject to further safeguarcs
Imoosad on the Depositary

Fheimpact of a range of factars have been
~onsicered e terms of the potertial effect on
Sterling 66% of the portfoliu 1s expased to
currencres other than Sterling

5

a@
The following assumptions have been made in § :
assessing the longer-term viability: %
Real Estate will contirue to be aninvestanle sector
of international stock markets and investors will
continue to wish to have exposure to tnat secto”
+ Closed-ended investment trust companies
will continue to be In demand by investors and -
regulation or tax legislation will not change to g
an extent to make the structure unattractive in oy
i
companson to other investment proaucts ay
o
3
-+ Tne performanceé of the Company will contmueg 7
to be satisfactory Should the Board deemn
that performance 1$ less than satisfactory, it
has the appropriate powers to replace the
Investment Manager o
2
The Company's business model, capital structure §
and strategy have enabled the Company to operate 3
over many decades, and the Board expects this z
to continue into the future. The Directars confirm £
therefore that they have a reasonable expectation %
that the Company will continue in operation and g
meet its liabilities in full over the coming five years B
to 31 March 2027.
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Responsible investment

Approach
Eraronmental Social anc Governance (ESG ! fantors
can present both opocrtunities and threats ta th
sarformance we arm to deliver ta our sharchaldars
Tne Board 1s therefare commutted tota<ng a
~esponsiole approach on ESG matters This covers
the Company's own responsibihiies on goveman e
and reporting and, the most material way in
which the Campany can have a» impact. tnrougn
responsible ownership of the irvestments that are
made onits oehalf by its Manager

As along-term investor, governance and
sustainability considerations have always been
embedded In our Managers investmeant proness
ESG risk assessments and considerations are
ntegrated into the detalled fundamental investment
research and analysis that takes place an any
notential investment before it is considerad tor
inclusion in tre portfolio and continues on ar
orgong basis for allimvestments held.

This approach s in lne with the defintion of an
Article 6 Fund under the EU's Sustamable Finance
Disclosure Regutations Whilst this s currertly
“urapean not UK regulation it 1s nonetreless a widealy
utilised definition,

There are two fungamantal considerations to
nvestrmentn property companies the assets
t~emselves and their management The Manage-
seeks foinvestin sustarable assets wnich ae
managed by qualty teams in a well govered
corporate structure As a result, there nas beer a
lorg-stanoing and streng —ulture of stewardshin i
tre Managers iryestment app-oas”™ Tne Marag
Delheves tnat ergagimg witn Zompanies s past &
triz first instance, rat~ar than sirply dwesting or
zxmiurdrgingestmant soportunities Howeier thets
a2ioslarees ymere go/ernance mattars ha s
a2t ad

o

cipr ot estim a sompany

Jest tisams

MGt DanT .,

Jeittes oL Wanage
umber cttre e na;mmﬂm teams of
470 DOTENNAl 17 2STes TOMDAnIes 2307
moust renota o ergage
g~'\-,au f—dw IS IMPTOATY 350 T

e tre o

nest nracihice
T LT Manage nent tzam Dareiaran o
el ;imv,Jal 2rgrous TeRhrGL wWILT LOMDETES 30

s gt r2aoare i 7 2

I = 2

PETTT

Tagemant .

LRAINING Tl

= zlc mast Dot

Cus AN ASCloSore ENaronmental Medsaras arg 0w
-apidly cormirg 1o tﬁe fore and with wicer cisticsu-e
requireMents peing olaced LG ourirvestee Comoaries
tre hanager s able o sorgirise merz 2asitly otnes
MEeAsSUres .00 chimate tnange ana sustamatibity
aclicies ard sutcemes

Company Corporate Governance and Reporting

Tre Boarg also recognises the importanae of tre
Company's uwn Govarnance and disclosures Tre
Company's complianze with the Al Code of Corporate
Goverrance 1s detafed in tre Corporate Governance
Statement ¢n page 16 of this Annual Report

Under Section 414 of tre Conpamies Act 2006

there 15 t~e requirernent to cetail in ormatmn about

employee ang human nghts. inclucing information

Apout any sohioes it as i relation W tnese matters '

a-d e”m.,t!u'er*c‘ss; of these polinies. As the Zompany

has no employeas, this ~equirement does not apoly

Tha Compary s ~ct wathin the scope of the U< Modern

Slavery A2 2015 pecausa it bas not exceeded tre

turnover threshole anas therefore not obliged to make

o slavery and hur-ar trafficking statement. The Directors

are satisfied that, 10 the best of their knowledge, the
cmpanry's orincipal supplers whizr are Isted o0 pags

H-.‘ comply with the prosisions of the UK Maogem

Slavery Act 2015 Trese are orircipally professicnal

adws@rs and service prosaess 1 the financial services
~gustry, consec.uently the Board considers the Zompany

1o be o nekorm ralatior Lo s matter

The Saadcaently compnses fnres male Dimectos and

vio femals Dnrectors Tne actraties of tha Nomimatioe

Ot e 10 r2latins 1o Bnarg Dhanges are refertres ton ‘
N Lommittes Hepott on pages 52
v ool y 15 outinec ir more Celal
o Toztdgn

T alat G 20

TRt ol Bt
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Governance of Investee Companies and Exercise

of Voting Power

The Manager has a corporate governarce voting policy
which, inits opinton. accords with current pest practice
whilst maintaiming a primary focus on financial returns
Ine exercige of votng rights attached o tme portfolio
has been delegated to the Manager Where practicable,
all sharehcldings were voted at all compary meetings
in the financial year in accordance with BMO GAM's
own corporate governance policies This ensures that
a strang, consistert approach 1s taken 1o proxy veting
which backs up and reinforces engagement, takes a
robust hne on key governance issues such as axecdtive
pay and integrates environmental, social & diversity
Issues and sustamability practices into the voting
process The Manager regularly engages with companies
or governance matters, supported by our significant
stakes in large property companias Our s1zen this
spacialist area of the equity market has nelped ensure
our views are heard, augmented by the strength

of BMO's Responsible investment tearm and tneir
proader engagemeant

BMO's Respansible Investment Annual Review provides
more information on its firm-level stewardship policies.
as well as how these comply with the expectations of
the UK Stewardship Code 2020 The Manager 15 3
signatory of the UK Stewardship Code. 15 statemert

of compliance can be found on the Managers website
at bmogam com

During the financial vear, the Manager voted aganst 86
lterns, resulting in at least one vote agamst managemeant
proposals ar 47% of sharenolder meetings Of tneitens
voled against, the probosals can be broadly categonsed
as follows'

Rem

" Election / Ree
D\rectors
| B mcrease in capital
. ' Anti-takeover
mechamsm

] irector terms
Share Repurchase
n Other

Al Beport kAo s 200

Sor the year, the Manager engaged with 28 companies
directly or a range of E3G related matters Tnhese
ergagemearts were canducted at poth the board and
seror execctive levet as well as directly with investor
relations Topics of engagenent were soht as follows

1% 1%

“Climate Changg
Corporate Governance

] ~Labour § Standards
B Environmental

Standards
e Busmesa Conduct

Human nghts

The Manager tracks the milestone of the ergagement
strategy and nas seen progress this year on a numnber
of matters. Examples include tre nublication of net-zere
carhor targets, the publication of sustainability reports
companies becaming a lving wage employer and
IMProvameants in corporate goverrsance, incoroorating
changes to remureratio” pohcies

Environmental

Envirormental policies in tne oroperty sector
forus largely on sustaimability and chmate change
Climate change s one of the defining challenges
af modern irmes

TH-J maragament team have scoerced data ana researcn
from several providers, including the BMO Resocrsible
~vestmnent team, MSC and Glotbal ESG Benchmark for
Real Assets { GRESEY)

The guantity arn depth of gata avalable in cu- sector
vamies greatly tne larger companies Now nan e t2ams
dedirates to providimg envircnmental immpact cata ama
raporting, Nowever may o° sur comnpanes ae smal
and co ot currently rave the rescurnas tn Lo tribute
gatalo tre organisalions predaning analysis to the
MYestor COMMLPty Ab 8 SenSe0ueres, we 3o Srong

correlanons ootween Company SIZe maturly anc o s&ral
Sirce cur inestmert strategy [8ans us 1o Gw -
forasaa miad sized compani=s in oeferanoe to some
of the largar diversified ¢nes, tne portfolios overall ESG
soors might tend 1o e unfatter g comparec o the
widar hancomar<

153

SO

Wiin errormental issues Jorring to the fore gae

e tabbe e

legrsiation vz expeot by see
guite rapiimorc ements a-d standardisatior e
data provision 1moreasing o abibty to ergage wate
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Responsible investment
continued

GRESB

GRESB s amission driven ang investor led
crganization providing stardardised andt validatea
ESG data to the capital markets. established in
2009, GRESB now covers over USD & tnllionr ~zal
eslate assels, publishing i) an anrual real estats
assessrment score for participating companies,

and 1} a public disclosure score tor all listed real
estate companies The real estate assessment
score ranks Snyironment, Sooal and Governarce
melrics based on data coninbuted directly from
participating companies, whilst the public disclosure
score evaluates the level of ESG disclosure by listed
nroperty companies and REITS.

Further detail on GRESB can be found at
Wy gresbh com

Far 2022 thereis reduced GRESE Real £state
Assessment coverage of the Company s equity
oortfolo (5072 from 54%) We have provided
feedback to GRESE and a request to dentify and
priortise those companies in the portfolio waizn are
rot caovered under the Real Estate Assessment

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

A numbes o the listed Germar Besicential companies
cid rot partinate in the Raal Sstate Asssssment due
to GRESS regLiing data to be supmitted atthe asset o-
ouilding l2vel anrc corcens around fair nompansens of
data aggreganon We aciept that thisis a regsonable
position t lake for large anatnent ocrtolos and naye
dimcusses tangas 1o e Real mstate Assessment with
GRESBE to better reflect this asset class and erceurage
Dartieinatior

oI

-

MSCI

MISCHESG "esearch novers a widerarge of
environmertal imoact measures ircluang COZ and
greenncaEe gas @TUSSIons, energy anc water Usage, in
adeitron to wider corparate governance soores Further
detall can e founo at www msa comyou-sobLtionss
eag-nvesting. esg-ratings

Coverage 0 our sextor increased from 987 to 997 and
the Funa's oori‘ohe from 234 to 89%, Wnere
‘s bazec on oubhe data s significant proportionr s
incluaed, whereas where apecific data nas to ne
sunmitted oy compamies the coserage s currently
moch thinre-

The tadle pelow comnares coverage by poth cata
DOYVICErS Year cn yea”

2022

Rated — _ 0% 5% 9% LW 8% 9%
Unrated 0% _48% LR e %
Total C100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  100%

Source GRESB, MSC1, BMQ Globa! Agsel Managernent. Data as at 37.03,2022. Fund exposure calouiseg as the % welght of the mvested equity porifclio.

2021

Rated . . . 0% L 55%
Unrated . (A% A5k
Total 100% o 100%

9% 59% . 83% 98w
A% s %
100% 100% 100%  100%

Source GRESB, MSTI, BMO Global Assel Management, Dawaas at 37.03.20271 = ung exposure cacusled as he % waght cf the rivestec ecd vy por folio,



One area where we are sturting to see more duta 12
In EMISSIONS reporting su we have tentatively hegun
t0 Mmap cut some data below with the emprasis
peing more on direction of travel than the apsolute
measures themselves This s also ar area where vie
expect to see change which s also explamens

Portfolio-weighted carbon intensity

Last year, for the first time, we disclosed, as best we
were able to, tne portfolio-weighted caroor inten-uty
of the total portfolio

Carbon Risk measures exposure to carbon intensirve
companias, MSCI's definition and calculation, with
data based on MSCi CarbonMetrics, 1s the portfolio
welghted average of 1ssuer carbon intensity At tne
1ssuer level, Carbon Intensity 15 the ratio of annual
scope 1 and 2 carbon emissiors to arnual revenue.
Carbon Risk 15 categonized as Very Low (0 to <15),
Law (15 to<70}, Moderate (70 to <250}, High (250 to
<525}, and VeryHigh (=-525)

The Carbon Risk of the equity portfolio, measurea at
the financial year end, was 63.3 T CO2E/SM Sales,
talling within the low risk MSCr category The funa’s
portfolic weighted carbon intensity was broadly 11
line with that of the benchmark of 60 6

Comparing against the results from last year shows
a beadline ¢ 25% increase in carban intersity fo-

both cur own ecuity portfolio ang the index There
are a number of reasons for this Whilst the ratic 1s a
snapshot taken at each financial year end refiectirg
the charge in equity holdings over the penod, thareis
also wider coverage of data at the 2022 financial year
end (82 for the current year fund holdings versus
82% for the pnor year) Thelatest ermissions gata ‘or
eacn company 1s caotured by MSCI on publication of
thair data; each company s not releasi~g t~air data
at the sarme point so tmeng differences will arnse The
ratio will glso e impactea by the cnangirg val
S Sales, including the impact of FX rates
witnie these hmitations, we —ar be reasonacty
confident that the Carbon Rigk of the fundis in line
with the wider benchmark.

T aTa Wi Rl ol o IRV R o A

T CO2E/SM Sales

70 -

2022 2027

TR Property Investment Trust

FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Europe Capped Index

In order tc attempt to give a picture of the direction
of travel, we rave tooked at the indrividual companies
tr~e fung =olds te assess which have improving o-
deternigrating carbon intersity metrics aver 3arc 5
year nenods

Tris aralysis cepends upon e integrity of the
Naerying data and oreadth of data coverage, so
we would fiag that this is a work i progress butit
indicates a positive tfrerd as awarerass Improves
andd comparies a~e oblgerd to diszlase data

3yr L 5yr
momentum - momentum

- -"I“r-ﬁ”p_r-bving
Deteriorating
[ | T " Neutral
Fasiagie EPally
H ekl Sam ar pered
PO LRI ] S CRT AN S -] I Bl S A I T SR T 0N IR 1S N R T

Source MSC1, BMO Global Asset Management. Data as at 31 03.2022.
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Responsible investment
continued

Fur tne property sactor the focus 1s currently on tre
energy efficiency of buildings once they are ocoupied
aut we expect In ime ‘nore attention will be pai to

the carbon emutted in getting them built and eventually

dismantled which accounts for a large proparticn of
abulding's emissions over 1ts ifespan

The Company 1s commutted to ESG gs a core principle

and we expect ta increase the visibility of the vanous
ESG initiatives over time.

We are of the view that the ESG rating industry anc
its approach and processes 1s stillimmature witn
significant limitations making it difficult to draw true
comparisons and make fully informed decisions
The assessments from the various data providers
reach different conctustons as they do not all score
N a consistent way Some of the assessments gre
subjective and different data provides have differert
definitions and criteria.

We expect this to eventually converge into some
form of consensus or standardisation buthit stll has
away togo Conceptually rnaking ESG compansors
hetween companes ana portfolios appears simple,
Sutitig actually rather complax and g imoertant

o e~sure that valid comparisors are being mace
Azset Managers, Wealth Maragers and the irgustry
Gatekeepers are investing a great deal of resourne

17 this area and scrutinising the data provided miore
gerodsly Alot of shortcomings are peing urnovered
ard the different appreaches hignhighted Thisin tun
will put pressure on the oata providers to marove 112
qualty and clarify the basis of tieir analys

= YAanagens dedicating rescarce 1o the analys

of the information available ard also has the heaesfin
ob tne knowledge of its award winming Resporsitle
restment Team

28 CLT
Ehel [ t” SNGAge V.U'“ T
il '“\’Tl—"”u\ Tiatters aao renart to o
= depth

Direct Property Portfolio

Tre Mandgemert team recogrise the mportance

O sastamanlity wr car bugimess ard in the dizct
property assats whicn we imvest 1~ rold and manages
on peral’ ot gur mvestors Praperty imoasts upon
tne 'r:rmrm'ne*‘t the nealth and wellbeng ot
coropiers, ard the commurities ey ik they are
stuated Speafcissues relevant to the ohys.cal
property Investment portfolio I"‘-“\u(‘-’ foym ﬂxamp\w
responsible a1d sustamatle -efurnishment oractics
efficiert use of resources throughaut their operamm
ard design ard services 1o suoport the health anc
wellberng of octupiers and local communihies

The Trust ams tointegrate ESG into all elerments of
its business practice throLgh ous investments ino.r
assetls grestly and through cur partnarshup with aur
Maragirg agants and tenants

Qeouplers arencreasingly congicenng emoloyee
wellbaing when selecting workspase Natural

hight, biophilia, fitness facilitias and other occupier
amerities dlt orovide o compehtive ecge [Mrough
oLr occaper tatused, coporturity led approach, this
means naing a responsible awrer of commereial
“eal estate, belpirg our occupiers sutceed and beng
Jalued by alb our stakeholcers

Tordaliver or OLr puracse, ye Nave n 2hans taree
distinct st-ategs pillars Asset Bnegy Performance
iF~arcamental) Gocapier Zagagement 1 Sovialy and
Opearghong Performaane iGo earmanzer These pillars
ncluca arangs of sioat :glv, mowueg LT gLice Ine
diz st of oL E5G Straregy and wes regualatly e

NS fegetees it Dum managing agents

{Environmental) - Asset Energy Performance
Cummg 178 yedrl S miAagimg agents joirsd -2

TRLIRgs 2attrarebig g onliabaratinn ot e

L




The grourdwork being undertaxen to further develop
the data management processes and improve cata
quality wall underpin the creation ot asseat sustairability
action plans

As part of our continuing asset managermert strateqy
we raview the EPC ratirgs of all our assets to 1dertity
opoortunities to improve the EPC rating on re lethirg of
niits orengagement with occupIcrs to andesta- works,
TRPiTs exposura to EPC risk has beer well managed,
with every apphcable UK property having a vahd EPC
rating To future-proof the portfolo, the Maragers
Sustamability ana Secial Respensibility Comrmittee nas
established a target to achieve a minimum EPC rating
of O for all planned refurbishments and upgrade works
to the portfolio We acknowledges the shift towards a
minimum EPC grade of B by 2030

GRESE and our use of data from GRESB ras been
gescribed on page 34 For 2022/23 the Comoany will be
subrmitting furd data to GRESB for benchmar<ing agamst
its peers. 2022/23 will be the first benchmarking year for
tne Trust s property portfolio and we are targeting annual
improvements in the GRESB score on our direct portfolio.

{Social) Occupier Engagement

The Trust recognises that despite mary sustairabhity
related activities being devolved to tenants, 1t still nas a
duty to influence their behavicur. Through our hanas on
rmanagement approach we seek to pro-actively ergage
with occupiers and axplore ways in which we

car sJappoert, encourage and ootentialty invest i1 thair
ESGrelated objectives

{Governance) Operational Performance

We are in partrership with cur bulding advisers
establisting an £SG-focuseo -efurmsnment cracklist
This will provide a set of guicelines 1o 215072 au”
wfurishment process and refu-bished oLitdirgs meaet
tne appropriate envirenmental, sooial anc gavernanne
slandaras oased on the scope ard type of refurbishment
works being uncertaken The Trust nas alreacy
committed to all major refurbishment orojects berg
grounded in Performance oy Design at develoazd Ly the
Better Bulldings Partnership

Ourocnuplers accourt for the majonty of tre energy
consamptior of aur buldings Ir renogniticr that we reed
to partner with oor occuplers, in 2027 we developaa a
Green Leass toolt forall new leases Thisirs olves tenant
educaticr into the benefit to workirg together to realece
energy and water corsumplion as well wush: geroration

ANy Eanort B A TS aLnia U0

We are aware of the mpart via our supdly chain and
have forme oar £S0G strategy way in which we engage
In business with 3rd party supohiars to comolement
cur Net Caroon Zero goals whilst alsa making positrve
~ontribLbion to scoety, minirmizing any regative rmoarnt
on people and tne environmeant and to promote safe
anc fair worxing cerditiors and the ressonsinle
management ¢f social ethical, and enviremmental
SHLeS N 0OUT SaoDly Chair

This year we have completed the review of our
sustairabiity priorties ano material issues A key
recommenaation regarding ore of those matenalissues,
Climate Charge Acaptatior and Mitigation, was to start
the journay towards net zero carbon and assess s
feasibility Thisis a key challenge faning the real estate
sector, with Mmany compan2s beginning (o suphsh ther
own et zero carbon pathways A related 1ssue s to
develop ou- repcriing urder the Task Force on Clirnate-
relatec Firancial Discloseres recommendations We have
recaognised that to develop our net zero carbor pathway
we will reed to partnewitn a third narty specialist, and
are currently working through tre selection process We
intend to define our net zero carbon pathway and targets
i1 hre with the Better Bullaings Partnership framework
durirg the course of this year

By order of the Board
David Watson
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Directors
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Board diversity David Watson Kate Bolsover

Appointed: Appointed:
Apnl 200 Ortober 20049
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Sarah-Jane Curtis

Appointed:

January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-Jane s a Member of the Roval
Institution of Chartered Surveyors She
wias previously Business Director at
Aicester Vitlage for Value Retail Prior

ta that, Sarah-Jane was a dircctor of
Coven! Garden for Capitar and Counties
Pl € She has also waorked for Grosvenor
for 24 years, including as London Fstate
Director {retallsresidental) and Fund
Manager for LiverpoclONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-sane has ganed extensive
cxpenence durng ner vared

~araen parinu'arly nhe retal and
exper onre seclors and in fund and

IF2SIMart Nanagaerrert aolrines

Other appointments:
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Y

S al Heporl & AT ToLnis v

Appointed:

Simon Marrison

Septemper 2011

Experience:

Siman ained tne Board rSepternber 7017
and oecame Son or Independent Lirector n
July 2020 He has cyer 30 years” experence:
N e Yropean properly nvestment
ndustry He s currently sericr advisor for
rurcoear Real Estarcat <orlberg Kraws
Roperts (KKR) Priorto1hal he spent 74
years at Lasalle Investmont Managermrert
wherane was Furopeoan 7= O for 12 vears
veth rasparsiaility fora partfal o o7 over £20
milhor acrnzs Eurape

Simon has been pas=c o PAng cinas 15990
hoang stared his carser r | ascon 1ng
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Janugry 2078
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[im s a Cnartered AZocLntant, vtk 30
yedrs' experience in the fimancial servicas
ard neestmantindustty Most acertly he
spent Viyears at Columibia Threadreedle
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Managers

ﬂ
Marcus Phayre-Mudge joined the management feam for
the Company at Hendersen Global Investors i January
1897 inmally managmig the Company’s direct property
portfolio and latterly focusing on real estate equities,
maragqing a number of UK and pan-European real 2state
equity funds 1 addition to actrabies in the Trast Marcus
moved to Thames River Capital in October 2004 wrere re
15 alsa fund manager of Tharnes River Propearty Growth &
Income Fund Limited Prior to Joining Aenderson, Marsus
WAS An INvestment surveyor at Knight Frank (1530 and
was made an Assoclate Partner v the funa management
division (1995}, He qualified as a Chartered Sur eyorin
1397 and has a BSc (Hons) in Land Management from
Raading University

George Gay

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

Grunafiay has o

s 2005 He sirea Trames e

239151anT Oirect ropety marnage and gz

Drgrtareg Do seyor 10 2008 George w
Yorgan Sep

[P

o2 e Tgs gt VA 2o
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Jo Elliott

Jo Elliott hag been Finance KMarager since 1995, first at
Henderson Global investors then, s'nee January 2005,
at Thanes River Capital, wher she joined as CFO for the
prooerty team Sne joired Henderson Glopal nvestors
In 1995 where sha most recently hela tne position of
Director of Pronerty Finance & Operanong, Eurone

2 was Carporate minanae Manage” with
Landon and camburgh Trost pl and prior to tnat was
a~ Imvestmientsireasury analyst witr Heror O

Dravigusly sk

orooraton

pic Johas s B3e [(Hens) in Zoclogy from the dnversty
of Notr ngham and gual fiea &s a Charterad Accountant
witn Ernst B Yourgin 1348
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present the audited financial statements
of the Group and the Company and their Strategic Report
and Report of Directors for the year erded 21 March
2022 The Group comprises TR Praperty Investment
Trust ple and its wholly owned subsidianies As perrmittes
by legislation, some matters rormalty included in

the Report of the Directors have been inciudec in the
Strategic Report becausa the Board considers them to
be of strategic importance Therefore, the review of the
blLsiness of the Company, recent events and outlook can
he found on pages 4 to 37

Status

The Company is an investment company, as defined in
Section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
aninvestment trust in accordance with Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company has a single snare class, Ordinary shares,
with a nominal value of 25p each which are sremium
listed on the London Stock Exchange

The Company has received confirmatien from HM
Revenue & Customs that it has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accounting penads
commencing on or after T April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibiity condimions of
Section 1158 Corporation Tax Act 2010 ana the cngomg
reauirements for aporoved companies in Chapter 3 of
Part 7 [nvestment Trust (Approved Company) {Tax)
Regulations 20711 (Statutory Instrument 2011,2999}

The Directors are of the opinton that the Company has
conducted and will contirue to conduct its affarrs soas
to maintain investrment trust statds The Comzany has
also conducted its affairs, and will cortirue to conduct
its affairs, in such a way as to comply wath the I-dreadal
Savings Accounts Regulations The Crdinary srares <an
be held in -ndividual Savings Accounts | SAS )

gt Ts and divedena s

AT 21 Maren 20727 the net assets of the Compa-y
amounted ta £1.563 muliton (2027 £71.4326 milhan; o a
Der shdare Dasis 492 A3p (2027 417 G7p) per srare

Revenue earnings nes share for tne year amoanted 1o
12.6Gp (7027 12 25p) and tne Direclors reLomimend
the paymeant of a final dividend of 9 200 (2027 9.00p)
per onare bringirg the total divinerd for toe vedr Lo

14 500 (20721 14 20p) Ir arwirg at ther dradens
p-opcsal, tre Boarg also reviewad the income forecasts
for the year to March 2023

ANALE SEpoT R AT TCLNS SO0

Serformance detals are set autin e Finanoial -ighhghts
On page 2 and tre outcorne of wrat the Directors consider
to be the Kay Performarsz ndicators on pages 24 and 25
Tre Charrmans Statermert ard the Manage-'s Report gree
full detalls and analysis of tne res.lts “or the yea-

SH2S L dital anid Doy Daoe 320y

AT 31 March 2022 tre Company ~ad 317 350 930 (2021
217,250 980 Nrounasy shares In1ssuc

At the AGV m 2021 the Directors were Qiven pawer 1o buy
back up to 17 570,917 Ordinary shares Simce that AGM thea
Directos have not boug~thack any Ordinary snares under
that avthonty, which will expre at the 2022 AGM The Board
will seek to rerew the authenty 1o make market purchases
of the Cempany's Ordinary shares at this vear's AGM

Sirce T Apnl 2022 to the date of tris repert, the Company
has made no markel purchases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares will
be repurchass=d

Managemsnt arrangements and f2ez

Detals of the maragement arrangements and fees are
set aut 1n tne Report of the Management Engagement
Committee begirning on page 52 Total fees oaid to the
Marager in ary one year (Management and Performance
Feesy may not exceed 4 G9% of Group Equity Sharehaolders’
Furcs Total fees payale for the year to 31 March 20272
armount t0 2 070 (2021 1 2% 0° Group Equity Shararaoldes’
Furds Imcluded in tris were perfo-mance fees ea-red
inthe year ercac 31 Marer 2092 of £244 180 000 (202
£4559 000)

el T A SO P R U P PR

The Graun and Cempary financial statements for the
year ended 21 March 2022 have been prepared on a
goIrg cONCErn 0asis N gucortante witt Uk-acopten
internanoral acceanting stardasds and m conformity vath
e raguirerment of the Comoanies Act 2000. The financial
statements na e also noen oreparad 17 gocordarce vath
tre Statement of Recormmn2endad Pract e minamal
Stataments of Irvasimeant Trust Companies ang Vent e
Capitul Trusts | SORD G Ihe wxtent that 1515 roraistart
with LK acopted Inte naghor o taridaras

0

accounting g

[he g suntieg poloes ave seroutin ~ote 1t the

I DAGRS Sty TH
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Report of the Directors
continued

rinancial instruments

ha Compary's Friancial instruments compnse its
ryastmient portfolio, cash balances, borrowirgs and
debtors ana creditors trat anse directly from its onerations
such as sales and purchases awaiting settlemert, profit
or loss balances on dervative instruments anc acoiuec
income and expenses The financial risk management
objectives and policies arising from its financial
instruments and exposcre of the Company tons« are
disclesed in nate 17 1o the financial staterments.

Risk management and internal control

The Baard hag overall responsibility far the Group's system
of nsk management and internal contral and for revniewing
its effectiveness The Portfolio Manager 1s responsible

far the day to day Investmant management decisions on
behalf of the Grouo Accowntirg and Company Secratanal
services ave hoth been outsourced

The systern of risk management and mternal cortrol
ams to ensure that the assets of the Group are
safeguaroed, proper accounting records are maintamei,
and the hnancial information used within the business
and for pubhcation s rehable Control of the nsks
identified, covering financial, operational, compliance
4ana risk management, 1s embedded in the <ortrots

O the Group by a sernes of regular investment
narformance and attinbution staternents, finanaial
anarisk analyses, AIFM and Portfolio Manager recorts
ard gaarterly cont-ol renorts

Key rigks have been identified and conrrols put in

Jiace to mitigate them inzluding tncse nat directly 10
ty of tie AFNM or Portfolio Manage: Toa <y
ns<s are exolared i mote detail in the Stratagie Papot
oro2ages 2610 29

Tre =ffecti/eness of eaw~ third-party orosdes intereal

comtrals 13 43588580 N an Om3siTg basis oy tm-

mphacce and Pisk azoartments of the 07 370
“aqtiaho Mangyges s Admirestratos on e ooy

Ary Zask Martams ts T gy ste oo
sragemant ancontsrral contal e the ana0 570
SLnt Sommittes talal 2 ragLlar repeots fram e Tos
mAaTagemeant g~ 1t tartal cortal o
“hnergile Dot ot
strmatanal mis
Aar 2lmnate
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Company taastabhshits v mterral audit furction
Imstead tne Audit Committee ~lies o~ internal nontrol
rencrts recerag from it pnitomal service provedes (o

satisty iteel as 1o the contrals 1m plase

Tre Board nas estabfished aprocess foridentifyimg
evaluating and managing any major rnsks faced by the
GGrouC It urdertakes an arnual ~eviey of the Group's
systerm of ns<managerm=rt and i~ternal cont-al inline
witn tre Turnoull guidarce. Business ns<s have also oeen
analysed by the Board and recordad 1 a nsk map that

1s reviewed reqularly Eacr quarter the Boara receves a
formal report from each of the AlFM. Portfolio Marnagesr,
the Acministrater and tne Company Secretary detailing
any idenfified internal continl failures or errors.

The Boad also considers the flow of information ara
the interachion betweer the third-party service provicers
and the Zortrols 1= place to ensure accuracy and
comolefers trerecording of assets and income
The Board receives a report from the Portfolic Maniager
zetiing oul tne key controls i~ operation

The Boara alse has direct aucess 1o Company Secretanal
adviue ara services proviaed Dy BMO Investment
Bust~ess anmuted whicr throug™ its nominated
“epresentatiye 15 responsible for ensynimg that tne

Soard ana Lomnittes orocesyras ars folloysed and tnat
apphuable regutanes a7e comnphed watn

se cortala have peen in place trraLgholt ire year

T s reyies and g tethe gate o°

Sgmng e AIeonnts

iter are considersd oy the

argLm=mnost ttaral Lentrols
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Listing Rule 9 8 4R

The Company confirms thal there are no items which
require disclosure under Listing Rule 8 4R in "esoect
of the year ended 37 March 2022

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Subject to applicable statutes and other shareholders’ nights,
shares may beissuad with such ngats and estrictions as
the Company may Ly urdinary resolution aecide, or f tnere
is no such resolution or so far as it does not make specific
provisicn) as the Board may decide Subject to the Articles
of Association {the ‘Articles’, the Companies Act 20060

and other shareholders' nghts, unissued shares are at the
disposal of the Board

Voting

At a gereral meeting of the Company, when voting
1s undertaker by way of a poll, each share affords
Its owner one vote

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitled to vote If he has been served
with a restniction notice (as defined in the Articles) after
failure to provide the Company with information conceming
Irterests (n those shares required 1o be provided urder the
Companies Act 2006

Deadlines for Voting Rights

Votes are exercisable at a general meeting of the Company
in respect of which the business being voted upan 15 being
Feard Votes may be exercised ir persan, Dy Droxy, or in
relation to o porate members, by corporate represantatives

Tre Articles provide a deacline tor subrmission of oroxy furmes,
of rotless thar 48 nours (or such shorter bime as tre Board
may determine) pefore the meeting {not excluding ron-
working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Commpany may de neld inuncertif-cated
form and, sulbyect to the Articles, title to uncertificates share:
rmay o2 transferred by means of a relevant system Suojsc
1o tne Artcles. any member may transter all or ary of ~is
cartificated shares by an instrurment of transfer mary us.,al
tormorin any other form whict the Board may approve

Aol Eanart & oaun Ol

Significant Voting Rights

A3 March 2022, no sharekolders hetd over 37 cf voting
“7ts on a discretionary basis Howewver the following
shareholgers held over 4% of the votrg ngrts ona ~or-
discretiorary basis

Shareholder % of vating rights*
Brewin Dolphin Ltd 10.5%
Retail Investorg — UK 9.3%
interactive Investar Share Dealing Services 8.4%
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 5.8%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.5%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.7%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 3.6%
Charles Stanley Group plc 3.2%
Smith & Willlamson Investment Managers 3.0%

* 3ee above for further iInformation on the vating rights of Ordinary shares.

Since 31 Marcn 2022 o the aate of tris repert, the Cormpany
has not been informea of any notifiable charges witn respect
to the Ordirary shares

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association may onty e
amended by a special resclution at a General Meetirg of
the shareholzers They we e amended gt tre 2027 AGN
ana are available to view o0 our website

Corporate Governance

Full details are given in the Corporate Governance Repart
on oages 45 e 51 The Corno-ate Goverrance Report
forms part of tnie Directors’ zeport
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Directors 15 accountanie 1o sharehologrs
far tne governance of the Company’s affairs Tris
staternent describes how the principles of the 2013
L« Corporate Gavernance Code (ine Code ) issuzd

oy the Finanoial Reporting Couneil (the FRCY m 2018
nave been applied to the affairs of the Compary [ne
Code can be viewed at www frc org uk

Application of the AIC Code’s Principles

mapplying the principle of the Code, the Directors have
also taken account of the 2019 Cade of Corporate
Governance puthshed by the AIC (the 'AIC Cede),

of which the Company s a member The AIC Code
establishes the framewark of best practice specifically
for the Boards of investment trust compames
Furthermore, the AIC Code has full endorsement,

of the FRC, which means that AIC members who
report against the AIC Code, on the whole, meet their
obligations under the Code ard the related disclosure
requirements contained in the Listing Rules The AlS
Code can be viewed at www.theais o UK

The Directors beleve that duning the year snaer réview
tne Company has cornplied with the maim princinles
and relevant provisions of the Code, insafar as they
anply to the Compary's business, and with tre
nrovisions of the AIC Code

Compliance Statement

The Directars note that the Company did nat comply
Lt the tollowing provisions of the Corde i ine yea-
arded 37 March 2022

Sratsion 9 Doueto tre nature and structures of 1o
Lomoany tre Baasd of non-execative directsns do=s
a0t feelitis approprate (o appoint 4 chief ex2 2u00e

“ropagion 24 ThraBoard oelieses trat all Oreotrs
g ine Cnarmnan, s!"(»,\(j sironalloftae
Lormimitiees
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Composition and Independence of the Board

Tre Board currently consists of fve Directors, il of
whom are ronrexec e The Board's indepenience,
roiuding trat af the Charman, 1as been corsidersd
ard all ot the Directors arg gesrned to oe independentir
acter and bave no 7elahcnsmps or 2rsumstartes
W hsr have hk2ly to afferct thar judgement

Tre goard subscnbes (o the aew exorassad in the

AIT Code that long servirg Directars should not

be preventad from formirg part of anindepenaent

majority It does not conswder tnat tre length of

a Director's tenure, 10 1solation, reduces his or her
Dty to act indeperdently Tre Board's policy

on tenure 15 that continuity and expenence add

signficantly to the strength of the Board al*hough

the doara beheves in the ments ot an ongoirg and

progressive refresnmert of 1ts composition

Diversity
The Board recognises the beneft of diversity and
as at the date of 1715 report it Lompnses three men
and two wemen Siversity s taken inte account as
part of the resruitrnent, appomtmert and suzcession
planning process ana the Board 15 also aware
0 tne develsning corporate gavernance vith
regacd to etimeiy of indradual Directors The
Board s committed to appoirting tre moest
Apor cormtwmf‘mah regardless of gender
orotrer forms of diversity and therefarae ro
largets naye been set aganst whicrk te ranort

Powers of the Directors
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Directors

There were no changas to the Board of Directors n
the year uader review The Directors” blographies are
set out on nages 40 and 41 Ir accordance with the
Code, all Directors gre subject to annual re-electior
Therefora all Directors will retire at the forthcoming
ACM N accordance with the Code ang, being
eligible, with the exceptior of Mr Marnsan, will offer
themselves for re-election Mr Marrison will stard
dovir from the Board at the conslusior o the AGM
and the Board has announted that Anarew Vaughan
will be appomnted with effect from 1 August 2022 to
succeed him

Board meetings

Boars e ot tess
The Board has establisked an Audit Commities,
aNominatior committes and a Manageneant
Fngagament Committes which also carnes uut

the functions of a Remuneratior Committes All

the Directors of tre Company are ron exenulive

anc serve on 2aun Committee of toe Board. It has
aeer tre Company's peley tomclude all Directors
orall Comrmittees This pacacerages unity, clear
commurication ard avords duplicatior of discussion
between the Board and the Committeses

Tne roles and responsibilities of each Committee
are set out In tne indiadaal Committee reports
which follow Each Commuittes has written tarms
of reference which clearly define its responsiblities
anc duties Trese car be ‘ound on the Comoany’s
website, are avallabie on request ard will also ne
avallable fo- msoection at the AGM

The number of meetings of the Beard and Committees hald during t~e year under review ana the attendance of

irdividual Directars, are shown befow:

Board
Attended Eligible
David Watson 6 6
Tim Gillbanks o) 6
Simon Marrison 6 &
Kate Bolsover & 6
Serah-JaneCurtis B 6

Audit
Attended

NN PN N

Nomination
Attended

MEC

Attended Eligible

Eligible

2
2
2
2

= = =

1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1
1 1

'r addition to formal Board ard Cormrmitlae mestings, the Directors also attena a nomoes of informal mestings to
represert the interests of the Company and to discuss coe-ational markels and sazcession olan™ing

The Board

The Board s respansible for the effective stewaraship ot tre
Compary's affars Certain strategic 1s3ue< are montored
Ly the Board at meetings against a framework woish has
been agreed with tne Manager Addrioral meetirgs may
be arranged as required The Board has a formal sohedule
of matters specifically reserved for its decisior, whicn are
categorised under various headimgs 1mclucirg strategy
rnanagement, structure, capital, financial reporting internal
controls, geanng, asset allocation, snare grice discount,
sontracts, investment policy, finance, risk, investrent
restrictions, performance, Corporate governanoe drad Soara
menibershup and appointments

inorces to enable them to dizenarge thar respor-anilitiey,
4ll Directors nave full and timely access to relesant
mformation At each mestirg the Boasd =2
Company's Irvestment netormance and 2onsiders
financial anzlyses and other reports of an opergtion:l
nature Tre 3oad meniters comphance with tre
Comoany's chiectrses and 1w regporsiole for sating

Sl Reponl & ACTOounE 2

asset allocation and irvest nent ard geanrg hrmis
st wnien the Portfolio Marager ~as giscration
1o ast and thus supervises the manage =t af
fre e tment portollo whion i contractoadlly

delegated tothe Botoho Marager

T2 dnasd ras sesocasinlity for the aoposal of
Meestmerts in srments and Ay
restments Ir funas managed or adyicec by ing
Bocrfoho Manager 1f nas alss adonted a procecu s
fortherarce of ther duties 1o ta<e

cent professiomal adate at the expense of

LNanies

For Bim=ctors e e
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Corporate Governance report
continued

Confhicts of interest

Inhnewitn the Companies Act 2006, the Board
has the power to authorse any patential confiicts
of interest that may anse and impose such hmits
or conditions as it thinks fit. A register of potent'al
conflicts 1s maintained and is reviewed at every
fAoard meeting to ensure all details are kept up-to-
date Appropriate authorisation will be scught prior
to the appoirtment of any new Director orif any
new conflicts arise

Relations with shareholders

Sharenolder relations are given high prionty oy

the Board, the AIFM and the Portfolio Manager
The prime meadium by which the Company
communicates with shareholders is through

the Half Year and Annual Reports wnicn arm

o provide shareholders with a clear understarding
of the Cornpany's activities and their results

Thig information 1s supplement2a by the daily
calculatior of the Net Asset Value of the Comnary's
Grdinary snares which 1s pulblished on the London
stork Excnange

Thisinformation s also avalable on the Compary's
wehsite, www.trproperty com tegether with a
menthly factsheet and Manager commertary

itisthe intention of the Beard that the Annual Report
ang Accounis and Notice of tha AGM be 1ssuad to
sharsholders 30 as 1o Drovide at least twerty working
days’ rotice of the AGM Sharenhclders wismirg to
lodge questions e advanne of the AGM, or 15 contat
fre Board at any other ime, are invited o ¢
aoting to tne Compary Secretary at tne registaray
acdress given or paga 107

wily

Gerseral presentanons are given 1o Dotr srare citers
and gnglysts tollownng tr2 puplinancr of tre arniy

15 Allmeetings cetwess fae Marager anc
4 >

raternlgers ats eported 12 e 3oad

R R T I Y ~
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Sectinn 172 of the Tomoaries Ay 2000 ~egunes

v Tngt

et 1o AaThin gooa fath and i oo
1= tre most hzly to oromnte e z.iness o7 (ms
Lamaary T atoordante witt tne meauiremErts
= Tompanies IVhiscelianeo,s Reportingh
Fegulations 2018 pelo .y o2 Domdary exnlanm

TG e Dire o The ST aTges her gty Lrlor
sethior 172 during the year, Fulfilling tris dusy
' plsifiabaN
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Upon appointment, J1meclors’ ame 0roy)aed with

a detaled induction outhining ther Auties, legally
and regulatory as a Directer of 2 UK puohe hmited
SOMODArY anag LoTinJe 16 enere ragular relevant
techrical updates and rainmg Under trarr latter of
apocirtment tre Directors also nave aceess 1o the
advice a~d services of the Company Secretary and
when deernac necessary, tre Diectors have the
opportunity to seek independant profeszional advire
N the furtnerance of ther duties as a directo”. at tre
Compary's expense.

Dedision maxing

The nmportance of stakehclder consigerations,
i particular e the context of decision making,
15 regJlarly brought 1o tne Soard's attention by
the Company Senretaty anag taken into account

at every 3oarg meeting The Board Lonside s the
Impact tat ary matenal decisior will Bave on all
ralevant stakeholders to enscere that s makirg a
decisien that promaotes tne fong-term success of the
Company, wnether ins be, for example, 1In relation

o aradends, rew inuestment oppart.rihes or the
Cormpany's future strategy Ir adaition, the Boaid
together with the Manager, holds a meetirg focused
on strategy on an annual 0asis to louk anead in the
market anc antizinate petential snenanag and now

o~

this may imsalt the Cempany's stakenaoliers

wTakdy D iars

Trs 3ourdg meesamses tha naeds ard impo-tanss
Of tne Comoary's stakebolde s 373 ersuras that
sigen=a aLnng alhiis amcusenes
cHits decinian-making sinee s
stmernt frostoomoany that

T
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and a3 oant
LMDy 1547 1y
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Stakeholder Group and why Board engagement

they are important

Shareholders

Sharerolder support s The Company bds aver 3000 Sharshalders, indisding masaloral ard reta hiresstors " he
=ssential i the existence Board iz commitl=d e ma ~tair ng ooer charnes of communingtion and 1 engage Witk

of the Caompany ano "harnhclders ir g marner they frd most meanimgfulin order 1o gam an undr,r:,taﬂd ng of
delivery of iong 12rm tneir views These rode to= achannala below:

strategy of tre business

yodai oifialens

Mies, a0 erngrages allerdane 2 ard
e

- Annual General Meeting  Ths Dom pany e
par l\v vation from Sharerodars a s daed
s ard banzges and o anan Jue s thern 2irectly Th!-'Mdf“dJ'-‘f’j tends b
AHM ard provides a presentation o8 the Lo 5aTy's parformaroe and tre fuiure oal Ok
The Company va u2s any ‘eechack and questiions it may reczive from Sharenolders ahensd
of and during the AGM a~d takes action or makes cnanges, wnen and as Uproor ate

2 T gt w|. b rrpieal he

H

- Publications - The annual ana hall year repots are made avalasle or the webare ana
sent to sharehciders Thase pablications provade informatior on the Corrpany ana 15
portfolio of Investmeants and a better understanding of the Trust's fFnancial position. This
is supplementad oy daily pub\ir" linr of the MAY 0N the Stornk Exf'hange and mantialy
factsheets on the Comoary's wensila The Comcany 15 sper 1o eedbank from snareholoers
to iImprove s pub ications

+ Shareholder meetings — The Manager meests wir skarehs ders serind cally ard ofter ana
feedback is shared wilh 1he Board

- Working with the Brokers - "he Ma~agsr ana Broke s work iogeiner 1o Mg dhangue
with sharehaolders ard prospective investors a0 scheduled meelinrgs The Board 's provided
with requrar updaies at meelings and autside reetings if required

- Shareholder concerns - In the event thal Shareholders wish 19 "g1se iS3uds Or T onrerrs
with the Board, they are we'vome (o do 20 at any tmea by writing to the Charman at the
registered ¢ ffice The Senior Indapendenrt Directar 15 also available to Shareholders if they
have concerns that conlaol thrangh the norral channel of 1= Cnairrran has failed to
resalye or for wrich such contact is ~appraonats
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The Manager
Hording the Company's Maintaining a close and crnstruct w2 workirg relatonshp witn ba tanager s oromal a3 1he
sharaes offers irvastors a Board and the Manager Dol am o Cont nue 1o ashra e consistent, ang-tarrm rar ams noime-
iguid investment vehicle Wit the Company’s \r‘“meam S0 A0t ve ImporEnt corperents n the colaborat oo st

" rough whiczh they nan the Manadge: reor-=aentatlce o the Sompany's ol tar reehede 1N se lsted below

oblain exposure (o the
Company’s diversified
pnrrhlin The nvestmen:

s EnCnarayding opes ionest anc o lgboralive discussiong atal leve s al owng e 2
space feroriginal and innoeative tnink ng

kanager's performance iz s Ensunicg that tre impact on the Managsr s fuly 2or sy 1= o wrdarst sod Sefor- ary
criveal forthe [JOdeI’T\/ business, cacisiznis made

tw "‘\JCT,?st,flJ y delrver ity
nvestment strategy and
nr"'*e{ ‘s ob,eclive The Bomre ol S= k=g Jiar
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: Ensurng thas any potantial conflicts of interest are avoldes or managad effectively
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External Service Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and
the Broker
A range ot acvisers The Board mantars regd & < on’
enables tne Corrpany Lo reporting from them theoagh the
funcinn 3s ar reestmen: m2uear meehing c oy e T g i s
trust and & canst luent of accourt Tre Nangge
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Corporate Governance report
continued

 Stakeholder Group and why Beoard engagement

they are important

Lenders

Avartabliy of f Jnqu ard Tne Board
Aquidity are cruca' 1o the carsigiEnly daiyar
Cormpany's ability 1\, lake
advantage of nvestmeant

25 10 derrs ner TlerdErs Tnal s 3 el e graged bus ne
T TGN relu s

anportunities as they arise
Regulators

The Company can only The Board raguiarly 2 onsoders h

operatae with the approval follaws vourtary anc beal pract

)r’ its ragulaiors who have Makes can have an imgac: on s Siakans >'qm~ bu'“ e s fw Jrar an ’J s ’% f‘f’?_,;E‘f’ 1ermi

a legitimate interest nohow
tne Company uperates

S the market and treals
1= sharskbolders

Investee Companies

Feortfolo comparies are

u'timately shareholgers
= and the Board

me! FT‘[JOF

The Manager commun:cates regularh \.l" C‘H Foi
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ara aomrmurieation
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norgeling tne Company's
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mygstmant og,
and strategy

storient Gutlon< wrtn ire

i ore acan drav

e

e Soard s ahlvays mind*ul of the requiremert (e a2t im anc
the pest Interests of sharenglders as a whole anatu ra
regarg Lo the otrer requirement s ¢of seclicn 1.7 whien form
part of Boart's decision-maxing process The g ke,
usions taken by the Boara dunng tne year endeg 37 Mawh
2027 are examples of this

T,_;,rr-n th,., "_I"\
R ”Tld"‘tdl‘
= that it 7o

Toirelzatt orany on

andcomplerment t“e \aner-t%rm wriae
rermidant atis i oldie

SMna™Yy SAant 4 etal o
nong arT

et

ST

P




succession plan Simon Marnson will stand cown from the
Soard at the conclusion of the 2022 AGM ard will be replaced
by Andrew Vaughan wath effect from 1 August 2027

Culture and business condugt

The Board 15 1n agreement that having a good corparate
cuiture, particLlarly N its engagernent with the Manager,
shareholders and other key stakeholders will aid delivery

of 15 long term strategy The Board promates a culture

of opersess i lire with this purpose througn ongoing
engagement with its service providers and the Manager The
Directors agree that establishing and maintaning a healtny
ourporate culture within the Board and in s interaction

with the Manager, shareholders and other stakenclders waill
support the delivery of its purpose, values and strategy The
Board seeks to premote a culture of openness, debate ard
ntegnty through ongeing dialogue and engagement wath

Its service providers, principally the Manager The Boad
strives to ensure that Its culture 1510 ine with the Company’s
pdrpose, values and strategy

The Cormparny has a number of policies and procecures in
place o assist with maintaining a culture of good goverrance
including those relating to diversity, Directors’ conflicts of
interest and Directors’ dealings in the Company's shares Tre
Board assesses and monitors comphiance vath these policies
as well as the general culture of the Board regularly througr
Board meetmgs and in particular during the anrual evaluaticn
process which is undartaken by each Director (for moe
information see the Beard evaluation section on page 52)

The Boarc seexs to appomnt the best possible servize
provigers and evaluates therr service or & regular basis as
descnbed on page 54 The Board considers the culture rif the
Manager and other serace providers, INcluaing ther polisies,
practices and bebaviour, through regular reporting “rom
these stakebolders ard in particular cunng the arnual

eview of the performance and continuing appointment

of all service providers

STIOYEE U bEIrmnDact gl aioe:
The Board -ecogrises the requiremenrt under tre Cormpaniss
Act 2006 to cetall nformation acout humian neris
employees ara community 1ssues ncluding i famanan
about any policies it as ir relation to trose matt=rs ang

the effectiveness of those palicies These requiremarts,
practically, are not applicabie to the Company as 1ithas o
emoloyees, all the Directors are ~on-executre ard it 1as
cutsourned all operational functions to t~ire-party
oroviders Therefore the Company has ~of -eportog uirerin
respect of these provisions

TEr TS

PR . v
o IR
el R LR AR

Directors and Officers’lability insurance coveris
olace nresoect of the Diestors The Campanys Articles
0f Asscoigtion proyide, sugect to tre provisions of 14
ieqislation, arrdemety for Directars in respect af 2osts

ANCI REEOr & Acoonu=la U

whic™ they may incur =elating (¢ the defence of any
proce=dings breaght agarst tnem ansing out of their
positions s Dirsctors, nwhich they are asquittec or
ucgement 15 given in ther ravour by the court

Tothe extent sermitted by law and by tre Company's
Articles of Association, the Company has entered into deeds
of ndermnity for the benefit of each Director of the Cormpany
N respect of InMities wach may Jttach to tnea e Hen
rapacity as Directors of the Comoary. These arovisions,
which are qualfyirg third party iIndermnity provisions as
definad by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006, were
imtroduced in Jancary 2007 and currently remair in force.

Directars statement as 1o disatozura of
intormaton to tne Auditor

The Jirectors wao were menbers of the Board at the time
of approving the Diractors’ Report are listed on pages 490
and 41 Having made enguinas of fellow Directars ang of the
Company's Auditor each of the irectors canfirms that

- g0 faras trey are aware. therz 1s no information of which
tre Company's Auditor is unaware; and

each Director Pas taken all the steps that they ought 1o
have ta<an as a Director to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that e
Comoany's Auditor s aware of that infarmation

Tris imformation s given and shauld be nterpreted n
aceordance vath the provisions of Section 418 of the

Cormpanies Art 2006 % : , o

By order of the Beard
BMO Investment Business Limited
Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Monunation Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

« Review the Board and 1ts Committees and make
recommenaaticns 1in relation to structurs, size and
composibion the balance of knowledge, expenence
and skill ranges;

+ Cansider succession planning and tenure policy and
oversee tne developrnent of a diverse pipelireg;

« Consider the re-efection of Directors; andg
+ Review the gutcoeme of the board evaluatior oaoess
The Nomination Committee meets at least 29nually,

and more frequently as and when reguired and lasy
met 1n March 2022

Attty during the year

Tne Commities discussed suncession planning of the
Boara, its ténure and diversity policies The Comrmittee
“eviews annually the size and structure of tne Board and
Il continue ta review succession planming and further
recrutment, taking into account the recommendatiors
of Board evaluations

toard evatyaiion
Fellowing the engagement of Tim Stephenscn

of Stephernsor & Co, to facditate an mdepenaent,
zxterral avaluation of tne effectiveness of the Soard

15 committees a-d the performance of each direntor
for the vear ended 31 March 2020, the arnaal e.aloaheo
G ine year endad A1 Tdarsh 20272 was caes out
internally Tris took tne form of guestionnales

ol

oy discussions fa idertify the effentivenass of the Snarde

REATLIEES \rv‘.ludlhg e Commitiess

2 thE sarmie Fr At

Thengults of the 2yansaton o

e te and corodesed by tne Soatt Thene

tactons ansing fromtre avaluat on armces s
Agresd irat tne Jurert SOMpOSHIe o s
~dts Domnmetees eletted & 54 7aole mix of s«ills and

asasrcla raraanlal

Aifter careful consderatior, particllarly o7 the Board's
oohicy goverrirg Directnrs’ tenure ara -2apocointment

all Directors vath the eczephor of Simon Marmso., will
offer tremselies “or re-election at tre fortrcomyrg AGM
115 consideraa trat eacr of them mert re-election by
srarenoldars Surtterinformation on eann direutors
skills, experierce and trelr contripution o the Board are
outhneq in the pograpries an paces 40 and 41

roaocerdance with tre orovisions of the Coge, itis tne
intention of tre Board to engage an external facilitator to
a5515t with the performance evaluation every three years
and the next external evaluation will be narnea out for
the year erdirg 31 March 2023 The Board will continue
to nomalete aninterral badrd evaluation annually i the
intervenitg years

oY T

Orosion 24 0 the 212 Code of Coporate Governance 1
Allows a different approach Lo ternurs in -elaben 1o Investment
companies, ref'ecting hovs they differ to chairs of operating
companies, where the Board ques not nave a criet executve
Tne Board touk into consideration the approach and

mroduced irs Fahey Governing Board Members' Terure ara

Reapoortroent This policy outhines the Board's approach
10 tenure ued reapportrent of non-executve drectors 1t
statesirs peliet that tre salue orougrt through contin ity
ard experience of Directors vt~ longer peneds of serine s
~ot only desiratle but sssentialin aninyestnent company
Trie Board e not feal that it woold be appronTiate (o ser a

~rirkirganto
PSS LESION S ENSUTnG That aCh OLTASI0r rat
P 30 erlers Inke rew e TTIErt Lomrmtment 3, 4t =gt
ralt the goard menbers 1a s diret personal expener
OIS Lt tre Manage”

e nf
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Directors training

Yhen a new Director s appamnted, heyshe s offered
fraining to suit therr needs Directors are also providend
with key information on the Company’s actrsties on

a reqular basis, Including regulatory and statutory
reguairements and internal controls Changes affectimy
Directors’ respansibiities are aavised to the Board as
they arise Directors ensure that tney are updated un
requlatory, statutory and industry matters

Letters of appointment

o Director has a contract of ermployment with

the Company Directors’ terms and conditions fa-
appointment are set oLt in letters of appointment which
are available for inspectian at the registered office of the
Company and at the AGM

David Watson

ArnazalReport S coun s S
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Marage=ment engagemeant
committee 1ithe MEC i
Chairman: David Watson

Kay responsinilities
« Moo and review the performance of tne
AFMN and Portfolio Marager,

- Review tne terms of the 'nvestment
Manrager Agreement;

+ Annually review the contract of terms and
agreements of each external thirg party
sarvice provider, and

- Rewiew, o0 an annual basis, the remuneration
of the Directors

Ir addition tonvestment management, the Board has
delegated to external third parties the depositary ang
custodial services (which include the safequarding
of assets) the day ta day accounting, company
secretanat services, admimistration and share
registration services Each of these contracts was
entered into after full and proper consigeration of tre
muahty of the services offered, including the cont-ul
systems 1n operation INsofar as they relate to tne
affairs of the Company. The MEC determimes ana
approves Direntors’ fees, naving -egard 10 the level of
feps navatle 1o non- execulive Directors in the 1mausty
generaily, the role that individual Directors fulfitin
-=spect of Boara and Committes respongibilifiza g
the time committed to tne Company’s afars For
{_“ther details please see the Directars’ Remareratse
<epa- o pages He 1o 58

The \AED meets at least an~ually towards t“e ara ot
tre finarcial year and last mat in March 20,

- o t S P
N . — fo

Ltira meeting '”’wj I tarn s Z02 the Mz

fre & TR e
"Aar ';e* anc ons ndé'ﬂﬁ Sotr tne Aopronnatan s
fihe Mymagen s agpuittmert ang the
arrargements arciding the stountane arn \—:
ISR it tns anagar

‘Tﬁe‘ﬂ?”

T AnGhoT InINE re 12y

v
TR AT G TONGINETET DS TTONManCe rensT Troon 17 -

Do tiaha MAm ager al ¢

Jrr‘ Meehmg Tre 50am
ats m2laned reg lar v E

omithe Admrie

ned /E sl tT'H\- SR ;r!d Df‘l’”‘\"“
Maragger 3m,u ne 'ﬁtamar fortee franoial,ear

ending 31 Wanch 2079 oaing im tne Dest iterests of all
shareholders A summary oft e significant terms of

the investmert Manage me~t Agreement and the tmyvd
sroviders wha support tne Company are

’warry SEry
sel aut oalow

Duneg the vear the MEC also reviewed the
pertarmarse of all tner third 0a-ty se-wice proviaers
including BN Fanbas, Computersrace, BMO acting as
Company Secretary, both firms of corporate brokers
and PwiCias tax advisoss) The Portfolio Manager
provides regular wpdates an the performance of all
trurg party providers during the year and attenaged tris
part of the MEC Meeting. Tne MEC confirmed that it
was satished with the level of servines delivered by
each third party provider

5 3nd fees

PAgragemem &
O 11 July 2014 the Board appoirted BMO Investment
Susiness Limited as the Company's Alternative
Imeestment Furd Manager (in accordance with the
Alternative ipvestment Fund Maragers Directive’

with po-tfolic management delegated Lo tre
Invastmient Marager, Thames River Gaprtal ©

The sigaficant tarms of the Investment Maragameant
Agreement with the Manager are as follows

T h

i ST T
Trnz Irvestment Managament Agreement 1A
orodices farterminatior of the agraement by eitrer
patty wathout Compansation orotne pr “nist
less inar 12 months witter ~otee

st

bre -"e for t”e pcwf‘wj UnGer TE ey \,/aa 3 fixed fee of

e
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Aperformance feers payable f tne total retarm of
adjusted net assets (after deduction of all Sase
Management ~ees and other expenses), as definad
in the IMA, at 31 March each year outperforms the
total return of the Compary's hencn mark plus
ithe hurdie rate’); tnis cutperformance lexpress=d
as a percentage) Is Known as tne perc umtaq
cutperformance Any fee payable will be the
amounrt equivalent to tne adjusted net assets at
31 Maren nach vear mulliplies by the percentage
outperformance, then multiplied by 15% The
maximum performance fee payabie for a nernoa 15
rapped at 1 5% of the adjusted net assets However,
If the adjusted net assets at the end of any peniod
are less than at the beginning of the penod, the
maximun performance fee payable will be hrmited
to 1% of the adjusted net assets

't the total return of shareholders” funds for any
performance penod 1s less thar the benchmark

for the relevant performance period, such
underperformance (expressed as a percentage) will
be carried forward to future performance perioas

I¥ any fee exceeds the cap, such excess performance
{expressed as a percentage} will be carried

forward and applied to offset any percentage
underperformance in future performarce periods

In the event that the benchmark 1s exceeded bat

the hurdle 13 nat, that outperformance of the
benchmark can pe used to Gifset past or futu-e
underperformance Trese amounts can be used for
offset purposes only and therefore canrot haye the
effect of creatirg a fee in a year where g fee wo.ld
rot otnerwise be payable or increasing tne fee 1~ that
vear At 31 Marcn 2022 there is a carry forward of
culperformarce of 19% (2021 1 8%)

N l

A g e MR TR R R Ve A
Or 8 Novemper 2021 2MO's assel maragemant

business i Europe, the Middle East and Atra
became nart of Columbia Thread-esdle Iry=
the global asset management business of
Ameriprise Finanoial e The process o irtegratinyg
tne two firms is progressing and both cormpanias
have confirmed tne importance of maintaining the
stability ard continuity of the teams wiich s .pnaort
the Campany

L S TR

BNP Panoas was appomted as Depositary un

14 _uly 2074 in accordance with the AIFTAD,

Tne Depesitany's sacnsidifities irclude case
montarrg segreg %‘um a~d safe keeping u° th=
C‘c»r*wpaﬂy* firarcal irstrurents and montering
the Company's “ornp\wu e wtn myest nent and

levarage ~equiremnents Tha Desositary "erenen

o raeyee

S0l Bepart foLeonnts Y .

Forits servises afee of 20 Dasis pomts pe7 annam
on the first £750 méllion of the Company s “’G‘S&IS

1 1 oasis pomnts pes ann.mon assets above £150
mullicn ara below E500 mdlior ard O 75 0as1% ooints
onassets above £a00 million

Custocy ang Admirstration Seoviees are oroy1iaed
oy 2NF Fanbas ant Company Secretanal Services
by 3MO nvestrment Business Limited The fees for
these services are charged cirectly Lo the Compary
and are contamed within otber admimistrative
exoenses aiscicsed in notes 1o t-e accounts

stinents,

David Watson
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

introduction

Tre Board has prepared this report and the Directors
Jemureration Policy, iIn accordance with tne
requirements of Schedule & of the Large and Medium
Sized Companies and Groups {ACCoUNts and reports:
Regulations 2013 An arding-y resclution for the
approval of this report will be put to the memoers at the
forthcammmg Annual General Maeting

;

Theldaw requires the Company's Auditor, KPMG LLE
to audit certamn of the disclosares provided Wrere
disclosures have been audited, they are indjoated
as such The Auditor's opinioms included ir the
‘Infdepencent Auditor's Repart’

Annual statement from the chairman
npha committes

The MEC met in March 2077 and consigered the

results and feedback from the Board evaluatior

it was agreed that the Directors' fees woula he
increased, with eftect from 1 April 2022 (o the followirg
levels Cnatrrnar £72,.000; Aodit Commuittee Cnarman
£47 000, Serwor Indeperdent Director £42 000 and other
Directors £36,000

Deentors ramanaration pobcy

Ine Company's policy 13 that the fees payabls 1o the
Directors shauld reflect the trme spent by tre Boara an
tha Company's affairs and the resporsinilities porne

oy the Directors and should pe sufficient to enable
~andidates of high caliore 1o be recraited The polioy s
for tne Cnairman of tne Boarr, tre chairmar oF the ALt
Tommittes and the Semor Indepe-dent Director (o 0e
24id migher f‘aes tngr tna other Directars i~ eoc

by the mernpers at the 2020 AGK ana the -
~120h0n 15 that this wilf continae fortne year erdirg

Plarok 200279

Thermes 57
Lony arraTgatents and tha |
sfate 1o the Dirart

mmada for loss of office. The terms of their acpointiment
are detailea 1 a» apoointment letter wnar they jorm the
2oart As the Directors do rot rave semvice nantracts,
the Compary oes nothave a polizy an termication

payments Tre Comoany's Artizles nf Association
currertly Lt tre tratal aggracate fees pavable to the
Suard 1o 23U 0 per annum

Shareholdsss’ view s ir swsoect of Diracturs emuneation
are commanicated at tne Comoany's AGM and are taken
nto aceount in formulaling the direstors remureration
nohoy At e 2027 AGM, over 89 o™ of srarerolisers
votes cast were in favour of the resclution apurovirg tne
Directors’ Remareration Report {1 39 agaimst), showang
significant shareholder supnort,

Tre cormacne s of the remuneration pan<age
for hon-executive Drrectars, verich are comprised
I the Directors’ -amuneratior poloy of the
Comoary dre Set out below with a ceseription
A0S agprodn W determinationr




MBIALRAD

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees Additional Fees Expenses Other

I'he aggregale mit Additional fees may be pain The Directors are anhitled Boara members ara not @
for the Fees for the to any Director who fulfls tre 1o o2 poid ol rensonacie 2l gibee For con sses, peraion g
Buard as a whole is role af tre Charrra- e SYPRMLES Procerly INCLmes benafits, share optons, lorg- %
£300,000 perannum, in chairs any Lomri: oy ther at ending meetings  onmimcert wa 57 n2med o ]
aeoordance Lo the Articles Board orwho is apoonied with shareralder, cr other cther non-cash benefits or B
uf Agsociation, woich as the Senmor noensrdans i RELEORE R Vaanh 2 expenses =
is divided between the Direcior i the Jise hurae

Direclors a3 they may s Lar=clors

deem appropnate Trese feas will oe et

at acompeiityve leval io

Annual fees are set 1o reflect experience and time
reflect the experience commitment

of each board member
and time commitrmeant
required by Board
rmermbers to carry

out theirduties and is
determinad with reference
15 the appointment

of Directors of similar
nvestment companias

0URLBADD

Annuatf remuneration report

For the year ended 371 March 2027, Directors' fees were pad 2t the arnual rales of Chairrman £75,000 (2021 £70,00)
and all ather Directors’ £35000 {2021 £35,000) An additona £5.0070 was paid per a~num for eacn of the roles of Audi:
Cormmmittee Charrman and Senior Independent Director. The actual amaourts paid 10 the Directors during the financial year
under review are as shown below

SIUBLUBLELS (BIDUeUI4

Amount of each Duectors emulumentz aaidinad
The feas payable in respect of each of the Directors who served duning the finarcial year were as follows:

31 March 2021

S
David Watson™ I . 60,461 3
Simon Marrison® 40,000 38,410 ;-,‘:
Tim Gillbanks 40,000 40,000 z
Kate Bolsover 35,000 35,000 g
Sarah-Jane Curtis 35,000 35,000 ]
Hugh-Seaborn® B : 23,333 ?
Total 220,000 232,204

All faes are at a Fxed rate and there1s re vananle remurieral or Fees are aro-rated where a change 12kas clace curtirg =
financial year There were no paymerts ‘o t1rd sarhes ncludea in tre fees rerarred to 10 the taole abov e Trere are no ‘urther
fras fo st 052 a5 the Company has ro emp ayees oo el oxcs e Jrexeo gt ve Ora s

WQY Jo 30ION

1 appointed as Chairman on 28 July 2020
@ gppointed as Sermor Independent Director on 28 July 2020
31 retired as Charrman on 28 July 2020
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Directors’ Remuneration report
continued

Company performance

Tne grapn below compares, for the ter years enaed

31 March 2022 the percentage change ovar easr panod
in the shars gnce total return to shareholders comparad
to the share price total return of benchmark, wonck tes
Board consigers (o be tne must approprnate benck mark
fornvestrment performance measurement purposes An
explanatiar of the perfarmance of the Company 15 giver
in thie Chairman's Statement and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4500 -

$00

Mar-12 Mar-13 Mar-14 Mar-13 Mar1g Mar-17 Mar18 Mar19 Mar20 Mar21 Mar22

. TR Property Share Price Total Return . Benchmarx Total Return

Share Price Total Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March 2012
and reinvestrnent of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses). {Source
Thames River Capital}

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investrnent into the mdex of
£1.000 0n 31 March 2012 {Scurce Tharnes River Capital)

SLe s1e! gl ire gegirning ard at e end of 172 vesr s

apalntrert flates ere as follows

caf-
Ordinary shares of 25 pence

N e 31 March 2027

David Watsan 35407 36,083
Simon Marrison 43,997 43,267
Tim Gillbanks -
Kate Bolsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 5237

A e 20

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay

2022 2021

£000 £'000 Change
Dnﬁdemdsﬁasd 45381 '447,"12‘3'  128%
Directors’ fees 2720 232 57%

Five year change compariscn
Uverthe last e years, Directars pay has ircreassag as sat
QU N INE t30E e

Change

2022 2017 over Annualised

£000- £'000  Syears Change
Charman 70000 70,000 0% 0%
Audit Commitiee
Chairman 40,000 37,000 81% 1.6%
Semor
Independent
Director 40,000 37,020 81% 16%
Direcior 35,000 32,000 9.4% 1.8%

For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson



Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Kay responsibilities
Review the internal financial and non-financial controls;

Review reports from key thirg party servire prowide s

Consiger and recommend o the Board for aporoval the
contents ul the draft Intesin znd Annwal leports,

Review accounting policies and significant financial
reporting judgemeants;

+ Maonitor, together with the Manager, the Compary's
compliance with financial reporting and regulatory
requirements;

The review and subsequent proposal to the doard of
the interim and final drvidends: and

Considering the impact of providing nen-aucit services
on the external Auditor's iIndependence and objectivity

Representatives of the Manager's interral audit ard
comphance departments may attend committee
meetings at the Committee Charman's regueat

Representatives of the Company's Auditor attend the
Committee meetings at which the draft —alf Year ang
Annual Report and Accourts are reviewed and dre gisen tho
oppartunity to speak to the Committes members without
the presence of the representatives of the Managar

Tre Board recogrises the requirement for the Aud
Committee as a whole (0 have nompetence relevart

to the sector and at least one member with rece~t and
relevant firancial experience. The Crairman and Mr
Wiatson are Chartered Accountants with extensr. 2 anc
racent experience irine Financial Seraces rolstey The
atner members of tne Sommittee have 4 compmahion o
property, financial, investraenrt and business experience
through semor pasitions neld throughaut thair caresrs

T IV ARI LS I AR TS

During the year the Committes met twioe witm all
members at each maeting and considered the ollooang

Corsideration of the Risk Map any crarges to e
likelihcod or impact of nsks and consequentiatl
rranges recured to Board Monitoring ard miticaton
procecurss DonsiaR ation of any rew 07 CTherging
“aks and nelusion in the gk Manf aapraonats

Spral Roport KA Tog r s vy

Tris ras inclided consideration of the orgomg COVIo- 19
pandeie and towaras the anag of theyear the nvasion
of Ukraine, inflazionary and interest rate ncreasas and
iMoot an st arangse af 1s< categones

Tre (5raua's toternal Contrals and consideratior of the
Heports thersen
Tre 1S4 ALK renorts or trer equivalont friom BNAG
and BN= Zaroas

Whether tne Company should nave s own internal
audit function;

The External Auditer's Flanmng Memorandum setting
ouf tre scope of tre arnual audit and proposed kay
areas of forus,

Trereports fram the Avdito” concarning ther audit
o' the =Inarcial Statements ¢° the Company and
Consideration of Significant issues in relation to the
Finarcial Staterments;

The appronaateness of and ary changes Ig, the
accounting pelicies of the Company. inclading
tne reasonablenass of ary jutdgement s required
by suor policies;

The ong-Term Viability Statement and consideration
of ne preparation of the Sina-ial Statements on

a Gomng Coroen Bazis taking account of ferwarc
looking mceme forecasts te hguidity of the

Insestme~t portfolo ang gaent profile,

“he financial and ather gisclesures in the Financial
Statermants:

The tarmation pr2sentea i fne Halt Year and An-weal

Reporty A Dalar ed anG Lneerstanaadhe ano e

Inforraten preaanted il 2naols the sharenolcers to

S ire s

oe2l and strategy’

Tre aarformanee of the 2xterngl aaditor t) anproyw=
o

trap audit feay ara orsider tre 45ae3smen O

" OEDe T den el

[Fezre g aro sunsen 2ot aroposal to Tre boare oF

thentem ard firal divider 2y ana
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AT AN TOMT

e
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

g concern

17 assessing whether it continues 1o be approosnate

to prepare the Accounts on a Gorg Concern 2asis

the Connmuttee "as made a detalled assessmert ¢f tre

aoility of the Compary ard Group to meeat its habilies

as they fall dus including stress and hgudity 12515 wnpch
consdered tre effects of substartial falls ininvestmert
sAluations substantial reductions in revenue racay2d

ang -equchions in marxet higuidity

n gkt of testing carnied out, the overall levels of the
imvestment iguidity neld by the Comparny and the
sigrificant net asset position, the Parent Company and
Group, the Directors are satisfied that the Company and
the Group have adequate financial resources 'c continue
r operghon for at least the next 12 months following
the signing of the financial statements and nerefore
itis approprate to adopt the Going Concern bass of
AUOUning

Tn

lon viabihty of the Company was also
A%8E58

gterm
ed as set out on pages 30 ang 31
sk Management and intemal cont
Tne Board has overall responsibility for the Group's
system of Risk Managemeant and internal Cortral and for
raviewing their effecti eness. Key nisks identifiea by the
Aoditor are consigerea By the Audit Commuttee teans.ie
trat ropust miarnal f.‘:owrcis and moenitering pronecures
I~ respect of Inese are 17 place on an ongoire Jases
~rther details car be found on page /14

Tra Agdit Committee recered ard Jonsidenao
~terral Sontols fromi tne key serqice aro Aae
F soneern veera tignlighted

Trz Company s s Map was consigerad foulent s,
=marging (145 anad yurefher any adjastmants . e

annthe

TG e T AXISTr G ek [slalige; RARAREASE I D

= ging infiation = ohe larer balf of the pmar 110 7L as

U lergine i = IR =100

g4

Cruan aooing mIrEAasin g

Eren anAtre e 2N nalataT e T

“he Commites has considerad thig report andd finanaial

statemerts ard the | ong-term Yiabihty Statemeant

ar pages 3 and 31 The Commuttae consigersd

e Autars assesoment ot risk of matenal

misstatenert gnc meview 2t the interndl controls

N place m respect of the key areas genitifed and (ne
2RSS Y “m;‘r\ the Bnasd monitors eacr of the

crocedarss 1o give the Cormmittee comfort ontrese

NSKsS an an mgmmg basis Thesearisks are also

rigelightec in tre Company's Risk Map

< Carryirg amount of isted investments (Graup arc
Parent Compary) — Tre Graupsinvestnents awe
onced fortne daily NAY by BNP Panbas

Ime g.oted assets are pricec by the Administratoer's
Glopat enomg Dlatfort cr Lses irdependent extanal
pricing soureas The ortol process surounding this s
st oLt 1m the BN Panpas AAF 0106 .ntemal Jontrls
AepOrt 4ng teshing oy the "eparting accountart - e
penun cepotas 1o 30 Septermber 2027 vhicn Gid not
raveal any sigrificant exceptions. The guarterly control
rapctl to tre Board from BNP Panpas covenng tne
period up to 371 Marnh 2622 nad no sipnifcant issues
turepart e acaifion the Manages estimates the N
QSIng an altercat e prcing source on g darfy bas
rdepancest ohgck

st 1me hatec irsestments of the
and inzepardentry
ccenfirmat’ ens frorm inyssimen’

sy ealue of hsted

The A_aditns
aortiele
racsi el rd party
Lstodiars
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In undertaking their valuation of each praperty,
Krught Frank make therr assessmeant on the basis of
A collatior and analysis of appropriate comparanle
nvestrments rental and sale transachons, togetner
with evidence of demana within the vicirity of 2ach
property Thus information s ther applied to the
properties, taking into account size, locatior, rerms,
covenant and other matenal factors

The Board kas reviewed reports from tne Manager
and the external valuer and determined the valaation
to be reascnable

The Auditor has set out therr detarled testing ard
procedures in respect of the Direct property valuatior
ard concluded that they found the Company's
valuation of investment properties to be acceptanle

There has been nothing brought to the Committees
attention in respect of the financial statements for
tne year ended 31 March 2022 that was materal

or significant or that the Commuittee felt should be
brought to shareholders’ attention

Auditor assessment and independence

The Company's external auditor, KPMG LLP { KPMGT)
was appointed as tne Company's auaditor at tre 2016
AGM The Committee undertook a tender process
durirg 2027 to ensure that shareholders were getting
the best services ang value far money Anunber of
firms were invited Lo express interest and respona
or-a smalt numper of key points The decision

was made for the audit to remain with KPMG The
Commitiee expects 1o repeat a tender process

no later than 2026 in respect of the audit for the
following 31 March vearend in ling wath the Current
qudit regalatons

At the nalf year meeting of the Committee, KPAG
pregentad therr audit olan for the year erd and e
Comrmitiee considered the audit process and tee
proposal The Commuttes also reviewed <PMI3's
idependence pohities and procedures el Lding
qually assurance procecures 1twas consulerec thar
tnese polizies are fit for purpose and the Directors
are satisfied that KPRG is indenendent.

Totat fees payable to the Auditor in reqsect of
the adan for treyear to 31 March 20 ]
FH2.000(2021 £80000), whirh veere approverd

ANALE Repart §A0roLnts LT

ny tne Aacit Commitiee

The Committese nas appraved nd roplementead

4 pelisy anthe engagement of the Auditor to

sooply 107 -aadin semvices taking into aceort the
recommerdatiors of tne Accourting Practices 3oarr
with 4 view to ersuning that the external Auditor goes
ot provide aon-aadit seraces trat rave tre potertial
o wmparr o aposar to impal” the irdenendence of
therr audit role 1 addifior, the Committee reyiowed
the artions put ir place oy tre Auditor 1o ensure there
was a clear separatior between audit anc advisory
seryices Tne Committee aoes not believa there to

be ary impediment to the Auditor's objectivty ard
ndepaercence.

The fees for non-audit seraces for the year to 31
March 2022 were ril 12027 nil)

Futidetails uf tne Auditor's fees are provided in rote 6
to tne ancounts 01 page 871

Mr Merchant was appointed audit partnar for tre
2027 year-end addit succesding M- Kelly, who was
required to rotate of the Company's account, having
served as audit partner for five years.

Following each audit, the Commuttee reviews the
audit orocess and corsiders its effectiveness and
the quality of tne services provided to the Company
Whthin this process, tre Committee takes into
consideration therr awn Assessment, the self-

evaluation of the auditor and tne Audit Quality Review

Report prodaced by the -0 1~ arcer to mongor the
progress of the Audilor's performance comparaste
vath its Deers ari the targets set oy the FRC The
reviey, following the comoletio of the 2027 avdrt
concluged that the Committes was satisfied with the
Auditors etectivensss a0¢ serfgrmance

PG had ronar 2 e ve

Tre Zurmmittee el tnat Ke
anc efficant audit process wir aporupnae
nallenge & reschutinn 1o re 3opomt KPMG L an
the Company's Auditc will be put 10 srareralcers af
they fartrcami g AGH]

Tim Gillbanks
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

The Direltors are responsible for prepanng the Anrual
=eport, the Strategic Report, the Directors Reosort ara
e financial statemeants in accordance with applicatle
law and regulatiors

Company faw reauires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company financial statements for each
financial year Directors are reqguired 1o prepara the G-o.p
firancial statements in accordance with UX-adopted
international accounting standards and applcable

lavs and have elected to prepare the Parent Comnanry
financial statements on the same basis

Under caompany faw the Directors must not approve the
fnancial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and far view of the state of affarrs of the
Group andg Parant Company and of the Groud's profr
loss far that period 10 prepanng each of the Groun and
Parent Company financial statements, the Uirectors a7e
required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and apply
them consistently:

+ miake judgements and estimates that are reasonable,
relevant and rehanie;

state wnether they have been prepared in acco-dance
with imternaticnal decountrg stanaards m cofornity
Aith the requirenents of UK-adopted international
antaunting stancards

+assess the Group and Parent Compary's abihry to
LONTUE a8 a guing cencern disclesing as apph tacle
Tatters related 10 going concern; and

counting anl
Tl O the e

wse the cairg conce n basis of ac
tmey either mtend to hquidate the 5
Lomnany orio TedSe Goarauons or ha
altermatrie bt to oo se

AR I

Fre Tiractons ars sE000n5I01e S0 MErtgnit g ana g Lt

A2Courting ecords that are suff ¢ard to sran

LAIT 1N Pgrant f)uﬁ‘aa‘ar'y stransaihors 4700 |57

st o
enzure that s finanaal stetemen

Lomoanies At 200 Tﬁcy ars -
Imierrgl rarten) ga y
t~< pregaration of
frem matenal

Urnder anpledble lav and segulaturs, the Directa-s
are also resoarsicle for preparing a ‘oUdt:ﬂg\"‘ Report
Diractors Resgt, Directurs demoneration Peport
a7d Corporate Goverraroe Statement

Tre Tirectors are respunsiole for the mantena oo
ad integrity of the corporale and firancial
farmatior ncluged on tre Comoany's website.
teqislatior e tne U gavening the preparation and
dissemination of francial staternents may differ
from leqgislation i other jurnisdictions

Fasponsinility Stafe-"ﬂém of the Directors
imraspect of the annual irancial report
Fach of the Divrectors confirms that to trie best of
thelr knowladge

< the financial staterments, precared n acceraance
wth the apphcanle set of acnounti~g sta~gards,
give a true and far view 0 the assets, hanilimes,
fnancial posiuor and profit or loss of the Group
and Parert Company and the urcerta<ings
ncluded ir tre consohdation taken as a whole; ard

- the strategis réportircludes a far review of the
deyalopment anc p@'f-)'m:anr: e of tne business
and the oasition O the 152e2r ano the undertakings

lLdedintne cunschdation taken as a wholz,
togat~erwitn g Gascashor af tre areoial 1s<s
and Lnoertamrhes that ey face

cateardanee wite Disolneure (ugarne ars
Tra-aparancy Rule 31 14R, the firancial 3tatements
willform mft of the antygal Sinancal regort :)mp-'—ared
_wing the argle el rrocy s renasyng farmat

T ESEF Regllatar The aottor g r=port o wﬁebe
finarcial sfatermenis proyvaars nc 3=surance pver the
TOEF fnemat

By order of the Board
David Watson

e e



KPMG

Independent auditor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust plc

41 Cut opiion s unmodifieg

We have gudited the financial statements of TR
Property Investment Trust plc (the ‘Company’) for

the year enged 31 March 2022 which comprise the
Group Statermnent of Comprehensive Incomes, Group
and Company Statements of Changes in Equity, Group
and Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company
Cash Flow Statements and the related notes, including
the accounting policies i note

In our opinion:

+ The financial statements give a true and fair viey
of the state of the Group's and of the Parart
Company's affairs as at 31 March 2022 and of
the Group's profit for the vear then ended,

- The financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with UK adopted

international accounting standards

+ The finarcial statements have been prepared

Basis for opinion

We cond..cted oar audit in accordance with nternational
Standards 01 Auditirg (UK ([ 1SAs (UK ) ana applicable
law Curresporsibilities ae descnbed celow We belisve
that the audit evidence we have obtained s a sufficient
and appropnate basis for cu opinon Gur audit opinion
15 consistent with our repert to the gudit committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the directors on

2 November 2016 The penad of total Lninterupted
engagement is for the six financial years enoed 31 March
2022, We have fulfilled our ethizal respoensibilities under,
anca we remaln ndeperdert of the Group in accordarce
with, U< ethical requi-emerts including the FRC Etrical
Standard as appled to listed oubho interest entities

NO non gudit services prohibited oy that standard

were provided

Overview

£16 8m (2021:£14 9m)
1% (20271 1%) of Total Assets

Materiality: group
financial statements

In accordance with the requirements of the as a whole
CCompanies Ac 3 .
ompanies At 2006 Key audit matters vs 2021 o Ns2021
Recurring risks Valuation of direct property a»
investments e
Carrying amount of [1sted «»
N lavestments
DKy audit mattets Gur gsass S ) -
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our pro‘essional judgement weare of most sigrificance in the audiz of the

financial statements and include the most significart assessed risks of ~aterial misstatement {wnethar or not due

to fraud) identified oy us, including those which Fad the greatest effect un: the overall audit strategy: the allocation of
resources N tne audit; and directing tne efforts of tre engagement team Ve summaise below e kay a dit matte™s
(unchanged from 2327} 1 decreasing orzer of audit aignificance, i arnving at ous audit cprrnor abowe, together with

our key audit procedures to address thase matters anc ou- Fndings from those procedures in order that the Cormpany's
members. as a Dody, may Better anderstana tre nrotess oy awhen we

Arrsec At cus opimor These matters wene

acdressed, ang cur indings are nased or procedures undertaken i~ the contaxt of ard solely for the purpose of our
audit of the financial s:atemerts as a whole, and in formerg our apinion therear, and conseguently are incidental to
that opruor, and we do not Oroade g selarate Spinen cn these natters

Lorya oot s Serounta 200
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

Valuation of direct property Subjective vaiuation'

investments (Group and 57% (2071 56 Frh- Groupla
Parent Company) and 5 6% (2071 1of be Farent
o 3 milnon; 202 Gompary's, 1ol ases 1ane

T mitllicn) neld ininves ment props

The fair vaiue uf eack gropary reaies
sfgnificant estiration, in pd'T"Zui’J’
with regard ti the key eatmateo rertd
value and yi=id assurmptons :
assumptions vill pe rmoarted oy @
nurnber of facters inc uding gual ty anrd
condition of the bui'ding and tenant
covendant strengin

Re‘er to pages 5Gto g’
fAadi
Pmmrt; pages 77 qmj
aunting policy,
cmd nota 10 an pag
to 88 {financial disclosures)

The effact of these mattars is thal,
as partof ourraka SMent e
determined that 1tba valuatam o
Mvestmert procert.es has, 5 niqk
deqgree of egtimation unee-tamty,

potential range of reascnables Huteomees

greater than our matarialy for e
financial statements as a vinalz. "ne
financial Stater\“mr% frote 10) disclose
the sensitity e oy Ine Groun

Wil el

Soe periormied the 42
Mg.a-ékmgh‘re‘ woof the Group's
her 3uss TN agturs of 1r|p Sulance

e primar y trrough
wdures desorbhad
Cior procedures ncigded
. Assessing valuer's cradentials: L5173 Ju” e

[s158] 3|Lation speciaast, we eva Jated Ihe

ol '1;3 -ere. exps cm.zermd ndepande
lhe exieral sauer

» Tests of detail: We cumpanad the mformaten
crovvided by the Group 10 s exlernal property

fore rnpﬁvjforuppr'\e such as

: Tie A tenancy dala to xupr rlirg

j’)r urr'»-m\ roladirg les an aq'aemar

- Methodology choice: ¢
CoIb s Urog s exterral or
o determice the
L3l 15 g I0ronnE



Koy 3uhilh mati=r s U Gaee3,Menl fr aas D oo

The risk Qur response

Low risk, high value:
listed investments The Group's portiona of
(Group and Parent) MVestmn e makes up 56
(£71,456 8 ~illion; 2027 88 2% of the Group s, and ¢
£1,316 ¢ mihian) 25 8%) of the Par=n"
assets by vane)
drivers of -
these mveslment
of material mis

Carrying amount of

Reter o pages 59 1067
faudr Commitles Jenart),
page 78 jaccounting paliry)
and note 10 on pages 35 10
88 (financial disclosuras)

=d level

ot corsider
. aramgk rize
HIMEry, ar to be
subject ta a significant level of
judgement benause they comprse
Iguid, quotec invastmerts Howaver,
due to their matarianty in the
of the financial staterments as a whole,
they are considerad o be one of the
areas whkich hud the grearast effect or

SOntext

We peformed the cela led t2atn below rather
sewwlrid o=y onany of the Hroup's

; ine narare of Lhe balanss
: sy ol exgecl o oblam anat
= \Jt—‘ﬂl"“ DF\"QEM\“,‘ h'”ug"] the Jelal=a
oroceduras des nged

Lear e cduraa e wied

« Test of detail: Agreaing the va uatinn of 100%
of leval 1 sted mvastments in the portfaho o
externally quoted orices; ard

- Enquiry of custedians: Agre=ing 100G% of
ivel 1 liates investment V)Id\rg Irthe
partfelio to vdzpondently rece sad third parly
canfirmations from investment custodians.

o

our overall andit strategy anz allocaton

of regoLrees n p'anning and ¢ vanle 3

our audit

Qur findings

e fourd no differens es from trird party
o\d\ng:, zonfirmetions ror from tne DXtLuﬂdHy

sw2g prees of g size 1o requite reporting t the

ALdit Comrittee (707 T no differences)

03 Qur apptication of matenality ang anr
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole
was setat £16 8m (2021 - £14 9m), determirec with
reference to a benchrmark of total assets, of wron ¢
represents 1 0% (2021 1.0%)

Materiality for the parent company financial statements
as awbole was set at £16 0m (2021 £14 1m) wnizh

15 tne component materiality for the parent company
determined by the group audit ergagement feam This
15 lower than the materiality we would cthenwise have
determired with reference to pasent company total
assets, of which it represents 0 95% (2021 0 95%)

nline with our aadit methedology, ou” procedures
an ndividual account balances and disclnsures wers
parformed to a iover threshold, performance mateaality
50 as to redune (o an acceptable leval the ek rmar
ndradualty Tmmatenal misstatements in g doal
Accoant balances add up to a matenal amaourt gomon”
the financial staternents as a whole. Performance
matenaltty was set at 75% (2071 757%) of matenalty
for the financial statements as a whole, wimon equates
o7 6m { 2()2 £711m) for the Growp and £720m
(2021 £10 5m) for tae Parent Company We annhies
this per(,entage n our cetermiration of performag e
materality because we did nolidentfy any ‘actors
mdizating an elwahﬂr level of risk 1 aaditon, e ar‘pherz‘
materalty of £2 0m {20721 £2 0m ) arc perfurman:,

R
PR

Srnaal Hepor & & toaura

matenality of £1 5m {20271 £1 5m) to nvestiment
Income, other operating income |, gross rental income,
service charges income and ret returns on contracts fo”
grfference fur whicn we beleve misstaternants of lesser
amounts tnan matenality for the financial stataments
as a whole could reasonably pe expected to influence

the Company's rmembers’ assessrment of the financial
parformance of tne Group
We agreed 1o report (o the Audit Committee any

corrected or urcorrectad identified missiaterrents
axnarding £0 81 (2027 £7 75miin addition tu othe”
identif 2¢ misstatements that warranted reporing on
a.alitative trresrolds

Total Assets Group Materiality
F1A3em 2021 £14 3 £168m (2021 E14 97y

£16.8m

Whole financial statements
materiality (2027 €14 9m)
£16.0m

T Parent Company Matenality
(2027:£141m)

£0.84m

Misstatements reported
to the audit committes
(2021:£0 75m}

¥ Total Assets
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

Tre audit team performed the avart of the Group as f it

was a single aggregated set of financial imformation. This

approach s unchanged from the prior vear The auct oF
the Group and Parent O
Tatenality levalg set aut above and was performec by a
aingle audit team

The scope of the audit waork performed was fully
substantive as we did not rely upon the Group's internat
controls over financial reporting

24 The tmpact of chimate risk on our

audit report

We have performed a sk assassment of how the imoact

f zlimare change may affact the fingncial stalements

amd our audit Level 1 listed investments make Lp

&6 4% of the Graup's total assets, for which farr value

15 determined as the guoted market price Therefore,

we assessad that the financia! statement estimate that

i primanty exposed (o chmate fsk s the imvestmeant
praperty portfolie, for whick the valuation assamptions

and estimates may be impacted by physical ana noliny

ot legal climate risks, such as flooding or anincrease

in clhimate related comphanca expenchture We nald

discussions with our own chmate changea professiorals

to challenge aur f1sk assessment We assessed toat

winlst chmate change posed a nsk to the deterrmimaticn

of iInvestment property valuations in the current year

tris risk was not significant when considering beth the

~ature and domnicile of tne proparties and tre temure Ul

unecpired leases Tnerafore there was no sigrhicant

IMGEact Gf this or our key audit matte-s

Vie ngoe read the asclosure of climate related nar-atiye
in vhe f-ont nalf ot the fingrcial statemeants and
considered tongistency with the finarcial statamanrts
HEW L

A0 GuT aLoit knoy

~= Directors rave prevars

aﬂys f e r»ﬂ positor means

T2y mase alss Loncladed f-at ez ats v 7 atznial

_reartamties that oould e oast sgrifcart goubt«

Frar goithity 10 3G

Company was performad usimg tre

= or amhity to sontinus operatiors ouer the

cerr oernod Tre ks trat v consideres mast
fikely 1o a g and Compary's
availanle firancial rasourses and metrics relevant e dedt
COveEnanis 0 This BENGS wrate

Y=l Y affert (re Groun's

siyrificant reduction i tre valuat on of
irvestTietts and the imiphoations for the roup's ana

Company's gept Cossnants;

Theimpactofa

+ The iquidity of the irvestnient port alic ard its abdity
to meet tre habiities ¢f tne Growp as and wne~ they
fall dus; and

Trne operational “esilience of <&y service organrisaticns,
b4 ¢
onwhicn te Groud s depencant to cartinue

We considersd whether tnese neks could olausibly aifect
tre houwdity &7 “overant Comphance 1IN e guing conuver”
penod by assessing tne degree of downside assamphior
tnat, incvanatly a~a collectivaly could resoltin a bauaty
taking Info acrount the Groun's o Company's
current ard projested cass and hioud irvestment
oSIton 1A reverse stress test ) We considered wh
the go'ng concer arsclosure 'n note 7 1o e financ’al
statements gres a fall and ascuate gescription of the
DIrectors as smert of going consas including the
de~tifiad risks and relatec sensitivties

pfher

SLoonclusions ngees an this work

= Drractors Lse ot tha gong

: nlimgin the pnzparation o e
franoial stataens 13 apRIopnate,

c e hnge raticentifed ard corourwimm the Directors’

zmact that there s ~ot g matenab wncertaimty

“elated o . cgrmar i adeaily or
collacii 2], may sast :ignifoan duub snthe Groups

Piatie

rooneoih
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fowever 45 we cannot predwt all future events or
conditiors and as subseguent events may result n
outcomes faat are inconsistent with judgemarts that
were reasonanle at the time they were made the above
conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group o~
Company will continue in cperation

25 Fraud and breaches of laws and
reguiations apility to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

Todentify risks of matenal musstatement due to fraug
{fraud nsks ) we assessed events or conditiors that
could Indicate an centive or pressare (o commit fraug
or provide an oppartunity to cormmut fraud Qur risk
assessment procedures included

Enguinng of Directors as to the Group's ~i1gh level
policies and procedures to prevent and detect frauc,
as well as whether they have knowledge cf any actual,
suspacted or alleged fraud;

- Assessing the segregation of duties in place between
the Directors, the Advinistrator and the Group's
Investment Manager; and

Reading Board and Audit Committee minates

As requirec by auditing standards, we perform
procedures to address the risk of maragement uvernide
of controls, In particular to the nzk that managermant may
beina position to maxe inappropnate accounti™g antries
We evaluated the design and implementatior of tre
controls over jourmal entries and other adjustments and
made nquires of the Administrator about iImraporepriate
or unusual activity relating to the processing of journal
antries and other adjustments

We substantively tested all matenal post closirg enlrnes
and, oazad an the results of our rigk assessTent
procedures and anderstanding of the proLees 1neluing
the segreganion of duties batweer the Directours ani the
Administrator, no further high nsk jourral entries ar athear
agjustrnents were 1dentified.

Onthis audit we have rebatted the fraug nsk ~slatec

o revenue recogrition because the revenue s

nen judgemeantal and straightforwars with imirtd
opportunity for manipulatior We did rotinantty any
sigrificant Lnuguat transactions or additional fraud risks.

P A PR vin I AR I R I

identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non compliance with laws and
regulations

Wedentified areas of lav:s a~d regulations that could
“egsonatly be axpectad to have a matenal efect on

the financial statements froim our general commercial
anc sector experience and trrough discLssio” with the
Ctors. the investment Managar and the Administrator
(as recalred ov andting stancasds) and mizeessed will:
tne Directors the policies and orocecures regarding
compla~ce with laws and regulations As tne Parent
Company s regulated, our assessment of nsks invelved
gaming an understarding of the cortrol envirorment
inciuding the entity's procedares for complying with
regulatory requirements

The potential effect of these laws ana regulations on the
financial statements vares considerably.

Firstly, the Company 15 subject to laws and regulations
that directly affect the firarcial statements including
financial reporting legislation {ncluding related
compznies legisiatcon), distributable profits legislation,
and its gualification as an Investment Trust under UK
taxation legislation, any oreach of which could lead to
the Group losing vanous dedactions and exemphions
from UK corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of
complance with these laws and regulations as part ¢
our proceadres on the related financial statement iterns

We assessed the legality of the distriutions made by
the Company In tre peniod basec on womoanng the
drvicends paid to the cetrbutable reserves orior to each
distrinution

Secendly | the Group s subjest to many other lav:s anc
regulations where I"2 congeduences of ron compliance
coul have g matenal efect or amourts o disclosures
ir the financial staterrents, for instarce through the
imposition of fries o Witigatior. We identif ed the
following areas as thoae mest hkely to have su an
tfect morey lanrdenng, data orotecnon onbery and
cortotion lzgisltion aod certam aspects of company
legislation recognising the firancial nature of the
Growos dctiyties and it legal forrme Auditing stanaards
it the requires audit procedures 1o de 1y nor
LOMpiancee with these lawe s ana regulations 1o enguity
ol the Dircotors ard the Adrmimistrataor ara mspectse of
datory and lzgat ~orresphndence f acy Therefore
A r=arn of Doaratenal reguliahons
eIdet from maleyant Lorresnondenos, 57
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independent auditor's report
continued

Tang hreg cbeee 5taan s aod rega 2t o

et

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud

or breaches of law or regulation

Cvang to theinherent imitations of an auoi, thers s a-
Lnavoidable risk that we may not nave detected s0me
material misstaternents in the financial statements, aven
though we have properly planned and performed cur audit
In accordance with auditing standards For example, the
further remaoved nor compliance with laws and regulations
15 from the events and transactions reflected in the Trancial
statements, the less likely the inherently mited aroceaurss
required by auditing standards would identify 1t

raddiion, as with any audit there rermainad a mgher 71k
of non detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion
forgery. intenticnal smissians, misrepresentations or tre
override of internal controls Our audit procedures are
cesigned to detect matenal rmisstatement We are ~ot
respansibie for praventing non comphance o7 fraud and
cannat pe expected to detest non comotidn. s witr all
laws and regulations

LT owe have nothing to rapart on the wioes
SAroimanon n the Annusl Bspors

I'he Directors are respansible for the other ir‘ormation
presented in the Annual Report together with tne finannizl
staternents. DJur coinion on the financial staterments does
not cover the otherinformation and, accardingly. vie o9
net exXpraas an audit ooimon or except as exnicithy stated
oelovr any farm of assourance corclusion thereon

Jar asponsiolity 15 1 read the other nformator and o
doing so, consider whether pased on our financ’al
slatements audit work, the informatior tnersims
matariall, misstated or incorsistant with the firancia
statemie~ts or our a0t <rowletns Basec solaly

Sorkowe have notidentifed materal misstiatem

Lthaririormanon

Strategic report and directors’ report
HameC uldly 27 CLe QT Qn e Stoar et gt
stocentif ed material missiaemants o k2
el lolb i i TR SRS Tl tor M e P ia

Gt animce tre i fernghon gt ir trase tEno s

atemer s gro

ferire fazropl year s corsistsnt vath toe foar oo
[

Directors’ remuneration report

{7 our opirn the part of tre Jis2tos’ Remueration
Reoart 1o e audited has seen orGoerly orepared in
accoraance witt tre Dompanes Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and longer
term viability

We are “equired to pe-furm procedJres to 1deniify
wnetner therens a mateal inconsistensy netweer the
directors disclosures in respect of emerging and orircipal
risks and the cong-Term Viability Statement, and the
financial statements and our audit knowladge

Baged or those procedures, we have nothing matenal to
add o draw attention to - relatio~ to

+ the Directors’ confirmation within the Long-Term
hability Statement or pages 20 ana 31 that tray raze
carnen out g rebust assessment of the emerging
ana pr-apal sks facirg the Group, iImcluding trose
tnat would threaten its business maedel, future
performar:e. salvency ana liguidity;

the Principal Fisks and Uncertainties disclasures
desonbimg tness 19xs and Now SME GING ris<s ure
iaentified and explaning how they are being managed
ara mitigated; and

+ tne Direciers” explaration in tre cong-Tern Yiabihity
Statemant of now tray Nave assassed e prosn=cts
O tne Gruun o aral perud they rgue dans so ann
g they sonsideed that penod 1o 02 30p-cprate ara
trals statemant a5 to wnetne” trey havs a 2aso apls

SontirLe

related oanlonures draesg atteriinr (o any
gualificar ors or ansurpet ons

(S S Talzrale Tl b it

rents and Tur 2uae Lrowds g,
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Corporate governance disclosures

We are required 1o perform procedures toidentify
wnether there s a matenal iInconsistercy betweer e
Directors’ corporate governance disclosures anc the
financial statements and our audit knowlecge

Based on those procedures, we have concluaen trat
eack of the fallowing 1s materially consistent vt 7 the
financial statements and our audit knowledge

+ the Directors” statement that they corsider thar tre
annual report and financial statements taksn as
awhole s far, balanced and understandanle, and
provides the information necessary for sharenciders
to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strateqy;

< the section of the annual report descrioing the work of
the Audit Committee, including the significan? issues
that the audit commitiee considered ir relatcn to
the financial staterents, and how these 1s5ues were
addressed; and

the section of the annual report that describes
the review of the effectiveress of the Group's risk
management ard internal control systems

We are required to review the part of Corporate
Governange Statement relating to the Group's
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified oy the Listing Rules for our
review We Fave rothing to report in this respent

~y

CE Ve ngva nothing to repart oon e rr -
maatters gn o whichowe are red et =0

SRRy SOl ¢ SETN T

Lnder the Cornpanies Act 2006, we ae equied 1o "enart

to you Hc, I aur Gpimian’

+ adequate accounting renards rave net peer Kept
returns agecuate for our audit nave not been rereied
from brarchas rot wisited by us or

+ the parent Company financial statements ard the oar:
of tre Directors’ Remureratior Renort te be audiferd
are notr agreement witn the acoountirg 7= 07Cs 517
eturns, or

cartalr disclosures of Directors rermuraraiinn
sopecified by law are notmade, or

wie ave nol recaived all the imformation an
explaralions we require for our audt

W havé net~ing 1o 200r1n these regpaets

e R e Ti,e BILo e Tl
S IS 4 Clie IOV Tl ~

Directors’ responsibilities

As axplairec more fully v their statemeant s2t out &
Dage 62 the Directors ae responsiale for the
preparaiion of the finrancial staterments including beiny
satisfiag that they give a t-ue and fair view, stch ntarnz)
control as they astermine 15 necessasy o erable tre
preparation of financial statemerts that are ‘ree from
malenal mpastaternart wnether dud ro fravd o enar,
assessing the Group and carert Compary's ability to
cononue as a guirg cencern, distlesing, as applicable,
matters elated to going concern: ard usi~g the going
concern hasis of accounting unless they either intend to
haudate tre Group or the parent Sompany or 16 cease
operations or have no realistic altermnative but to co 50

Car objectives are to obtair reasonable assurance
ahout whetner the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaterment, whetrer dae to frawd
or arros and to 1ssae Qur oonon i an awditor’s reoort
Reascnable assurance 1s a ugh level of assurance,
but does not guarantee that an audit condurnted in
accordance with 'SAg (U will always netect a matenal
misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arse
fro-n fraud or error and are considered matenal if
mdivid.ally or inaggregate, they could reasonably be
expactad to influence the economic decisions of users
raker on the basis of the financial staternanta

15

Afuller descriohon of our “gsporsibilties
provided o0 the FRT'S websie at www fre 07g uk,
auaitarsresponsicihties

[he Gompany i3 "equired to include thase financial
staterments 0 ar annual finanzial report prepared using
the single electroric reporting format specif ed in the
FOESEF Regulation This gueitor's report provades no
assurance aver whetnar the an~ual finarcial raport Fas
Deen Draparer 17 gooordansg Aith that tormat

MANIBAQ
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independent auditor's report
continued

T

PO The purpase of our audit work ang o
H~ROM o wWe pwe our responsibilities

Trig reportis made solely to the Cempany’s members
as g body, in accordance with Cnapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 ana the terms of owr engagenert
by the Compary Dur audit wor« nas been undertaxen

3o that we might state 1o the Cornpany's mamoers
thase matters we are required £0 state to them in ar
auditors report and the further matters we are ranired
ta state to thermin accargance with the tarms agrasd
with the company. for no other purpase. To the FLllest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiliy 10 anyone other than the Compary and the
Cumpany's members, as a body. for our audt wears for
tnig report. or for the opirions we nave formed

Philip Merchant {Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on
behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor

KPMG
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Income
Investment income

2
Other operating income 4
Gross rental income 3

3

Service charge income

Gains on investments held

at far value 10
Net movement on foreign

exchange; investments

and loan notes

Net movernent on fareign

exchange; cash and cash

equivalents

Net returns on contracts for

difference 10
Netreturnon totalreturnswap 10
Total Income S,
Expenses

fManagement and performance

fees 5
Direct preperty expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3
Other adrinistrative expenses 6

Total operating expenses _
Operating profit/{loss)

Financecosts 7
Profit/(loss) from operations

before tax

Taxaton 8

Total comprehensive income

Earningé/(loss) per'Ordinary
share 9

T T g,

CrbLTaee To e naranaizers o0

Year ended 31 March 2022

13.65p

75.07p

-

Revenue Capital
Return Return
£000 £000
44,170 - 44,170
5 - 5
2,773 - 2,773
1,103 - 1,103
- 249,038 249,038
- 1,136 1,136
- 637 637
5,701 16,361 22,062
58752 267172 320924
{1,663) (29,477) (31,140)
{1,435) - {1,435)
_ (.2 _ (608)  (2229)
___ (4719  (30,085) _ (34,804)
49,033 237,087 286,120
_(629)  (1,886)  (2515)
48,404 235,201 283,605
_(4967) 3049 (1918)
.._.43437 238250 281687

88.76p

~{1.237)

ST

Year ended 31 March 2021

Revenue
Return
£000

36,857
67
3,185
1,051

3.320

44180

(1,5%6)

{1.321)

(4.108),

40,672
(418]

39,656
(767

38,889

Capital
Retum
£000

196,582
(3144

(1,474)

17,978
~(188)

{14,378)

(604)

(14932

194,827

(1.969)

192,853
2,657

. 195520

61 61p

Total
£000

36,557
8/
3,185
1,051

166,582
(3.144)

.474)

21,208
_(188)

253934

(15,884)

(1,327}
_ (1,838)
(19.040)

234,894
_(2389)

232,509
1,900

... 234409

73 86p



Group and Company statement of changes in equity

Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
At31March2021 79,338 43162 43971 1159962 1326433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid V- - __(a5381)  (45381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - - 281,687 281,687
Pividends pgid 7 e - - _(45387) (45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000
At 31 March 2020 S 79,338 43,167 43,971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensve income 234,409 234,409
Dividendspaid S A s
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,159,862
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redempticn Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2021 Notes £°000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2020 79,338 43,162 43971 969,982 1,136,453
Total comprehensive income - - 234,409 234,409
Dwidendspad R ¥ T maane) o (44429)
At 3T March 2021 79,338 43162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
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Group and Company balance sheets

Company Group Company
2022 2021 2021
£000 £000 £'000
Non-current assets )
Investments held at fair value 10 1,506,436 1,506,436 1,400,516 1,400,516
Investrments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,297 43312
Investments heidforsale 10 48980 48980 e - e
1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443,828
Deferredtaxationasset 12 %08 903 .. 88 68
1,556,319 1,592,616 1,401,202 1,444,574
Current assets
Debtors 12 97,673 97,208 60,980 60,520
Cashandcashegquivalents —~ ~ 3219 32107 23014 _28112
129,782 129,315 90,104 89632
Current liabilities 13 (66,109) (101,939} {107,280) (150,120}
Net current assets/(liabilities) 63,673 27,376 (17.176) (60,488)
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,619,992 1,619,992 1,384,026 1,384,026
Non-current labilities 13 (57,253) {57,253) (57,593) (57,593)
Netassets 1,562,739 1,562,739 1326433 1326433
Capital and reserves
Called up share caprtal 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79,338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43,162 43,162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43,971 43,971 43971 43971
Retained earnings ) 16 1,396,268 1,396,268 o 1as89sZ2 1,159967
Equity shareholders’ funds 1,562,739 1,562,739 1,326,433 1,326,433
Net Asset Value per:
Ordinary share 19 492.43p 492.43p 417.97p 417 97p
Trese financal statermenrs were approved fy the diractars of TR Property Inscgimen Trast pla [lompany Mo 84162 anz

authornised jorissue on 13 June 2027

Daved, Watasn

D Watson
Director

Trz otz frorneadss 7o 100 5 oa7t 27 inene Simaeaal Srate et



Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company
2022 2021 2021
£'000 £6060 £'060
Reconciliation of profit from operations S
before tax to net cash cutflow from
operating activities
Profit from operations before tax 283,605 283,605 232,509 231,844
Finance costs 2,515 2,515 2,385 2,385
Gains on investments and derivatives held
at fair value through profit or loss (265,399) (258,387) (214,372) (207,255)
Net mavement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (977} (977) (179) (179)
Scrip dividends inciuded in investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference (10,839) (10,839} (8,489) (8,489)
Sales of investments 544,370 544,370 353167 353,167
Purchases of Investments {430,830} (430,831) (370,496) (370,4956)
Decrease / (increase) in prepayments and
accrued income 8 8 {102) (102)
{Increase) / decrease in sales settlement
debtor (32,871) (32,871) 4,753 4753
increase / (decrease) in purchase
settlerment creditor 5170 5170 (5.781) {5,781)
Decrease / (increase) in other debtors 2,951 2,951 (11,436) (11,436}
Increase / (decrease) in other creditors 13,809 6798 2.451 (4001}
Net cash (flow/outflow) from operating
activities before interest and taxation 111,512 111,512 {15,590) (15,590}
Interest paid (2,515) (2,515} (2,607} (2,607)
Taxationpaid _(1,258) (1,258) oesy (1.915)
Net cash (flow/outflow) from
operating activities 107,739 107,739 (20,112) (20,112)
Financing activities
Equity dvidends paid {45,381) (45,381) (44,479) (44,429)
(Repayment)/Drawdown of joans __(60000)  ~ (60000) _..55000 _ 55000
Net cashfiow from financing activities _(105381) .. {105,381) 10571 10,571
Increase/(decrease) in cash 2,358 2,358 {(9.541) (9,541)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 29,114 29,112 40129 40,127
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents 637 637 (1,474 (1,474)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 32,109 32,107 29,114 29,112
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Notes to the financial statements

<o

Accounting pelicies

The financial staterments for the year ended 37 Maron 2027
JK-adapted Interrational accounting standards ahrj M oonformi
Slgleraris bay 3 been prepared in acoord
Irvyestment Trugt Companies and Veniure capia:
acenunting Standards

hawe seer prepared an 3 guing CorCer Lasis, In accordance with

.‘\tw e requirements of the Zomoaries Act 2008 The fing~cial
mneted Fry Finanoia Stalemeris of

I srn Kz doplad rerr gt na!

and e Group T sl
Hrathmin e Tiert
g N2 =fFa s g e

i a55E53Myg Bang Conoarn trie Board Nas mgle 3 o
s habiiities as they fall due, mcluding stres
valualions, sLbstanial reductions im revenues ret
2ngoing econamic irrpact of the war:n Ukraine The Bos-d is satisfied
thirg party service provigers as workirg practices - '
perfrrmance

dand e Leians 1n maras g iy
Fitne coerar ong! res memvoftm Cumpar
ID-2 6 pandarmic Cu 200 rues B ondar Ineir

i

a35e

In hght of the testing carred ou, the iiquidny of the level 1 assets held by the Company and the significant net asset velue
and the net current asset position of the Group and Parent Company, the Sivectors are satisfied that the Company and
Group frave adequate financial resources te continue i operation for at least the next 12 months following the sigring of
the finanzial statements and therefore it is appropriate to adopt the gaing concern basis of accounting

The Group and Company financial statements are e)\prna““u in \wellmg wieh s their furctional and presentational
curreney Sterting is the functional currenay b 2 f is the o B N’Ir 2 ANTIANY ATON0TT A iron et i e e
Group operates Valtues are rounded 1o the rears RIT: Uyhere atheresteir i ed

IHH»—“( "\H

Key estimates and judgements

Tre preparation of the financial statemeants necessarily requires the exs

ar:tw:)umimg policias whnick are st aut balow, 20 17 e aoie 00 Ol ASELrErors usedin (e gl ot estimares
36 and judgements are rey o ar angoing basis and are continually 2va valed posed snbiston: g

2 ppmpq\ e and other factors How ar gal meselis may o ffer from l"'H.y— ant Tates Theony ey Aolmats

i5 consideted o be e valuation of iny s ent or Lperiies Sednel “ihis There grengl Tonsidered

o e any key judgements

ise of judgerent betn appima‘mn of

a) Basis of consolidation

\n"pcm), and 43 subsd aries 1o 21 March
merts Inaccordance with

Th« Group financial staterments consoliaate the fnanc al staternents of e £
2022, Allthe subsidianes of tne Company ha saligated n e
IFRST the Company has besn designated 4= =

RGT s

cobtams funds frare irvestors and grovides i

Feoare | SRI) NN,

St comreite 10 s nveslorns Thal its business purpons i ve
rvastresnt noome; and

s Measuras ang &oaluetes performance o Lunar

Fuck af e -

operations :

thal o the cqae afro rl’ J-fﬁ = z os At .
R "‘;UWJ(J 20 ral“mi ‘arw oresent eﬁ as e

dated fror e dan
e date trat sush sente

o Sased on

242
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[t

Accounting policies
c) Expenses

515, An analysis of retained earnings broxen down nto

All expenses and finance costs are accountaed for on an acoruals ba
r be-:ﬂ prasented 95 reven.ds

revenue ana capital rems is given n nate 16 rariv ng al Ibis srea<dows =xpar
iterms execept as foilow:s

» Expenses waich are inadental to the acqirstion o disposal of anrvestnent,
» Expenses gre presented as captal wWhars o o aac 0wl e IHainbear anea or 2nmansemznt O e vglu- of e
invesiments can be demonstrated; tus ncludes irece serable YaT rourred ar eosts re atirg 1 '.r'u axlzn:on of

residenbal leases as premiums received for exlerding or erm nalhing beases ara racngnized o il apial aoeount

« One quarter of the base managermrent fee s zharged o reweru_m_ witn three guarters allocarad to capital return 1o reflest
the Board 5 expactations of long term investmest “elarns Al performance fees are charged o capita’ returm

- The fund administration, depositary, custudy and corrpany secraana services are charg2d directly to the Ccmpanv an
are included within ‘Other administrative expenses innole o These expenses are cnarged on he same basis as the bz
management fee; one guarter to income ard tnree Guarters fo capital

d} Finance costs

The finance cost in respect of capital ‘nstruments other thar equity sha<es 1s calculated so 93 to give & constant rate
of return on the outstanding balance. One quarter of the finance costis charged to revenue and three guarters to
capital return

e) Taxation

Current lax assets and liabilities are measured 2t the arrcun! expacted 03 be recover=d from ur pard "0 the taxatian
guthorities, based on tax ratas and laws traz are enacied or supsiantively enacted by Fe balanae shest date

Income tax s charged or cregited diractly 1o equity if it relates tolems tral are credited o7 charged Lo equity
Otherwise iIncome lax is recognised in the Group Statement of Curmprehens™e Income

The tax effect of different ttems of expenditure 13 allacated Detween canilal and revenue L3 ng the Group s effectye rate of
tax for the year The charge for taxation is based on the profit for the year and takes ‘nto account taxation deferred because
of temporary differences between the treatment cfcertair iterns frr tavatior and auoounat ng purpos

In accordance wth the recommeandations of tne SURFE the allocaton metkac Lsed (o calod ate lax raliaf or expenses
Drﬂapmoﬂd agdlml capital returns in the sapplemantany nforrr gtizn in the stater-ent of Comprenensive Income s he
"marginal basis” Under this basis, if taxaole 1mcome s« dpgt e i being of a2t entirely by expenses presentad in the
revenue return colurmn af the Statement of Comprehersive ~corie, thar ro tax ralafis transferred 1o the capital cotumrn

i betaeen the Tarry ng amonrts of gosets and

Deferred tax is the lax expacted to 08 payah 2 or regoverabls on diferencas
liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the correspording tax pases used i the computation of taxable profit, ana is accounted
for usirg the balance shest habi'ity mathced Delsrrad lay zbates are recagnises for gl tuxa ol e porany differences

and deferrad tax assets are recognised to the extent tnat it13 probable that taxahle profits will be avatlable aganstwhick
deductible temparary differences can be ut’l sed

N grd 8 seoh s ool bables farrax on
Az izl gang tax

atun Tax

The Cormmpary v an mvesiment Irust under & 1153 5f e Corpor
capital gains Capital gains arising in subs diary comparies ars

aunpeeT o

f) Investment property

SNESTRRNTHIEN Se¥ IS S (PO
F",’ f ,\r ‘I

nerty

D IEEE TN

Tranisan tor ol
e e
UORLUT

Ime;.tmen tproperty is measured w’r‘\t'a\w dl

saicng fees for lagal services ane nihal le
L be d_JqU{:‘ of cperatirg The carryng o al.
at the e trat cost s nearredal
affucted nn the date unconditora: w0

170 T TR) TN .
’ T r:rr\,} P ey
A I'w-]L 1" T i 2
a2 el s o raasr s sfproagert’e
Tl e =l hgnged

Tyt

Slateed S wdine Sam s s riarmg om hiutig=s n ihe
et 3 e e n e pegr e bier irey ar e

Subsaquent 'oomtal recogrilion, e esirert pripeety
fairvalues areirc'uced n the G mup srawﬁem i

mvestrmen property s derecognisad viber

economic benefit 1s expected from its dispe
are recngrised i in2 Group Statement of Sompres.

ger s pogerd Sl 0T perreanent v e from LGz ar o future
caains or leszes or theret: rer*em or dispasal "J(\’wc“:ﬂﬂ’ 2P DIODErY
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Cameon 2e s
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and e carying vaiue o the assetgr tne o

Revaluation of investrnent properties

The Group carrias s ny2stmenl propertis, ot A I TR I
N i vanaes beirg renognized i the roup olaterears e oreber
mideperdant vaiuaior specialists Ly d=terrmins S
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

A0

Accounung policias

Valuations of investment properties
Cetermination of the fair value '.'m /2ETMENnt Properties nas ceer preparzo o7 e hazs defined by the RICS valuation -
Global Standargs (The Rec Book Glopal Stanga-ds) as

The estimated amount forwhick & progerty s y g0 ir g Dayer ard o ling
erin an arm's 'ength trarsecnon after propar marceiimg sharan the parties naa 2e-b atad st gaably oradgenty

and without compuls sn”
future revenue streams,
3 ar.d the overall repar ard condtien
ased on ioea: market cond hons

The valuation takes into account future cast flow from asse
capital values of fixtures and fittings, plant and maschine:
of the property) and discourt rates apghoan'= 1o thove o
exalng al the baanee sheet date

2dge and
Sfinpuis L ihe

i arriving at ther estimates of fair values ag at 31 March 2027
prafassional judgerrent and nave not only reliad sciely 3n 1 storical ransacon
va'uatior can be seen in the sensitivity analys’s hosed in Aote 10 (@

S0 Rl NETKe Ar O
smoargbies Examnp

i feid for sale mvesimant are presanted sepa-ately or the face of the Bala-ce shea
Held for sale
Invastmert property class: fied as hela for sale is maasurad fair value

This
midi

ondition is regarded s mel only when [re investman’ proparty is aoelahle T mmeadiate 500 o
o1 ard the sale s bighly crobable

e Al g reasnnable price o

wed sale wirrin una year frore the

Managemenl must be committed woa plan for
relabion 19 1s fair vaiue which shoald be expac tea to quafy far racogritior
date of classification

srle vtk ar active prigram e ident
A Mg

Rental income
Rerntal 'neome recebvaple Jader operating | N fSu
contngert reatal income which s recagnised when o ¢

G otraigni-ira b gyar e term sl Tne saie, exo2nt inr

Inrentives for lessess o anter INto l2ase 4
ase 1erm, ever 1f the payments are nol mgde on

greersilg “rae oennds ag AT apregal eveny wef
armits the nor : = period
AlnLe ing leass whera 2t the ns epie
aplan Prer s o 3
CINOrEn2 a0 s 10 e A they g3

3T terr

')’“r d TECIOrs ars md,»
~xiend fea esare recogrised i

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants
'reore arising from exparses retnatged
cred Sarvice charges and olner such
consigerthat the Groap ac rncipal m s

g) Investments

AR g Ll Or s& e s mage anders i b
TaTEl The !

far :'a\ 5
s2lng, The sun

surrentl, VEJ-U
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Accounting pehcies

Derivatives continued

Caortracts for Differsnce (CFDs ) are synibelio acuiles and ars vaload oy relerencs 15 the investmert, arderying marksl vl

The sources of the returns under the derpative contract (2.9, notional giviaenas, financ g costs, iNtérast returts anda
capital rhanges) are alocated to the rey enue and capilal aooou~te n al ur*mvrl vk i raturs of the und Mg EGUres
of income ard ir accordanae with tha guidarn s giver n the A Si0RP Natenal diradend imcome or experses 'm;'m]
on long or skart poaitions are dpporimrwd weral v o Tas ravene a:r. want Moo gl ;
1 appo toned between revenue and capital in accordusee woth ina Board's
(currently getermired to be 75% (0 the revenae goooant 4md 7% l* sapital regenes) Chang=. n 'm'u»ﬂ ru\'l‘mﬂ tis
undearlying price moverments of sernnmes inrelat on b CETpnse e sl 41000 wiho o cacnal resersarn

h} Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

All loans and debentures are initially recognised at the fair value of tne corsiderat on recared, @35 issue cosls where
applicabie After nitial recagrition, ali interest baaring luans and borrowngs are sutsaquarty measursed at amaoartised
cost Amortised costis caleulated by takirg into account ary discount or premium on seltlemert The eosts of ararging
any interest beaning loans are capitalised and arorised nver e ifz of the loan an an =ffeotve migrast rate basis

i) Foreign currency translation

Transactions involving foreign currencies ara corverted at tha ral=ruing ar tne cale of the ransscnor

;)

=N

U
X
jul
g
i

Sterlirgat theralz rulng on the baanee

Foreign vurremy monetary assets and liahilites ame translalad mo
sof Comprehenaive Income

Foreign excharge differences are recognised nthe Groun statemran:

j) Cash and cash equivalents
nard arc demard deposita

Cash and cash aquivalents are megsuredg al arrorbsed o3t ard comprse O

k) Dividends payable to shareholders

interim dividends are recognised in the paricd n which they are paid and final dividends are recognised when anproved
by shareholders

1) Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting policies adapted are consistent witk those of the previous consclidated firancial statermnents exceal as

roted below

IAS 36, IFRS 4 7,9 and 16 Amendmerts - interest Rate Benchrmark Refarm (Phase 2) (effactive © January 202711 1BUR reform
refers to the global reform of interest rate benchrarks whicincodes he replcement of sorea mternark “T“er ul=s (IBOR)
with alternative benchmark rates. To ensure users of “nancial statements can understand the er act of thereformaor a co rhpa'w‘s
financial instrurents and risk management strategy, anditional nforrnation on the nature and extant of r'ske to which the compan:
is eXpOsed ansmg from financial instruments subject to IBOR reforrr s requived. In addition, aetals of the cormpany s orograss in
compl2ting its lrarsilions to alternative penchmarn ateg is regar=d

FRS 16 Arrendments -Covid 149 Related Ko Donressiors (el et 7 40 L0275 the May (0T amendrier s, woionniescuced
an opticnal practcal expedient that simplifies how a lessee atoounts “ar rert . omesolon“ *na‘ z7e & direct Lonseguence of
Cowvid-19, have been extended to lease payments originally due on or before 30 June 23272

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards 1ssued before the reportirg dura that b
a material 2ffect on equity or pruﬂt for the subsacuent pericy The Group has not earky
Finarcial Report.ng S1andarn or Alen L ostandares armandreentso g d 1 leron,
10 the date ofissuance of the Group s fimang’al stater~ents are listed be

Sreb o T ArR n Ak by 00 7S
iduplf—d any ey Ir*ﬁfruam)rar
P s s e d g aur et e

At afir 470

s Cdrrent or Non-Uurrent feffactee date amenay dto " dmngary 2230
YR g all s da arrenT o none Jurter s e mar drren | Doane

[AS 1 Amenameants - Classification of Liabilities
Trg grmanaments specify the requicernerts fo
expecied to have a material impast an e Groud's fnarcial statemenis

IA5 1 Amerdmants - Disclosure of Acecuntirg 2olicies (effectve 7 Jaraary 2023 Tz arrerdments regqure ar ant'ty Lo
discloge itg material nw*oum'ng policy nformation nstead of *s signfeant accounting pelc'es. The ameand-rarts contan
gu'danr e and examples cnidentify ng reassriu ocosnas Jpsling riurmna o fhe gre 2nirnent Gren Ut ex e el Lo G
a matenal ‘'mpact or the Group's financial staterrents.

3T mants 4ef ne ;
ntunsertginty . The
TR S e

fIOLJﬂ(Iﬂg
mendrmeris
bl

A5 8 Amendmrants - Def nition of Accounting Tstimates (affect™ve 1 Jaruza-y 20237 Th
astimates a5 'monatary amaunis in financial statements that &7g subject 1o rmaasure
Alsesclaniiy the nierne Non nelw e dety and g7 car g st miale 7
to have a materal irpact on the Group s fingroal staterments

9

ior {etrective 1 Jaruary 20C3)

[AZS 12 Amendments - Deferrec Tax related 1o Ao‘:(, s and Lizg it
(I O (T SN e F It [ It o

The amerdenls reguire entiles wath sertam o
grea rese 1 ecual amounts of e are detu

es arisnig from a S ngle Transe
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

02

03

.

Investment ingome

2022 2021

£000 £000
Dwidends from UK listed investments 3101 3783
Dividends from overseas listed investments 21,349 18,656
Scrp dividends from listed investments 10,693 7482
Property ncome distributions 9,027 6,666
- s 36557
Net rental tncome

2022 2021

£000 £000
Gross rental ncome 12,773 3185
Service charge income 1,103 1.057
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs (1,435} (1 ,321_

2,441 . 2915

Operating leases
The Group has entarsd nic cormrmeraial 1239es
termis betwesr 5 and 15 vears and moluas
orevalling rmakel cordilions some leas

Future mriremurn reptals under non-canaelac'> cosating teaess 28 @ 31 R rnh gre as ol s

2022 2021

£000 £000
wittn Tyear 7 7 2800 T 3000
After 1 year but not mare than 5 years 10,250 10,000
More than 5 years 17,500 ] 19,000
. 30,550 ] 32,000
Other gperating income

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Interest recervable - 1
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax 5 44

Underwnting commission - , 22




YETTYCIY:S

05 Management and performance fees

2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 4
o
Management fee 1,663 4,988 6,651 1,556 4669 6,225 "-;
performancefee - 24,489 24,489 - 965 9659 g
1,663 29,477 31,1440 1,556 14,328 15,884 ;
A summary of the terms of the management agreement is given in the Report of the Directors on page 43
06 Other administrative expenses
2022 2021 e
£000 £'000 £
Directors’ fees (Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 56 to 58) 220 232 §
Auditor's remuneration:
- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial
slatements 82 80
Legal fees 21 15
Taxation fees 77 69
Other admimistrative expenses 199 199 %
Other expenses 869 454 H
1]
Irrecoverahle VAT 153 182 g
Expenses charged to Revenue 1621 1,231 E]
Expenses charged to Capital 608 604 %
2,229 1,835
Other adminstralive expenses include depositary, cusindy anc compary secretarial services Thess expenoes a7
rharged on the same basis ag the base Management St income and 75% o can tal Tota other aeminsiratve
expenses charged 10 both ircome ard napiia’are £8I7,005 (2027 £797 0000 @
-3
Orher expenses nciude broker fees market’~g ang PR Losls, Dirzctors Nationa' nsurares gnd recrnmsn’, Regutrars 2
and listing fees, and annual report ard ather publogtion printing and 1isimbuaion costs Thede expansss are 2hgarged 2
solely tn the reveriye account z
p-]
VAT on costs incurrad in connecton wilh the excension of the regidertial egaes 20 Tre Golornac2s are oharged ) e T
RS ) E
caplial arcounl o
=
a
=3
g
n
z
g
5
1]
S
3
=
2]
g
o]
g
a
]
=
g
3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued.

07 Finance costs

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Loan notes, bank WOan; and overdrafts repayable within 1 year ' 1,162 1,241
Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 814
Loan notes repayable after 5 vears 539 1,384
HMRC interest: release of Fil GLO provision - (240)
2,515 27385
Amount allocated to Capital (1,886) (1,969)
Amount allocated to Revenue 629 476
08 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge in the year
2022 2p22 2021 2021 2021
Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK corporation taxat 19% S
(2021:19%) 2,832 (2,832) - 1,989 (1,989)
Overseastaxavon _ _ _ _ 218 - _ 2135 86 _ 8 _ 874
4,967 (2,832) 2,135 2855 (1.981) 874
{Over)/under provision in respect
ofprioryears . . T . .- _gsy o - (1980
4,967 (2,832) 2,135 875 {1,981) {1,106)
Deferredtaxaton _ . _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ @7 _ @7 _ (o8 _ (688 _ (799
Current tax charge fortheyear 4967 (3049) 1918 767 (2667) (1500}



MBIAJBAD

28 Taxatien

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year
The tax assessed for the year g lower (2077 Lasesd thar the standardtat2 oF sroorata tax o the UKD ralusge

company of 19% (2027 19%] @
The difference is explained beiow: E’
g,
2022 2021 2021 2021 g
Revenue Revenue Capital Total 3
£600 £'000 £'000 £'000
Net profit/{loss) on ordinary
actiyitigspgfrgre taxation 48,404 235201 283,605 398656 192853 232509
Corporation tax charge at 19%
(2021:19%) 9,197 44,688 53,885 7,535 36,642 44177
g
[
Effects of: g
Neon taxable gains on investments - (47,317) (47,317} - (37,351} (37,351} 4
Currency movements not taxable - (337) (337} - 877 877
Tax relief an expenses charged to
capital - 3,243 3,243 - 139 © 139
Non-taxable returns - (3,109) (3,109) (23} (3.380) (3,403)
Nan-taxable UK dividends (603) - {603) (972} - (972)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (5.810) - (5,810) (4,573) - (4,573) ;_1!'
Overseas withholding taxes 2,135 - 2,135 866 8 874 é
[}
Deferrad tax movement - (217) (217) (108) (£86) (794) g
{Over)/under provision in respect 3
of pricr years - - - (1,980} - (1,980) é
Disallowable expenses 26 - 26 19 - 19
Deferred taxnotprovided 22 .2 3 1084 1,087
. 4,967 (3,049) (2667) {1,900)
2
c) Provision for deferred taxation g
The amaounts for deferred taxation provided ar 25% (0077 19%) romprse o
[=%
Group z
' =
2021 2021 2021 4
Revenue Capital Total a8
£000 £000 £:000 g
Accelerated capital allowances - - - -
Unutlisedlosses carried forward - (903) (903 - (686) _ (686) g
Shown as: ;..
b3
Deferred tax asset = (903) (903) _ (686) (686} 8
47)
&
[+ ]
g
g
5
Q
3
§.
. oy
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

LA

Taxaton

¢) Provision for deferred taxation continued

Company 2022 2022 2622 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£:000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Unuulised losses carned forward - -~ (90%)  (903) - o86) _ (686)
Shown as:
Deferrec taxasset - {908 (@03 - (688 _ (685)
The movement in provision in the year is as follows
Group 2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Provision at the start of the year - {686) (686) 108 - 108
Accelerated capital ailowances - - - {108) - (108)
Unutilised losses carried forward -~ - @7 @n - _ (686 (689
Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903) S (686} (686)
Company
2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Provision at the start of the year - (686) (686) 108 108
Accelerated capital allowances - - - (108} - (108)
Unutlised losses carrled forward - (@7 @7y - (888) _ [(e86)
Provision at the end of the year (903) (903 - (e8ey  (688)

The Group has nol recognised deferred tax 2
forward Itis consdered oo uncertar rhal jag =
von' be avalabhs to offset againet and ot Cane the
ueen recoagnised

Dueotha Oomrpany s olatus as an Inessimees 173

abtue gaporovar e ine loresseanls fotore the
of investrents

revaluglon or disposs

- Earning per share

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed between revenue and capital, as below

Year ended

31 March 2021

£'000

Ne1 revenue proﬂt 43,437 38,889

Netcapralprefit - — - _ ... . . 23825 195520
Net total profit 281,687 ) 234,409‘
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,580 317350980

Revenue eamings per share 13.69 1225

Capital earmings per share o Y _ 37507 . B1 67

Earnings per Ordinary share 88.76 7386

The Group has no secunties nissue that could dilute the return per Ordlna*y share Therefore the basic and cmuted return per
Ordinary share are the same
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10 Investments held at fair value
a) Analysis of investments

Cormnpany Group Company

2022 2021 2021 2
£000 £000 £'000 &
- —— — o~ . Lo P L. A ool &
Listed in the United Kingdem 516,076 516,076 394176 394176 §
Unlisted in the United Kingdom 2,341 2,341 1,468 1,468 2
Listed Overseas 940,744 940,744 421,801 921,801
investment preperties 47,275 47,275 83,071 83,071
Investments held for sale 48980 48980 - I
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,555,416 1,400,516 1,400,516
Investments in subsidiaries g
atfairvalue T 36,297 R S 48312 3
1,555,416 1,591,713 1,400,516 1,443,828 %
D
Investments held for saie Mixed used prooarty the Colonnadeas, Lordon W2 s currently under offer with g sae axpected
to complete by the end of June 2022 No impairment logses or reversals are anticipated.
b) Business segment reporting
Gross Gross
Valuation Net Net [RYETE )] revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 3% March I
2021 (disposals) (depreciation) 2022 2022 2021 3
£000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 %
S e A -
Listed investments 1,315,877 (94,224) 235,067 1,456,820 43,775 36,403 ]
Unlisted investments 1,468 (42) 315 2,341 395 154 %
Contracts for difference o (an (8563 _ _ 16367 7,657 AL B
Total investments segment 1,317,304 (102,829) 252,343 1,466,818 49,871
Direct property segment 83071 128 (13056 96,255 3,876
1400375~ (102,/01) 265399 1,563,073 53,747

n seeking to ach eve s invesiment aoeciive the Corrpany Irvents in the s ot
and praperty related businesses ntenatonally ard 2's0 0 nyvestent property brated e the UK " Company thare o
considars that there gre two dislinel repart ng segrm=nts 1My=stments and o oroperty e are asad for

can e aitributed "o the repurtirg
segmert o be cetarmired he

2iNS0[OSIP QWY Pue Aiesso|g

SIS ITh{R TRl atd I SR ENNIES Pl T o IRy [

uranetty gr 22 A0 = WU d rEsa 17 el T e [ e Aol CEPRSTR SIS T CTR o
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

Pe2stmants held at far va-ue
c) Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net SERTENTEHE| revenue revenue
31 March  additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March
2021 (disposals) {depreciation) 2022 2022 20N
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

UK hsted equrties and convertibles 394176 30,844 91,056 516,076 11,731 10,265
UK unlisted equities 1,468 - 873 2341 395 154
UK direct property? 83,071 128 13,056 96,255 3876 4,236
921801 (1257%0) 44053 940744 32044 76138

1,400,516 {(94,138) 245038 1,555,416 48,046 40,793
UK contracts for difference? 584 (9,227) 10,270 1,627 1,616 1,242
European contracts for difference _ (725) 664 6091 _ 6030 __ 4085 2078

1409875 (102707 265399 1563073 53,747 44113

Continental European hstec equities _

Imcluded in the above figures are purchase costs of £486,000 {2021 £7471000) and sales costs of £2553,000 (2025:
£1840000

Thess camrprise mamnly stame duty and cormmns

Tne Jompany recerved £544,2725,000 (2020 £
vedr The bouk cost of thege investrmants when it ]
Iryestmants have oceen revalued over trr= 8od Jrlil they s
value of the investments

fair

! Net adations, (disposals) includas £306 000 2501 £AAS DGHL of “apita 2xpandiurs et gporsaaton Jdepresial on)
mades armounts inrespect of rent fr2e parans

= o anesd o id2nd bae s on he el ng
wye2rrentin far gi,—= 10 the vear

< Grasaravenue fur contrac s for o ference re atas
puaitions nelc The anpraciaron (deprar 2t CFD

Y Tredepreciaton inthe TRS relates to be v en o fur 22 usr The prar Lot ieeair

d) Substantial share interests
The Grous heid nterestsin 2% or maore 57 any
None af these irvestments ie consigersd sige
ard 00 for furtber datahs of subsidary noeste

S mpta 1T T AT, 07T T Ly
cartin e oontex! oF T

T

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
Fraarcial ets and fimancial hapibties are sarmes in tng Balarce
[T [ [ lalslelcs] ‘
N 8l harh:\

oprEr

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

o ttae s RN CEreiunest 2 sl moL e A SO That L e e
S ISR ey Tl
R IR
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Irvestments fieid 3t fair vaive

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The table betow sats oul farr value measurarrerts using IFRS 14 far va e hizrarohy

Financial agsets/{liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 231 1,459,161
Investment properties. - - 96,255 95,255
Contracts for difference - 7,657 - 7,657
Foreign exchange forward contracts T 2,736 - T 2736
1,456,820 10,393 98,596 1,565,809
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
At 31 March 2021 £000 £000 £000 £000
Equity investrments 1,315,977 1,468 1,317,445
investment properties - - 83,071 83,071
Contracts for difference - (141} {141
Foreign exchange forward contracts e Jgaern e o7y
1315577 (1,248) 84,539 1,399,268

The table abave reprasents the Group's fa'r value hierars

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March

2021 Purchases

At 31 March 2022 £000 £000

Unlisted equity investments oo taes o -
Investment properties

- Mixed use 47,977 372

- Office &industrial o . 35094

o B B30 372

84,539 372

Alapprec’ahon, [depres ction) as slale
nvestment properties beld gt 57 WMaroh 2000

The Group helg ane anguaotso NveEsimenl &t feyenr =nd 3es 17

Transfers between hierarchy levels

Thars were ny rarsters qurng tre yeg betaees ary Jf

ANLE RGO A Arronnts Y50

abea s glel L

VTS N T

coesrley!,

A= oreis

y The Corpany's farr value hisrarchy 13 identical exe
Inclusian of the fair value of the investmeant in subsidaries which at 31 March 2022 was £30,797 000 (2027 ¢
These have peen cateqarised as fevel 3in both vears The moverment in tha year of £7,075000 20771 €717/ 00
change in fair value in the year, which includes a distribution from a subsidiary company of £
assels at fair value for the Company at 31 Mares 2000 was £7 597, 7173000 (20271 £ 14735280

23t "or the
3170005
W the

(1,000, The wial financial
1)

Q0

U

Appreciation / 31 March

Sales {(Depreciation) 2022

£'000 £000 £'000

o8s30

- (167) 48,187

(248 13218 48,068

_(244) 13056 96,255

_(244) 13929 98,596
AR D TH U FANN] SRt L = Rl e et
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

N

Investrents neld at far vatue

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The significant unotiservable inputs used 'n tne fair value migasuremient 2ategorises within Le el 3 of ing fair value
Picrarchy of investmert proparties ars

cEstmnated rertavalue £6 5-£65persg fr2027 £05 vaf)

*Capnalsatonrates 2 0% -0 0% (202102 5% o 0%

Significant increases (decreases) in estimated rentai value ana enl growth misalaton weduld resalt 'noa s'gaificantly
higher {lower) fair value measurement A significant increase {decrease) 'rlang-term vacancy rate ip isakat'on would
result in a significantly lowier (higher) farr value rmeasurement.

There are nterrelationships betwean the vields and renta volu2s as gy are pacial'y determined by markai rate “ondibon
The sensityvity of the valuation ta changes in the maost significant inputs per class of ‘nyestment property are shown
belonw:

Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial

2022 arising from £000 £000

Increase in rental value by 5% 306 2,266 145 2,717
Decreaseinrentalvaluebys% (%4 (@2 M (25671)
Increase in yield by 0 5% {3.,865) (6,343) (832) (11,040)
Decreasenyledby0s% _ ~ ~  _ 484¢ 87 uve o 14653
Estimated movement in fair valug of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail tndustrial Other Total
2021 arising from £000 £00 £000 £:000
Increase in rental value by 5% 310 1585

Decreasenrental value by 5% (250} ) (1.610] _

Increase n yield by 0 5% (4,040) (5835}

The Group agreed L sell freshe

2f tne Direct Proparty portlolo ke

urtats

PR T U

Ve e el Ty e

The property is < arrently Geng markeisd “or oa L
urrryg atter the yea”erg il be

ceirg zlassfied as a held for sale. Ary changes
Mot 23 Subcegaent Bvenly

At el T
the marxel b =ale

Mo ImparrTent Bsaas hase bheen recognized 45 20 77 Larn D0 L

Financial instruments
Risk management policies and procedures

RN (R I51 O | G
77 The Zroups

rasinp gt e ny Al orf
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T Iorer- MER
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11 Fiancial mstrgmeants

11.1 Market price risk

-

By the very narure of its activities, the Group s imesiments are exzosed to market ooce fuctuat'ons,

2
Management of the risk &
Tha Manage: runs a diversified portfolio and reports to tre Board or the portfeho astivity and perfarmance at each Boare ‘:_%
. F
B
3
portfolio, was as foliows

' 2022 2021

£'000 £'000
Investments held at fair value 1,555,416 1,400,516 &
Q
CFD long gross exposure , 144642 __ . 146001 8
-

Concentration of exposure to price risks

Az sel outin the Investment Policies an page 272 there are guidslnes (o the amrourt o exposure (3 a s ngle company,
gecgraphical region ar direct property These guide’ines ensura an aperopriate spreac of exposure to indvidua or s20tar
price risks Ag an inveslment company dedicated o inveslmant n ke procerty seclor the Group 5 expos2d 1o 5 os
movements across the property asset olass as awh e

Price risk sensitivity

Tre following table illustrates the sensitvity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareholders’ tunds 1o
an increase or decrease of 15% in the fair values of the Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property invesiments.
The level of thange is consislentwiln the llustrat on shiowne in the previous vear The senslviry 13 basad on the Group's
equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct property exposure at each palance sheet date, with all gther variables held constant.

o
B
g
)
g
3
2

2022 2022 2021 2021
Increase becrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£9000 £000 £'000 £'000

Income — profit after tax

Revenue return {115) 115 (103} 103
Capital return 234176 {234,176) 209,801 (209,801}
Change to the profit after tax for the '

year/sharehoiders'funds 234061 = (234,061) 200698 (209.698)
Change to total earnings per Ordinary )
Share . 737%p .. 73.75)p L.....50080 _ (66.08)p

2.NS0[28IP QWL IV puk iessopn

11.2 Currency risk

A proportion of the Groun s portfolinis myvasted ir guerseas saourites anc t=2i- 3ierling valus car be s grificartly affectes
Y ad Bl ;
by mavements - loreign exchunge e

Management of the risk

The Baard receiyes g reanrr at 2geh Boor f reesthis g irap portlet s medr S1ernag
FLros or other currences The Group oy o0 m=rm =6 ns 1 i A de b Doz 2 Ly
furding invesiments 17 erongs Sacurilizs o I uMass oo ar s T2 T O Tl 0T ST T 0 AN g n
forward curreroy cortro 13

rhe

WOV J0 80I0N

T

ara halgir Sierirg amd orTur s deromaated g o

ash depo

UOIBLLIOJUI 13PI0YBIRYS

Serygal Repart & A rle A0%



Notes to the financial statements
continued

3

F nano. at nstruiments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporting date the Group had the following exposure

(Sterling has been shown for reference)
Currency
Sterling

Euro

Swedish Krona
QOther

2022 2021
34.0% T 080%
42.0% 51 0%
16.0% 13 0%

8.0% B 0%

The foiowing tatie sets oul the Group's total expoaune 1o faraigr currency risk and e nat exposuse (o furaign curranci2s

of tne net rronetary assets and labilities

2022
Receivables (due from brokers,
dividends and other income receivable)

Cash at bank and on deposit
Bank loans, loan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

Fxforwads
Tetal foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items

Investments held at fair value

Non-current assets

2021

Receivables (due from brokers,
dividends and cther income receivable)
Cash at bank and on deposit

Bank loans, ioan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FXforwards o
Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary tems

Investments held at fair value
Non-current assets
MNon-current iabilities
Total currency exposure
Foreign currency sensitivity
follovrrg tatle ll Lstrates re =

eyl e g Ll

53,912

20,34
(35,000)

(25,642)

o _(e8280)

(74,669)
614,672
903

~ Q5000

525906

Sterling
£000

49,462

22,853
(95,000)

(10,142)
(61.209)

(64,036)
478,715

£86
(15000}
370,365

27,758
3,247

(11

19,898
680,755

Euro

10,668
4,339

{1031

13976
707968

_142593)
576351

__(10996)

. (42253)
658,400

£'000

12,659 608

2,883 5,638

(1,634) (3,722)

_ . 59817 42135

73,785 44,659

181,455 78,534

.255240 123,193
Swedish

Krona Other

£000 £000

5671 2949

650 1,272

_ 13848 46,254

15,059 47825

155,635 58,198

(170684 _Joabzs

oL T T - R alaT
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11 Foancial instruments

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
If 3terling nad stresgthenad agans! the curese=s srow, (s wowsd have hiod the oloving elfect

@
Year ended March 2022 Year ended March 2021 2
|,
Swedish Swedish 3
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other '§
£000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Staternent of Comprehensive ) S B
Income — profit after tax
Revenue return (3,500) (436) (278} (2,726) (589) (250)
Cap\talretum B o (89,441) o w(23,632) (10,228)@ (8312431_______ ) (202692___(7_579) °
Change to the proﬂt after tax for 2
the year/shareholders'funds  (92941)  (24,068)  (10,504) = (85969) _ (208%8)  _ {7.829) 2
§
' 2022 2021
Change to total earmngs per Ordinary share 408 (36 T3)p__

If Sterting had weakened against the currenries s=owr, this wou d have the folowing 2ffect
Year ended March 2022 Year ended March 2021

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000

Statement of Compreh_ér-w"swe
Income — profit afier tax

SHRUIIEIS [ERouBYly

Revenue return 4,896 525 345 3411 732 318
Capital refurn_ 121,078 31,996 13,847 124633 27440 10,262
Change to the profit after tax for 2
the year/shareholders'fynds 125974 32,521 14192 = 128044 28172 10,580 &
3
2
2
Change to total earnmgs per Ordmary share 94.42p 52.50p F
v PeL LT e e L LRTEAR L e 2R g
m

11.3 Interest rate rigk
Intereal rate movements reay affect

- the fair value of any investmerts i fixed interest Secuntes,
: H’Wr fmr ‘aile nf 'he Iuah neies,

Coash a boankand e denos]
-I%\—: me eruzlexpemwm A riablarar2 bank oun o ard
the prices of the underlying securities h=ld noke por ks

WOV JO 8aON

Management of the risk
Tne possible effects or fair value ana cash flows that coula arise as ares Jlt medrq(% Torterestrates zre taken nto
gieanntwhen makng myastment decsicnsa Prole e cormipares o il vy : ciremneten o g the eyal
9] (nrmg anad alructure of e debt portfoliy s o ke faclor Lren

EUT T G Ol T ar i,

Tre Group nas fixed and bas »ad variagle rate borrowirgs dur
are set out = ~ote 13 Inagcdinon wotbe,an
carry canian SR ek IE TS
(/ J/T ‘WJUUI"'I. o

UCIIBULIOJ| J3P|OYRIBYS

SO Pennr & ATTounty TR



Notes ta the financial statements
continued

T Fimanclal instruimeants

Management of the rigk continued

The Manager corsigers poth the level of depi ur the bzanc - : e woan ~otesn gard gny bank oo,
drawn) and the see through gearng, taking int: FOLISUEEE ab ag ot the e deryird nuoi e A en

congidering the irvvastment portfola Thess gearig bevds ams r2poriea reguiary ' e Board

The majority of tne Group's irvestment parttoiic ‘s non-mierest baaring As & resalt the Group s fnancial assets are ot
directly subject 1o s.gnificant amounts of fsx due to fluctuations in the preva Lrg levels of marcet interést raes

Interest rate exposure

The expesure at 31 March of financial assets and financial labilives to imterast raia nsk s shawn oy refererea ro
- floating interest rates: when the interest rate 1s due to e re-set

- fixed interest rates: when the financial instrumant is due 1o be repaid

The Group s exposwre to floating interest rates on assels s £77.242,000 (2027 £80 027 000}

The Group s exposure to fixed interest rates on liabiliies is £57,253 000 72021 £152 583,003

The Grodp s exposure to floating miterest rates on liatilites 5 £35000,00C (2021 £nilt

interest recaivable and finance costs are at the follovweng rames

reed oncash palances, or pgid o back Seeraraits,
21 samej

aMmargr ver SONSA or

-re@r‘ Pl adE Aty

nterest paid a0 borrowirgs Lnder e ma teearrsnoy loore T lities, 5 ata marg oy
2quivalent Tor the type of laan (2021 same)

SN et f.g't'lq" SgTren.

and 359

- The fnance charges on the £50m and £75m ioan notes are at nterest rates of 1,92 % raspactvely
g }

The vear erd amounle ara not representalie of [he axnasare to interest yle
changes as investments are made in fixed mteres! secarties, Durrowings Are dr
borrowings between floating and fixad interast -ates changes.

:pg [ESTEN s
v dawer ard repaid, amg e micst

Interest rate sensitivity
Achange of 2k aririeres: vt at the reporting Jate soond Pave nad the Zhoeany dirsc L moa.g

2022 ' 022 2021 2027
Increase increase Decrease
£000 ’ £4 £000 £000

(1,176) 1178

Change to shargholders’ funds

Change to total earnings
per Ordinary share

037p_ _ 037

Thos el SF change g repr
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11 Financial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within within  More than ]
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year J-4year  4-Dyear Syear 2
At 31 March 2022 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 <.
e —— . z
Bank loans* 35,000 - - - - - 35,000 -4
Loan notes - - - 42,253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected intercst cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,241 539 2,124 7,954
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 5,364 - - - - - 5,364
(2]
Accruals and deferred income 25,523 - - - - - 25,523 2
Cthercreditors 292 - === - 22 3
o - _ 67459 1,350 1,350 43494 539 17,124 131,316 #
Within Within Within Within within  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2021 £'000 £'000 £'600 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans 95,000 - - - - - 95,000
Loan notes - - - - 57,593 57,593 %
g
Projected interest cash flows on 2
bank and loan notes 2178 1,356 1,356 1,356 1,356 2,693 10,295 §
Accruals and deferred income 10,719 - - - - - 10,719 £l
7]
Otherereditors 1o S L e - .10

1,356 1,356 1,356

108,007 1,356 60,286 173,717
’V(WAEﬁOm mu|[ICl]ffE}16; "f-aciiity with RBS was réﬁev@ed for ona year in l—;ebruary 2022. £35m (2027 ESOm) was drawn on this Fé&ility althe baiance sheet date.
*  A£30rm one year facility with ING Luxembourg was remewed in July 2021, Nil {2021: 30m) was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.

*  AL40m facility with ICBC was renewed in Novernber 2021, NIl (2027 15} was drawn on this facility at the balance sheet date.

Management of the risk

The Company manlains regular cortacs wieb the banws oroviding revolyreg farnmes 303 reread 2500080
wat gnead of faclity rerewal dares Ir adat on the Jorepany 5 9%,
argoing basis

aIhso[Ds|p gW4|Y pue Aessolg

11.5 Credit risk
The faivdre of @ CounterRarty o @ Iransac an bl O ge 00 Ch gt Q7% A Er TR ITLNEG: D Or Lonh s il e fnep ufierng
3 = ’ ; [IETIIA LA LS P ¥

#les At the perind end the larges!
eduivalents whers the 1otal bank balancas helc e e cagniarmzsn

shier e

SIS BT (o,

WY Jo 320N

Management of the risk

[yestment IFEnNSaciions A% Cardied Jul & O nLmoer of crokers whoes Lredil
Marager gnd Pmits d@ng set o e amouni Al vy B dae 0 g e i
hugn < Lalily exierna credit ranings

—

arding e S

faant zl Baes s ondy be o itk Binks vieth

Credit risk exposure
Ir sarmany, compared j0 the amounta © e B anes fes e Iy sk, L L e ]t Tae 50T Mg Py s

UOIIELLIOJUL IBPJOYRIBYS
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

|
i

Franeial astruimenis

2022 2022 2021 2021

Balance Maximum Balance Maximum

Sheet exposure Sheet exposure

£000 £400 £'000 £000

Uebtors 97,673 97,673 60,930 60,990
Cashandcashequivalents 32109 32309 = 29774 29714
el o dz9782 129782 99704 9G04

Whare the recevables of the Group are exprsed 1o cradil risk, the requirement for impairment iz ass
end For all receivaplas, in the table above ~o mpairmen’ bas oeer recognised ir r2latinn L expactad creodit foss
mpact of these 'nsses 1s immatarial as at 37 Marck 2022 {37 Marah 2027 no fmpuairment

Offsetting disclosures

In order to better define its cantractual righ’s ard to secure rghts tnat will belp the Group mitigate its counterparty ris<.
ihe Group may enter into an 1S0DA Master Agreerm=nt or sirrilar agreementwith its 070 genval ve contract counarpartes
ANISDA Master Agreement s an agreemenl belweer the Groupand the countarpasty that gover 2 070 Jervatyes and
fareign exchange contracts and typ.ca'ly o ins, arenrg other things ool alsrg poSuTg TRIMS uNd rating nrovisiuns
n the evant of a gefadit andyor tarmination svent Uraer gr (30A Master Agreermsn’ ha froea * ntrgtLal fgat
to offset with the caunterparty certain dervasive fimang’al instruments payables and or receivables with collateral
held and, or posted and create one single nei paymeant | sent ol defaut ne'uong lne bars<r
of the counterparty However, bankrupicy or iInsol QD&M LA U U My T S
prohibitions agairst the right of offset in oankrup fy Or otneT events

Tre disclosures set out in the fallowing tables include firancial assets ane fnancial lNaoilites that are subject 1o an
enfarceabls MAasrer netung arrangdement 5o airrilar agree et

ALGY Mareh 2020 and 2027, the Gronp's derva i e assels and labilitizs My tvpe 2nd ~oarternarly) ars 25 tollos s

Year ended 31 March 2022 Year ended 31 March 2021
Net amounts Net amounts
of financial of financial
assets/ assets/
liabilities liabilities
presented in presented in
the Balance Cash collateral the Balance Cash collateral
Sheet pledged Sheet piedged
£000 £000 £000 £000
CFD positions:
Goldman Sachs . 7e5 45133 sy o se9s
S ol _ 7657 45138 (an 50813
FX forward contracts:
HSBC _ ﬁ _ ...2mé - 1en . ]
- _ _ _ _ oy 0 - L _ (o B i
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AnmaRanart BoAss oy s T

Frnancial instruments

11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Except for the loan notes which are measurad at amaortised ¢
and financial hablities are either carried 1In the balance sneet
armount s a "easonable approximaon =f fai-valle (destors oracito s 2aab 3
prepayments)

sf the financial assets
alance sheet
afts acoruas ars

03l frafer 1o Note 130, the fair value
L their far value [investrients) or tn
tosnk ane bank ouver

The fairvarzs of the listed investmen s ares darread frors the closing oroe or 320 traded or' e alwheel e sanarties are
quoted on the London Stock Dxehange ana cthar recagrised axchar g=s

4

i

ot asriying P led ey

The far value of contracts for differsnoe e bas :
el s recnrded 335 ar gensl o

amaourt due ‘rom ar W the caunterparty unds=- b
disclosed in Note 1.3 for the current year

The fair values of the properties are derved from an opec market [Red Book) va vatien of the propearties onine Bagnoes
Sheet date by an independent firm of valuers (Knight Frank]
Trere was one unguoled invastmart al ine Balancs Shaet date, Alrato, vitn g lola vasue af £2,547 000 (2027 Alrao,
£1,468,000;
In the Paren’ Company accounts there are irvas ments L 176,797 000 (2027 £437472 0000 inunhsted subsidiaries wh'ch
are classified as level 3.
The amounts of change m fair value for investments including net returns or CFDs recogrised in the consolidated profit
or loss for the year was a gain of £265.330.000 (20271 £274 377,000 gain)
11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
The Group s capital management objeclives ars

1o ensure thatit will be able to continue g. a JoINg a7 ern; and
- 1o maximise the lolai return 1o 1S eguity snarcho ders through ar aporopriate balanae of aq ity capital ard deb:
The equity capitat of the Group at 31 Marcn 2627 consisted of called up share
and revenue reserves totallng £1,567 7390070 (20771 £7 376,43 30001 The Gre
‘nans as permanent capital

capital, snare prermium, canital redemption
wp dnes nctregard e lonn rores and

The Inan notes agreement requires compliance with a set o finarcial covenants, irclucing
-~ Total Borrowings shall net exceed 357 5F Adusled Net SAsset W

- the Adjusted Tota- Assets shalat all smres ba equivalact 1o a morirrar of 300% Hf Totsi Borrov rgs; an:d

Dabtors
Group Company
2021 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Securities and properties sold for
future settlement 33,138 33,138 267 267
Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement 2,736 2,736
Tax recoverable 3,344 2,879 4231 3,761
Prepayments and accrued income! 5168 5,168 5176 5176
Amounts recewvable in respect of
Contracts for Difference 7,657 7,657
CFD margin cash 45,133 45,133 50,013 50,813
Otherdebtors . 88?47 . 4B A
e - _ .. 97673 87208 60990 60,520
Non-current assets
Deferred taxation asset Co......%08 . .%3 686 888
' Ingludes amaunts in respect of rent free periods.

MIBAD

uvodaialbajens

SjusluBje]ls EiouRUly 20URLIAACD
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current i1abtlities

Amaounts falling due within one year:
Bank lpans and overdrafis

Securities and properties purchased
for future settlement

Armounts due to subsidianes

Amounts payable in respect of
Contracts for Difference

Tax payable

Accruals and deferred income

Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlement

Other creditors

Non current liabilities:
1 92% Euro Loan Notes 2026
3.55% GBP Loan Notes 2031

Crithe T01h Fabruary 20706, the Compary =
HEF 15000000 Loar Noles whmhare dis

tne 1 9% Luro Loan Nole
21E15,18 N0 ar 3T R

The lnan riotes agrearnant requires comphs

Borrowengs shar non axceed 2737

GuUstec Tria

s1ed ML shann sl by S5 ihgr e L
BT aatd LT aks RTINS T PR L SR RN
Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
Tl sl T oL T
Troraly rece e - P - ~ B

B T3 vagnde tuerareny ine Loar e

35,000

5,364

42,253
LAs000
57.253

RIS ET b

Company
2022

£000

35,000

5,364
35,869

25,523

e 183
_.. 101939

42,253

eyt g sen ot tnanc al covenasta rolucie

auals Enall gt al Ume. b o aens g e rogere T S f

w2

Group
2021

£000

96,000

154

141
9
10,718

1197
119
107.280

Then a7d 429 U0
a3 T Facr jary

Company
2021

42,593
15,000
57,593

s GEP D oaan Mles s
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AN REROrT & AT IIUNTS

Current and qon surrent nabil:tres
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term Short term
debt debt

Group and Company £000 £000
Opemng liabilities from ﬂnancmg activities at 31 March 2021 57,593 95,000 152,593
Cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans - (60,000) (60,000)
Non cash-flows:
Movement on foreign exchange 4y e (3
Closing liabilities from financing activities at N March 2022 57253 35 OOOu 92253

Called up share capital

Ordinary share capital
The palance classified as Ordinary share ~apital includes the nomnal value proceeds on treissue of the QOrdinary equity
share capital comprising Ordinary snares of 250

Issued, allotted

Number and fully pafd £'000
Ordinary sharesof 25p - T
ALT April 2021 317,350,980 79338
M3 March2022 - 317350980 79.338

The voting rights are d\s \r)L@d n :re Report @ flhc DIF,,

Durirg tne year, tre GCaompany made 7o market curchases for cun enatinn of unzinary snares of J5p each (2027 none)
pany X ]

Snee 31 March 2022 no Grdinary snarss Page o2en gurchased and canczliad

Share premium account and capital redemplon "e327ve

Share premium account

The halance classified as share premium includes the prerrium above nominal valae from the proceeds on ss.e of the
equity share capital comprising Qreirary sharss of 250

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve 's us=c 10 racord he crraunt equ valen' 1o ine foaming w3t ot purihases sf re
Company s owr ahares ir order Lo Mmamizam re Gompary s apita\

Retained garmings

Group Company

2027 2021

£'000 £'000

Investment hoiding gains 412,934 431,260 335322 360,663

Realised capital reserves 918057 ) 891,806 - 757418 - 731067

1,330,991 1,323,066 1 092,740 1,081,830

Revenue reserve 85277 - 73202 67222 68,132

1,396,268 1396 268 1,159 962_ o 1188,962
GATCUD TS r’\-ﬂmhf‘mnq gains a2 Rareh 0 netgss g B0 015 A% gain i T 2 1S T oL Lt

trgsgire s and g Jam of £ 38E UG (T p 4 A gar e niing lan e irerd

CgErL ety

Corpany mvesir-ert halging gz ns
o Jamy el at eyt

uniisled and Mbj vw"'\ sir-er - QTR t-l-i‘iiﬁ"ff")"i'@!

T e, Hnl = r~ -

S 4,

MBIAIBAQ

Hoday abaiens
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3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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Dividends

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
£'000 £0060

Armounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 of 9.00p (2020:

8.80p) per Qrdinary share 28,562 27927

Interim dividend for the year ended 371 March 2022 of 5 30p

(202715 20p) per Ordinary share . _ . 1&81w9 . 16507
45,381 44429

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders in the

year

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9.20p

(2027 9.00p) per Ordinary share 29,196 28,562

The final dividend nas not been included as a liabdity (= these finaroal statements 0 accardanacs with 145 10 Zuerts after
the reporting period

Sel out balow is the toial dhiderd Lo pe pard i respe, © oF theyaar Trgis the bagis oo which the reguaremearts of 5 1758

A the Carporatior Tax Act 2070 ars congidaered
‘ 2022 2021
£000 £'000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 530p

(2021%: 5.20p) per Ordinary share 16,819 16,502

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022

of 9.20p (2021: 9.00) per Ordinary share ) - 29,196 - 28,562
46,015 45064

Company statement of comprenansiye in, 2m=

A3 permiiec py S=2cton J =1 SR LM DENy T nEY DA
C CJmDrD?’“F—"WS\uE‘ Incorre Tne net profit atter taxation cﬂﬂw Sormparn, dea

£287 v87 000 (2027 £234.409,000 profit)

FTh nTNe 3800

Net assetvalue per ordinary share
22t g per drdirgmy obare s pas
SROn0yard or 417 450680 002
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21 Subsidiaries

The Group has the following princpa subsdianes, all L wnh ame registered and operal ng
in Sentlznd, England ard Wales

Narme Reg. Number Principal Activities %
* New England Properties Limited 788885 Non-trading cecmpany ‘é
* The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company %
* Showart Limited 2500726 Non-trading company *
* Trust Union Properties Residential Developments | imited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Trust Lid 2475846 Non-trading company
The Real Estate investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2475843 Non-trading company o
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2476017 Non-trading company §
* Trust Union Properties (Number Five) Limited 2415839 Non-trading cormpany g
* Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2416018 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Number Seven) Limited 2415836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2416019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten} Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2475830 Non-trading company %’
Trust Unicn Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Neon-trading company %
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen) Limited 2415818 Non-trading company %
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company g
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen) Limited 2416026 Non-trading company ®
Trust Unicn Properties (Number Sixteen) Limited 2415806 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 2415768 Non-trading company @
* Trust Union Properties (Bayswater) Limited 2476030 Property investment E
* Trust Union Properties {Card/ff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company 3
* Trust Union Properties (Theale) Limited 2416031 Non-trading company §
* Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Twao) Limited 2415765 Non-trading company g
* Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company é'i
* Skillion Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company é
= Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc 2663561 Investment financing i
* FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Nan-trading company g
*FGHM Developments (Aberdeen) Limited 8C68799 Non-trading company g
*FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Nen-trading company g
*NEP (1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading company
* New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
* New England tnvesiments Limrted 2613005 Non trading company
* New £ngland Retail Properties Limited 1447227 Non-trading company
* New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company o
*Sapco One Limited 803940 Nan-trading ccmpany é’
* Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company %
* Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company g_
* IR Broperty Finance Limited 24715947 Investment holding and finance company g
= Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limted 2420097 - Non trading company. g



Notes to the financial statements
continued

St Sunanhanes
All the subsidignas gre fully owned ana il the nuld rgs are Lrdinay shares

HMouse, Frrroge L Lendon ELGA ZHS avh tha exception of
SAO Lotz Bl Fennes! Sgoare, Eacaoegn £ S SBY

All companies have the registered office of Exchangs
FOH Developments (Aberdesn; Lrmad which s =g s

Sl

s rdur o R 10 FaKe The Sxemnpt o from T ne

rfes (or ot <
Lol the Comparies Ao 2000

* The Comrpuny kas providea @ g :
Fothe regly rerter s g

reqdirement of ar avgs inlne

3]
(RN

Related party transactions disclosures
Balances ard transact’ons netween the Company and ts supoidiares whizh arareaiad parmes, bal 2 beer 20mrsteyd an
wonsalidation The Dalunces are interest free Lnzecureq and renayables or demara

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

The Colonnades Limited
TR Property Finance Limited
New England Properties Limited

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remienaration of the Direciors, who g e ey o
categores specified ip IAS 24 Related Party Lisslo
Report o wage 57

arent pargurti

s proviged o rhe gy

Directors’ transactions
Trarsgclons ir shares oy Directon g7 orr adare g b pe s retaled pacly
rovle as Direc torg

ki Cire i

NMovermears in directons shareboldings gre dis, !



ILSIAQ

Glossary
and AIFMD
disclosure

uodal s)barens

sjualuale)s (ejoueuly

Wovjoadton BEETLLTUERCE U

USRBULIOJU) JPJOLaIEYS




Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

0 Alternative Performance Measurss
Altzrnative Perftormanne Measures are numerncal
measuras of the Compary's current or histanical
performance, financial position or cash flows otner
than the financial measures defined or specified in the
Financial Statermeris

The measures defined below are considerad to be
Alternative Performance Measures They are viewen as
particularly relevant and are frequently guoted for olosed
anded investment companies.

Total Return

The NAV Total Return s calculated by reinvestng the
dtvidends i the assets of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividend date Dnidends are deemed to be reinvested
on the ex-dividend date as this s the protocol used

oy the Company's benchmark and other indices Tre
Share Price Total Return s calouwlated by reinvesting the
dividends in the shares of the Company from the relesart
2x-dividend gate

NaV/share price per share at

37 March 2021 {pence) 417 97 397 50
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence} 492 43 456.50
Change in year 17 8% 16.3%
impact of dividends reinvested 3.6% 36%

Total Return far the year 21.4% 199%

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2020 (pence) 35817 3175
NAV/share price per share at

31 Mareh 2021 (pence) 417 97 3925
Change in year 16 7% 236%
Impact of dividends reinvested 4 0% A7%
Total Return for the year 20 7% 28.3%

Ongoing Charges

Tre Orgoing Charges -abe has beer calculatec 1o
ancordance wit» the guidance 1ssaec by the A'C gs the
wtal of iIrvestmert managemeant f2as and admimstratr=
SXPANSES 2Xprassad as a percentage of tne avarage

Nat Assef Vakies throughout tre year The definition of
agministrative experses does include praperty ~elated
expenses, the Ongomg Charges catoulation 1s shown
INRlusve ang exclusive of these expenses 1o allow

ompansor of tne direct admimust-ative and maragemeant
sharges with the majorty of Investment Trusts which an
not hold any direct property investmenrts

Excluding
inciuding  Excluding  Petformance
Performance Performance  Fees & Direct
fees Fees Property Costs
£0060 £600 £000
Management
Fee (note 5) 31,140 6,651 6,651
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note 6) 2,220 2,220 2,220
Property
Costs 332 332
Less: Non
recurring
EXpenses
33,692 9,203 8871
Average Net
Assets 1,536,825 1,536,825 1,536,825
Ongoing
Charge 2622 219% G 60% 0 58%

Management
Fee (note 5)
Other
Administrative

15884 6,225 6,225

expenses
(nate 6)
Property
Costs 270 270

Less. Non

recurring

expenses - -

1,835 1,835 1,835

Average Net
Assets
Ongoing
Charge 2021

1,283,051 1,283,051 1,283,051

1 40% 065% 0 63%



Net Debt

Net debtis the total value of loan notes loa~s (ncluding
notional exposure to CFDs ard TRSs) less casn ag a
propertior of net asset value

The net geaning has been calculated as follows

" Group

2021 |
£:000

57,593

Loan notes 57,253

Loans 32,000 95,000

CFD positions {notional exposure) 144,642 146,001

Less: Cash (32,109) (29,114)

Less: Cash ccllateral (included within

‘Other debtors’ in Note 12) (45133) (50,913)
159,653 218,567

Equity shareholders’ funds 1,562,739 1,326,433
Net gearing 10.2% 16 5%

The Ongoing charges ratio provided i1 the Company's
Key Informaticn Document 1s calcutated in ine with
the PRIIPs -egulations which ts different to the AIC
methodology above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This 1s calculated by taking the firal dividend in the
time senes, divided by the inttial dwvidend in the period
raised to the power of 1 divided by the numoe- of years
In the series

Average Discount

The s.m of eack daily discount { the discount of the
closing share price to the pudhshed AIC NAY vath
Ircome) aivided by the number of days in the given
frme penod

Key Performance Indicators

Tne Boara assesses the parformance of the Manager
In meating the Trusts objective agamst a number o
Key Performance I~aimators, these are oo-sirderad to
be Alternative Performarce Measures Details o these
caloolations are set oat abcve

Sl RO A ot s TR
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The Alterrative mund harages Directive 15 Eurcpean
legislation which createn a European wide ‘rameawork
for regalating the managears of "alternative investmert
Lrds" (A=) Itis desigred to regulate any fund whicn
15 ot g Ul TS tUndertakngs for Cellective Investment
ir Tra~sferatle Seconties) furd and wrien 15 managed
Qr ma“<eracn the EL

AlC

Tne Assoclatior of Investment Comparies —

the &'C s the represertative pody for closed-enced
nvestment comoanies

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of firancial performance or financial
position other than a finanaial measure defined or
specified in the aecounting statermenrts.

Discount

The amoLnt by wich tre market price of 4 share of an
mvestmert tust s lower than the Net Asset Value per
srare expressad as a pescertage of tre NAV per share

Key Information Document

Unger t~e PRIIPs Reg.lationsg a short, consumer fnendly
Key rfornation Document s required setting out the
<ey features ns<s, rewards and costs of tre PRIIP a~d
15 ~tended 10 assistinvestors to better understand the
[rust anc make compansons between Trusts

Ihe docoinent inclucas estimates of investmant
performance ander a numbear of sceranos Thase
~alculatiors are oresanbed by tre regulatic and ara
hasec purely an recert ~stencal aata g mportant
Yor investors to ote that tere s no judgemeant apnlied
and these do not 'nany way reflect tne Board or

MNanage s viaws

Key Performance Indicator (KPI)
A KAls g quaniifiable measura that evaluares how
Suecasetyl e frust 13 n measting 1ta objectives e

Troats <P sare israsscd e pages 2o and 2o

MiFID

Tre Marketa i~ Birancial 'nst gments directize2 s o= EU
legislalon that regulates firms who provide sery'ces 10
chients lin<ed 1o financial instrumants’ {s-ares, bonas,
Leibsn ollastis ineastment erhemeas and carkyateses”

and the rerues whera Pross eatymants goe traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The calue of rofal ass=ts les s vabilines fmisding

rroingst Aaded by the namner of ahares 1R800
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

> L ARematve investiment fund manage
dwective LAIFMD

'm dccordance with tre ASMD intormation i sglatice
te the Company's leverage and ~emuneration of tne
Company's AIEM, FEC investmert Business Lirmitad,
s requyred to be maoe avalable toinvestors Datailled
regulatary disclosures inclugirg those on the AIFM s
remuneration pelicy are svallable on the FRL wensite
or from F&C on reguest The numerical remunaraticn
disclosures in relation to the AlFM's first relesant
accounting penod will be made available in due course

Leverage

Under the AIFM Directive, 1t 13 necessary for AFs
fo disclose therr leverage in accordance with
prascribed catculations

Altnough leverage 1s often used as another term for
geanng, under the AIFMD leverage is specifically detned
Two types of leverage caloulations are defined; the gross
and commitment methads These methods sumrmartly
axpress leverage as a ratio of the exposure of the Ak
agawrst ts net asset vatus  Exposure typrcally incluaes
debt, the value of any physical properties sugject to
rmortgage, non-Stering currency, equilty of Currancy
nedging at ahsolute notional values {ever those hald
narely for rsk redustion purposes, such as forwad
‘oreign exchange contracts helg for currency neaoing;
and dervative exposure (converted Into tre eguivalert
Lnderlying positions) The commitment method nets
off denvatrse instromarts while the gross mathoo
aggregates themn

Tre table below sets out tre current maximum permitted
it and the actual level of leverage for the Cornoary as
ar 31 Marcn 2022

Maximum permitted hmit 200% o 200%
Actual 136% 128%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom, or if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accempanying documents to the purchaser, or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these docurnents to the
person who now holds the shares.

Nouecs s hereby grven that the Annual General Mesting
of TR Property Investment Trust ple {the Comoany’) wall
2e held at tne Royal Automobile Club, 89,97 Pal) Mall,
l.ondar SW1Y 5HS on Tuesday 26 July 2027 at 2.30pm
for tne purpose of transacting the following nousiress

To consider and, if thaugnt fit, pass the following
Resolutiors, of whicn Resolutions 1 to 10 will De
oroposed as Qrcirary Resolutions ard Resalutio
and 12 shall e oroposed as Speial Resoluno.s

ns 1

1 Toreceve tne Report of tne Directors ang tne
Auditea Accounts for tre yvear enaed 31 Manzh 2027

2 Toaoprove (ne Drectors’ Remunaranor 4
inther tnan the pa“t cortaimng tne Direfore
Remuraration Policy] tor the year enaed 31 *darc -

2022

3 Todeclare 3 final dividerd of 3.200 per Crainary share,
T re-siect <ate Solao ser as g Dreitor

5 Toore-elent Sarar-sana Dur s as g Dirat o

v =2t Tim Guinan<s as a Jnmect -

T Torzlact DA a3 iarint 95 a Simectnn

~ Tooreanoant <SRG P e A i Tt

s oorgic ofce Lntiltha
-

Special business

Ordinary resolution

Wy THAT in substitubon for @bl sur o existirg aut onies,
tne Dwrectars be generally a~d grooraticnally
autharged purduart o ana e accordanue with
Sectic= o5l ol tre Comoanies A7f 2000 1tne At
to exereise all the ooviers af the Cornpary to allot
sharasinthe Compary and 10 grant rignts 1o
SubSIrioe for or o zonvert any secarty INMe, sha 2y
nthe Tompanry up o a nominal value of £26,131 455
[oe1ng approximataly 33% of the totaissawed share
capital of the Company as at tre latest practicable
date prosto oublication of this Notice) prowvided
that this autno-ity shall expire at the date of the next
Arrual General Meeting of the Company (o7 1f earher
at the cfose of pusiness or 25 Joroher 20273 save
trat the Company shall be antitlea to miake affe-g or
agresm2nts hetore the exfury of thig autho ity wric
WD O rmight recurre srares o be allenad or nghts
1o be grarted after such 2xpiry and the Directors anall
be enttled to allor snares ard grant nghts cursuant
to any such afers or agreemenrts asif tus authorty
nad "ol exolied

=)

Special resolutions
1T THAT msLstitition for all sucr 2as0irg autranties
ana subpect b the passirg of Resclution 14 set

fors De

Qb ape el the ]
2 tne At to allot
Tor S50 »f ins
oy

STALt

O Senoe a7 and Secnen 5

2CUily securities tas dafined ir Se
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(b} nthe case of the authonity granted under
Resolution 10 and/or in the case of any sale
of treasury shares for cash, to the allotment
{otherwise than under paragraph (1} anove)
of equity secunties or sale of treasury snares
up to a raminal amount of £3,666 8387 (heing
approximately 5% of tne tatalissued share
capital of the Company as at ine latest
practicable date prior to publicatiun of the
notce of meating),

The power given by this resolution shail expre wpon
the expiry of the authority conferred by Resotution
10 above, save that the Company shall be entitlec to

make offers or agreements before the exoiry of such
power which would or might require equity sacurties
to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors shall

be entitled to allot equity secunties pursaant to any
such offer or agreemenrt asif the power conferrec
nereby nad not expired

THAT the Cormpany be and 1s hereby generally ard
unconditionally authorised in accordance with
Section 77 of the Act to make one or more market
purchases (within the meaning of Section 893(1) of

the Act) of Ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital

of the Company on such terms and in such manner
as the Directors may from time (o tme catermine
provided that

{a) the maximum number of Ordinary shares hereoy

authorsed to be purcnased shall be 1£ 9G% of
tne Company's Ordinary shares inissue at the
date of the Annual General Meeting {equrvalent
to A7 570,911 Ordinary shares of 25p =ach at
13 June 2022, the latest practicable date prior
to pubhzation of this Natice);

() the maximum price (exclusive of experses)
verlich may be paid for any such share shall )
pe more than the higher of

(1 1U5% of the average of 1ne middle markest
q.otaticns for an Oramary share 2% ta<er
from the London Stoc< Exchangs Datly
Qfficial List for the five business days
immediately precedmg the Cate on whi s
tre Company agrees (o by the siares
Torrernes; and

(1 e nigner of the price of the fast
mdependent trade and re nighast o areent
Mdependent bid for an O dinay share i the
Company on the trading venue shere tre
purcnase s camed oot at the “elesant
time ard

Bl

() the mirimum prze exclusive of expensos) which
ay e nard forar Orainary share shall ba 250,
pelng tre nomimal valus per Ordinary share;

fre authorty rereby confered shall expire at

tre corclusion of the Arnual General Mesting

o the Comparny 1n 2023 (or if earlier, 41 tne close
of business on 25 Ontooes 20232), save that tre
Compary shall ne ennitled tc erterints aanntract
¢ owrchase Grdinary snares which wall or may, be
completed or executed wholly or partly after the
power expires and the Company may purchase
Ordinary snhares pursJant tc such cortract asif the
power conferred hereby had

"ot expired
%mmm Latten

By Order of the Board

Registered Jffice:

Company registered in England ang Wales
Company number 84497

13 Woondstock Street

Condon WG 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Whilst COVID-19 restrictions have been lifted as

at the date of this Notice of AGM and it is currently
anticipated that shareholders will be permitted to
attend and vote in person at the meeting, the COVID-19
situation continues to evolve and the UK Government
may introduce new restrictions or implement measures
relating to the holding of shareholder meetings which
may mean this is no longer possible, Therefore,
shareholders are encouraged to appoint the Chairman
of the meeting as their proxy for the AGM. If any

other person is appointed as proxy and COVID-19
restrictions are introduced which affect the holding of
the meeting, that proxy may not be permitted to attend
the AGM. Any changes to the arrangements for the
AGM will be communicated to shareholders prior to the
meeting, including through the Company's website, at
www.trproperty.com and by announcement through a
regulatory information service.

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are

asked to register their intention as soon as practicable
by email to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@bmogam.com.

Shareholders who are not able or do not wish to attend
the meeting in person will be able to watch a live
webcast of the meeting. This will include the formal
business of the meeting, the Manager's presentation
and questions and answers. The webcast will not
enable shareholders to participate in the meeting ar
to vote. However, shareholders will be invited to
submit questions through cur website, by 12.00 noon
on 22 July 2022. Questicns of a very similar nature
may be grouped together to ensure the orderly running
of the AGM.

T Amemaar =rtitled 10 atiens anc vote at s maehog

“oncened by tre 3ng e NOUTE s A TiElEA b 5

AT O TnTe DoOKIES 1D axaErtse gl nn ge

gt Lt memnes e attend, sosa it Lot

473 tw maTe e

A=y 5o

ATy TSt fe

¢ Be vald any oroxy form or atre instroment
anpainting a aroxy must be returned by post, by
outler ar oy and o tne Comnany & Registrars
Comprigrshace [ryaato” Servleas PG, The
Pavihiors, 3ridgwata Road, Brstol 83589 62y o~
alter~atively oy oimg to wew eproxvapaointmes
“omeanc followimg e imstruetions proviged Al
Aroxias mast be apoorted by no later than 48
hooms cefera the e of the AGK Inthe case of
joint halgers, where more than ore of the jo1-t
holders parparts to appoint a proxy, anly the
appointmeant suomitted by the mast senicr holdar
vl be acuented Sencnity 1s cetermined by tne
oraer in whicn fme names of the joint holders
appear ir the Comoany's Reqister of members in
resoent of the joint holding (1he first named being
deemed the most senior

=

In crie to be anle te atternd and vote at tre AGM o~
arv acourred meeting ia~d also for tre ourpose of
B J 2ABUNG Nows Mary voles 8 Dereae may o af;;t),

a persen must Paye 1S or ner rame entered on the
“2qister of Members of tne Company by 2 3 pim
0N 22 July 2027 {or & D0 pm on the date 1o days
nafare any adjourned meaeeting) Changes 1o entnes
onihe degister of Members a%er this trme shall be
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4 Any caormaration which s 8 memiter of the
ompany can appoint one or mose corporate
representatives who may exercise on its neal’ all
of its powers as a member provided that they do
not do 3o Ir relation to the same shares

3 Tnenghtto appoint a proxy does nat apply to
Dersons whose shares are neld on tneir behal® by
another person ang who nave been nomindted
torecerve communication fromtne Company
inaccordance with Sectior: 146 of the Act
[Nommated Persons} Normunated Persons nay
have a nght under an agreement with the registered
shareholder who nolds shares on their beralf to be
appointed {or to have someone else appainten) ag
aproxy Alternatively if nominated persors co rot
have such a nght, or do not wish to exercize it they
may have a right under such an agreement to give
nstructions to tne persen holding the shares as o
the exercise of voting nghts

5 CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy
or proxies through the CREST electronic oroxy
appointment service may do so for the AGM to
be held on 26 July 2022 and any adjournment(s)
thereof by using the procedures descrnibed in the
CREST Manual CREST personal mempers or otrer
CREST sponsored members, and those CREST
members who have appointed a voling service
provider skould refer to their CREST sponsors
or voting service provider(s), who will be able to
take the appropriate action on therr behalf In
order for a proxy appointment or instroction made
oy means of CREST to be vahd, the appropnate
CREST message (a CREST Proxy Inafruction’)
must be properly authenticated in accorcance with
furoclear UK & Ireland Limited's specifications and
must contair the irfermation required “or such
nstructiors, as cescrbed in the CREST Man al
Tne message must be transmittad 2o as 02 be
received Dy the Company’s agent, Computarshare
investor Services P C(CReST Partimioa~r 1)
ARAS0]), NG later than A& hours before the ime
appoirted for the meeting For this pamaose, (na
nme of recemt will he taken to be tha time (as
determired by the tme stamp apphed to the
massage by the SREST Apdlicatior Hosty from
whion the Company's agert s able 1o atne oo
the massage by enguiry to CRzST im tha manner
prescribed oy DRES |

CREST memoers ard, where applicatie trer
CREST 2o0nsor or vating service proyvider sbo )
rote that Curonlear Uk & Irelanc Limitec does ~ot
ma<e avalable spetial procedares n CREST for
ary paticular messagos

Sl B epart &Aoo e 0

Normal svstem gings a-d irmitatrors will theretoe
apply N elaton o the inpat of CREST Proxy
Instructions Its the respons ity of the CREST
member concernad 1o take (o 1f the CREST member
15 a CREST persanal member or sponsored meameear
orhas aopointed a vohing service provider, o procere
that his or ~er CRE5T sponsar or voling seraice
orgvider lakes) sann actior 4w shall oe necessary

[ ens.re inal a message 12 ansmittad oy means
o' the CREST systam by any partioutar ime 11 tris
conrection, CREST rmempers and, where apalicabls,
tnerr TREST gpansoer or voing senvine proviger

are referred ir particular to those secthions of the
CREST Manual concerning practical hmitations of
the CREST system ard trmings Tre Company may
treat as1mvalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the
crrcumstances set out in Regulatior 35(0)a) of the
Uncer:ificated Secunties Ragulations 2001

Any member attending the meetmg sugject to any
restrictiors in place at the time of the maeting) has tre
ngrtto as< questions The Company mest cause 1o be
answered a~y such guestion relatirg 1o t7e bl.siness
being dealt viitn at the meeting but ¢ such answer need
be grverf (a) to do sowould interfere unduly with the
preparatic for the meetirg orirvolye the disclos..rea

of confidential information: () the answer has already
bean gren on a website nthe formof ananswerto a
guestion; or (¢ itis undesirable in t-a intarests of the
Company or the good crder of tre meeting trat the
Aquestion be answeree Questions of a very similar rature
Ty be crouned together fo ensue the orderly run~ing of
e AGM

A copy OF thrs notice. ann othe informatien reg.arad
by section 371 14 of Ire ALt ~an De “ound at

Sy TrDoperty Gorm

Hoda oifaleng MBINBAD
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Members sahafying the thrasholgs in sennion 328
of the Act may reg.ire the Company to give to
members of ne Company entitled (o receive notire
of the AGM, notice o a resaluticn whic- those
members intend 1o maove (and whick may properly
De moved) at the AGM A resolutian may pronerly Do
maoved at the AGM unless

(1) vt woula if paszed, be ineffective iwhethar oy
reason of any Innonsistency with ary enactmant
or the Company's consttution o” otheryise)

() s defamatory of ary person - or

() atis frivolous or vexatious

A request made parsuant 1o thi: night may be in nad
copy or electromc form, must igentify the -esnlunion of
whlcn notize 15 to be given, must be authentizated Sy
the perscn(s) making it ana must be receved by the
Comoany not later than six weeks pefore the date ot
the AGM

10

Members satisfying tne thresholas in sectior 3334
of tre Aut may request tne Comaany tonclade r
the business to oe dealt with at the AGM any natter
juther than a proposed resolution) wnie nay
properly be ncludea 10 tne Basiness at the AGH
Amatte” may properly be includea - the business
at the AGN untess

(3 tis gefamatory ©f ary naerser: or

n s frivolous or wexatious
ATEGLESUMACe Bursuant to 1S G Miay De 1 a7
“opy or 2lestronie form mast inentify 112 aties o
e imcloded in tha ousiness, Mot e a0 Tioat=3
oy & statemant setting oot e grownds far tes
=ra2st Must o autrentinated oy the o

sl ) o [
20Dy ER e T

Jrashiral metars of tre T

[ Ralier Y ake

Wart e

o

Asat 12 _une 2029
sheatss o

e o

]2

fheterns of reterance of the aucit Conmitteg
tra Managament —ngacermant Lammittes, ne
N mingatne Commities anad (re Direstors’ Letrznys

of Appointnent will e avalable forispaction
forat least 18 mintas prior o and cuning the

Tomoany's Ahd

You may ot use any electrome address prosided
gitmar i tus hotice o ary related dotumests to

COMMUNIC DTS Far any gurposes other tran thoss
expressly statec

Tne

SMpany may process personal gata of
attendees gt e Annual Gengral Meeting This may
~asts photos, ewodieg and acdio a7a
Ades ings, a0 well 35 other forme of personal data
Trne Zompany s1all prosess s.ch personal datain
aseordanTe vt~ s privacy pohiey wdhier can fond
at ey proparty o legal

meluse,




Explanat-ion of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, and 3: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration report

and dividend

These are the resolutions which deal with the
presentation of the audited accounts, the approal
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report anc the
dectaration of the final dividend.

The vote tg approve the Remuneration Report s
achvisory cly and will 1ot require the Company tu
alter any a-rangements detalled in the report srowld
the resolution not be passed

The Board is propesing a final dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2022 of 9 Z0p per Ordinary share

If approved at the AGM, the Company will pay the
dividend on 2 August 2022 to those shareholders on
the Company's Register of members at the ciose

of business on 24 June 2027

Resolutions 4 to 7: Re-election

of Directors

These resolutions deal with the re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-Jane Curtis, Tim Gillbanks and
David Watson In accordance with the LUK Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors retire on an annual
basis and have confirmed that they will offer
themselves forre election

A performance evalugtion has been completed ang
your Board bas determined that each of the Directors
continues to be effective and demonstrates ther
commitment to therr role

Therr biographical details, which are set ozt an
pages 4 and 47, demonstrate that the Board

"as the appropnate balance of skills, expenence,
independerce and knowledge to lead the Company
Accordingly, ine Board unanimaously recommends
terr me-election

Resofutions 8 and 9: Auditor

Tnese deal with the reappairtmenrt of the A ditor
K2MG LLE and the authomsation for the Directars to
determing thelir remureration

AN CRA & AT oL 0

Resolution 10: Allotment of share capital
Our Aoard consicers it aporeonate that an authonty
be grantad ta allot snares 11 the capital of the
Compary ap to a maximum nomnal amourt of
26181 115 15 statec 0 tra resoluticn frepreserting
approximately nne third of the Company’s 1ssued
share capital as ar 13 June 2022, heing the latest
prachzal date pnor to puchiation of tris Notice of toe
meeting) As al tne date of this ~ntice the Comoany
gqoes net hold any shares v treasury

The Directors nave no present intention of exarcising
this authority and would only expect to use tha
authority I¥ shares could be1ssued at, orata
premium to, the Net Asset Value per share

Tris aatronty will expire at the earlier of close of
busiress on 25 October 2023 ard the conclusior of
the Arnuai General Meeting of the Compary to oe
neld 1N 2023

Resolution 11: Disapplication

of statutory pre-emption rights

This resolution would gree the Directors the autnority
to allot shares (or sell any snares which the Company
elects to hold in treasury) for cash without first
offering them to existing snare~olders 10 proportion
to therr existing ahareroldings

Trig aJthonty wodla be limited to allotments or sales
In correction with gre emptive offers ard offers to
"olders of nthe equity secanties if required by tre
Aghts of those snames or as the board otnerwise
considers recessary or otherwise Lp to an aggregate
norminal amount af £3.966 837 This aggregate
narmimal amourt represents 5% of the total iss_ad
share capital of the Company as at 13 June 2022,
tne latest practicable date prior to publication ot 1713
Natie In respect of 1715 agor2gate romingl ameant,
the Directors corfirm trels rtention (o “ollov the
arovisions of the Fra Emption Group's Statement o
Principles regasaing comulatibe usage of autronbizs
wit~m a olling 2 vear p2niod wrare the Principles

provide trat ssage inaxeeas 8F 0 5N snoulc ot take

plane st oros corsultaion cote s-arerolas-s

[ ma astronty will exore b e 2ather of close of

business or 25 Qotoner 2074 370 t7e conclu<iun of
tre 2 gl General Meaeting ot the Company to be

relor 2027

MABIMRAD
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continuad

Resolution 12: Authority to make

market purchases of the Companys
Ordinary shares

At the AGM held in 2021, a special resolutior wHs
passed which gave the Directors autharity, Ll the
conclusion of the AGM In 2022, to make maret
guichases of the Campany's own issaed snares up ta a
maximum of 14 39% of the1ssued share capital

Your Board 1S proposing that they snould be given
renewed authonty to purchase the Company's Orddirary
shares in the market Your Board believes that to make
such purchasesin the market at appropriale imes ang
prices s a sullable method of ennancing sharerotder
value The Campany would, within guidelines set

from time to tirme by the Board. make either a single
purchase or a seres o purchases, when market
conditons are suitaole, with the aim af maximisirg tne
benefits to shareholders.

Where purchases are made at pnces belgw tne
prevaihing Net Asset Value per share, this waill enna—ce
the Net Asset Value for the remaining shareholders
Therefore purcrases would only be made at o7ies
nelow Net Asset Value Your Board considers that it
#11l e most advantageo.s to shareholders for tre
Company to be aole to make such purchasss as and
when it consigers tne iming 10 2e favouratls ane
therefore doas 10t pronase 1o set a timetable for
maxing any such purthases

(e Comparies fAoquisition of Dwre Srares) [ [r2as
Sarest Raq o lations 20072 enable comparias 1o e
Urited kimgaom te holdan treasury any of ther ow -
shares trey nave Durnhased with a aew 10 2054
rasale at & future date, ratmer than cancelhrg themn ¥
fne Lomoary coes re burchase any of its shares ths
ars dorot currently intena 1o hola any ot e
STaTEs e DuTerased In reas.ry T ghares 1 e

Lonhased wall Conhn e i pe canalled

HML on e fRR TS e
Ty 0 oA FoTany SLIn Shate tanall not

[igall I EatT e o ¥

Axper

AT s grer of

L 3fheggerage of the migdie Marsef
maotavons for o Droirar
tre Lonzen Steok Dxcnatge Da. i\ Cffeal st oo
buziness Jays ire

BRI i;_;"T‘I“J]" caGreen o Ly T atsT

shagre g5 ta<e™ "2

The mirimam price to ne pald will be 250 pe”
Ordinary srare (peing the ~ominal valuel Tre Listing
Rules also imit a liste “Cmpany {0 purerases of
Soares representing up to 197, of its 1ssuea share
~aoital i tre market parseant to & geresal authornty
s.ohasthis Fortrisreason the Company s imihing
e authonty 1o make sucr purchases te 14 89% of
the Company's Qrairary $mares 17 ssue at the date
of the AGM b5 s equivalent 10 4, 570,017 Ordinary
\,h ares 0f 25p each (nominal value £11,892,727) at
.June 2022, the latest practicable oate prior 10
pubhcanor‘ this Nobhce The authonty wall last unty!
the A~nval General Meeting of tne Company to ba
held in 20249 orif earher at the close of business on
25 Dtober

Recommendation

Your Boarg pelwves trat the resoluticns cunitamed

in 1o Notice of Anrual General Mecting are in tne
sestinterests of the Company ang <hareholders as

a wmle ACCrECAMITIENd S trat yru vote in taveour of
therm as yaus Dicectors intend to go 1 respect of their
ovn benefinal shareholdings
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Directors and other information

Directors

Latsen (Chairmarn)
K. dolsover

5-J Curtis

[ Guibarks
ShIarison

Registered office

13 Woodstork Street
[ ondon

WIC 2A0

Registered number
Registerad as ar mvestment company 19,
-ngand and Wales No 84457

AIFM and Company Secretary
BRO mvesirent Buziness Limitad
-¥rhange House

Primrose Sires

v ondon

ECADNY

Portfolio Manager

Thames Qpver Sapital P authonsed
srd requlated by the binanaias Condunt
Authorty

Viviooasterk Straer

Londcn

WS 2A%

Polepkone 0020 720 470

Fund Manager
LI Pha‘;.'re—rﬂudqe AR

Finance Manager and
investor Relations
SRt ACS

Deputy Fund Manager

cLrnLLr

Direct Property Manager
Ty RS

a.
The Association of
Investment Companies

Registrar

Carnputershare Inestor Seraees D0
The Pacl ooz, Brdgeater Poad

Hrigral

(R R W

Telepraon

Snareholdars »no hols fhe - snaras ir
cortifoatad fore can oreck their moldirgs
Wit (e Reg

SErACES Pl VL vy 1N ves

Couk Please rowe (nat 10 gan acees
yaur detads on tre Computershare s 1o
yOL wil neod tho holder referansn numbes
staad onthe inplett hand oo rarat yaur

share cortif cate

Auditor

KPMG

T Janaca »auan
| ordon

F150G!

Stockbrokers
Panmura Gordon LK) T oweed

0N Mo g

I ondon
FoAN N

Sifsr M clnus rumope Do

150 heaps ae
Londo-

Solicitors

Rl
Dredunt o B

[Wvlabivia

SRR
Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

o - TET ST T
Website

e rme e e
Tax advisers




General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The hal® year rezults are announced 11 late Novemoer

The full year results are announced in garly June.

Annual general meeting
The AGM is held in London in July

Dividend payment dates
Dradends are usually paid on the Ordinary shares
as follows

Interm January
Final August

Dividend payments

Dividends can be paid to sharebolders by means of
BACS {Barkers’ Automated Clearing Services); mandata
farms for this purpese are available from the Registar
Alternatively, shareholders can write to the Registrar
(the address s given on page 114 of this report) to give
their imstructions; these must include the bank azcount
number the hank account title and the sort code ofthe
bank to which payments are to be made

Dividend re-investment plan (DRIP)

TR Froperty Investment Trust ple offers shareholders
the apportunity to purchase further shares intre
Company through the DIEP Please note that following
Brexit shareholders in Europe are no longer able to
narticipate 10 the DRIP DR:P forms may be obtained

from Computersnare Investor Services PILC througn ther-

senure website www nvestoreentre co Lk o-or 0370
707 1694 Charges apply; dealing commussicr of G 755
(subject to a mirimurm of £2 50) Government stamp
cduty of 0 5% also applies

Share price listings

The estimated Net Asset Value and market price of the
Company's Ordinary shares, as well ag e digsount
premium, are puthsned daly in The Finanaial Times
Tney can also be found o1 the Company's w=hsite at
W 1rDrope Ty Tom

Share price information
ISIN GBON0S061097

SLDOL 0006409

Aloomberg

TRY LM Reatery

TRY L

Datastream TRY

ANTILA PEmsr & ArountE AUl

Benchmark

Detallz of tne berchmar< are grzan e tne Strategi:
Report on oage 22 of tr1s Regort and Avcodants
The nen-rmark mdex s subhshed daily and can
te found an Bloomberg;

FISL LPRANAREZIT Developed Evrope Dapped Net Tutal
Raturn irdexar Sterling
Bloombers TRMAG indes

Disability Act

Capies of tnis Report and Accounts and other
docaments 1ssued oy the Company are available from
the Company Secretary “needed, coples can be macs
avallable ima vanety of forrmats, including Sraitle, awdio
tane or larger type as approonate

Yo. can contact the Registrar Computershare rvestor
Services P_C, which ras nstalled textphones o allow
speech and rearnng impaired neople who have therr own
textphore to contact trerm directly withaut the nzed
for an intermediate operator, by diallirg G870 702 DOT5
Specally trairea ooeraturs are avallable during normai
pusIress hours to anawer quenes via this servace
Alterratrvely 1F you prafer 1o go through a typetalk
operator (provided by the Royal National Inshitate for
Deaf Peoplel vou shocld qial 18001 folluwad by the
number you wish fo dral

MINIIAD

yodas o16aleng
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Vihere netification has been orovided in advance,
the Company will arrange for copies of sha“efolge-
sommuanications o be provided 1o the operators of
nomines accounts hominee investors may attend
general meetings ang speak at meetngs when
inwited 10 4o $0 by the Chairman

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for shareholders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a shareholder's
Falding of Orainary shares, the impact on the
shareholaer's capital gains tax base cost of the
conversior o Sig-ma shares in 2007 and the
“edesignatior to Jrdinary shares in 2012 should
be corsidered

In respect of the conversion ta Sigma 1in 2007,
agreerment was reachedg with HM Revenue &
Custorms {HMREY 10 base the apporhonment of
the capital gains tax nase cost on the proportion
of Drdinary shares that were converted by a
sharehclder into Sigma shares on 25 July 2007

Theretare if an Ordinary sharenoclder corverten 2070
of tner existing Oramary shares into Sigma sha-es
on 25 July 2007, tne capital gans tax base cost of
the new Sigma shares acquired would oe excal to
207 of the oniginal capital gains fax base costof

ne O-dinary shares that they held ore cony
Tn= case castof trar remamning holding of Sray-ary
shares would them be 847 of tne cnginal mamital
NS tax base cost o tnev Ordinary s—ates neld

Dre-conyersion

A part of the re-gesigration of e Sigma shares
Imtn Drainary snates e Jecemnoer 2012 4 fotrer
srarenolaer's anreement . gg gt e st ANRT
cagital gairs tag saEss touhn

e newy Jrdinary sna

toat 3 ohgrens

il
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R
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

The shares of I Praperty Investrnent Trust ple are
listed and trace on the London Stock Exchiange
Investors may purchase shares through ther
stockbroker, bank or other finangial intermediary.

Holding shares in certificated form

Investars may Nold ther investment in certificated formy,
Our regustrans, Computershare operate a dealing service
which enables investors to buy and sell shares quickly
and easily onlire without a broker or the nead to open a
trading account Alternatively the investor Certre allows
vestors 1o manage postfolios auickly and securely,
update details and view balances without arnual
charges Further details are available by contacting
Computershare on 0370 707 1355 or visit wavw
computershare com

TR Property Investrent Trust plc now offers
shareholders the opportunity to purchase furtne” snares
Ir tne company through the Dividend Re-mvestment
Flan (DRiPY) through the registrar, Computershare
Shareholders can obtain further nformation or tne DRP
through their secure website www. nvestorcentre.co ux,
or by phoning 0370 707 1694 Charges do apply Please
note that to gain access to your details or register for the
DRIP on the Computershare site you will need the holcer
reference number stated on the top left nand corner of
your snare certificate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other pians
Anumber of banks and wealtn manage nant
arganisations provide Savings Schames and ISAS
through whicn UK chents can invest in TR Property
ryestment Trust oln

IS4 anc savings scheme providers go charge cealing
and other fees for paerating the accounts, aanvestos
snould read the Terms and Conditiors proviged by trese
companies and érsure that the charges best sLit ther
planned investrrent profile. Most schemes carry annJal
charges oot thase vary betweaen provider and orcdact
Where dealing charges apply, In some ~ases these ara
applied as a percentage of funds investea and others as
a flat charge. The optimum way 10 hold the shares will oe
cifferent for eacn (- vestor depeiaing wpon tn2 requen sy
and size of mvestments to e made

Detalls are given balow o two orovice s ofter
shares n TR Property Investmert Trust, but tere
are many other oonors

APTLE Do & Saene s Tt

interactive investor ('ii')

ntaractive nvestor provics and adrmimister a rarge o
salf-select investment plans, including tax-advantaged
1545 and S1PPs (Self-lnvested Personal Pension), and
Irading Azcounts For mare information, interactive

\.-"\“_‘,Ft\"g R IR N e

Intergstive invasior Hfter irvestors in TR Droparty and
other mvestmeant tusts a free opt-in anling shareholder
voting and information service trat enables investors 1o
receve shareholder cormmunizations and, 1I* they wish, 1o
vote onthe sharekoldings helg in therr account.

TR Property 1s alsc on the irteractive super bl rated hsf

BMO Asset Management Limited (‘BMO’)

BMO offer a number of Private Irvestor Plans Investmant
Trust ard Junior ISAs and Children's investment Plans,
nvestments —an be made as lump sums or fnrough
reqular savinQs For more Inforrmation see insice the bac<
cover BMO can pe contactea on 0800 136 420 or visit
Wiy BIMogam.oom

Please remermber that the value of your mvestmerts ara
any 1rcome from them may go down as well as up Past
performance 15 not a guide to future derformance You
may nct et Dack the amourt that you invest If you arein
any coubt as to the suitability of a plan or any nvestment
avallable withim a olan, please take professional advice

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings {ATS') BNP Paribas

Tollowirg the acauisitior of Alllance Trust Savings oy
nteractye rvestor ATS self directed accounts weare
transferrad to the interactive mvastor plat®armon 14th
Jdotaber 2019

r 2002 BN Panpas clesed down the part ot therr
pusiness that ooeratad 5a.19: Schemes ard SAS

sroee of transterning ther

IPYESTONS S Ol Hhe
zchemes to Alha-oe Trast Saargs TATS 0 fo
orcvider uf iner own Chose or 1o close therr acnn . rts

ana setli~anolomgs

Ferssstots e nat respond to the letters from BNP
Dankas trer anrounts were trgrasierrad 1o ATS

Irg re aeouimitien of Alldree Trusl Saa7as av
ATS self diecferd aocounts we e
ad (o iremnrarg e n,estor platform o 1.0
ST

=0l

i
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and boiler room scams
Shareholders in a number of Investrment Trusts haue
been aporoachad as part of a share fraud where they
aemformed of an opportunity to sell ther shares as the
company 1s subject to a takeover oid Thisis nottrue ad
is ar atiempt to defraud sharehclders The share Faud
also seeks payment of a commission by snaerolders 1o
the parties car-ying out the fraud

Snareholders should remain alert fo this type o scam
and treat witn suspicion any contact by telephone
offering ar attractive investment opportunity, such

5 a premium price for your shares, of an atlempt to
Lonvince yau that payment 1s required in order (o release
a settlernent for your shares These frauds may also offer
1o sell your ahares in companies which have little o no
Jalue or may offer you bonus shares These so called
boller room’ scams can alsc invalve an attempt (o ostar
your personal ang/or banking information with which o
commit identity fra.d

The caller may be friendly and reassurng or they may
tacé a maore urgert tane, ancouragmg you to act daroxly
stherwise you could lose money or miss out on a asal

1 you hiave been contacted by an unautharised firr
“2garaing your shares the FCA would h<e to hear
from i you You can report an unauthonsed firm using
tre FCA Pelpline an 0800 1171 6798 ar oy visiting trerr
wenste, which also has other useful infarmation

at vy fea org uk

Sy recele any snsolizied investment advice
Tiake Sure you get the norrest rame of the ae 507
ana siganisation f tne 2alls persist, ~ang e * yvoa
dealwith an unauthorised firm you will not be eligicle
o recare ayment unde” the Fina-oial Seroces
Lumpensation Snreme

Tlegse oo acased trat e Songra or tne MNan




How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc

is through one of the savings plans run by BMO.

BMO ISA

You can use your I1SA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £100 or regular savings from £25
a month. You can a'sc transfer any existing ISAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

BMO Junior ISA (JISA)*

A tax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a child. Contributions start from £100 flump sum or
£25 a month. JISAs or CTFs with other providers can be
transferred to BMO.

BMO Lifetime ISA (LISA)

For those aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

BMO Child Trust Fund (CTF)}*

If your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £9,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month, CTFs
with other providers can be transferred to BMO.

BMO General Investment Account (GIA}

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
investments can be made from £100 [ump sum ar

£25a month.

BMO Junior Investment AccounT (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a child in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and the plan can
easily be set up under bare trust (where the child is noted as

the beneficial owner) or kept in your name if you wish to retain
control over the investment. Investments can be made from a
£100 lump sum or £25 a month per account. You can alsc make
additional lurmp sum top-ups at any time from £100 per account.

* TheCTF and JISA accounis are opened by parents in the child's name and
they have actess to the money at age 18,

** (glls may be recorded or monitored for traning and quality purposes.
Yy

A COLUMBIA
THREADNEEDLE

INYESTHMEMNTS

BMO 9 Part of

® 2022 8MQ Global Asset Management. BMO Global Agsset Management

s a registerad trading name for various affiliated entities of BMO Global

Asset Management [EMEA] that provide investment management services,
institdtional client services and securities products. Financial promations are
1ssued for marketing and nformatien purposes, inthe Lnned <ingdom by

BMO Asset Managemnent Lirnited, which 1s authorised and regulated by the
Financial Conduct Authority. This entity is @ whol:y owned subsidiary of Columnbia
Threadneedle Investments UK Intermational Lirmited, whose direct parent1s
Ameriprise Inc., a8 company incorporated inthe United States 't was formerly part
of BMO Financial Group and 1 currently using the "BMO” mark under licence.

S Beaort BN rognts MY

Charges
Anrual managemrent rarges and otner Charges apply aorording o
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